
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

December 1, 2015 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Councilmember Hizon
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Dudley
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

i. Proclamation in Recognition of National Impaired Driving Prevention Month - December 
2015, presented by JoAnn Hellmann, Director of the Impaired Driving Impact Panel of 
Island County

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

December 1, 2015 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Councilmember Hizon
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Dudley
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

i. Proclamation in Recognition of National Impaired Driving Prevention Month - December 
2015, presented by JoAnn Hellmann, Director of the Impaired Driving Impact Panel of 
Island County

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentations
i. Annual Holiday Wreath Presentation to the City of Oak Harbor by Boy Scout Troop 59

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular and Special Meetings on November 17, 2015, and Workshop Meeting

held November 18, 2015
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentations
i. Annual Holiday Wreath Presentation to the City of Oak Harbor by Boy Scout Troop 59

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular and Special Meetings on November 17, 2015, and Workshop Meeting 

held November 18, 2015
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks

1



c. Resolution 15-38: Labor Agreement between The City of Oak Harbor and the Oak Harbor 
Police Association - Commissioned Unit

d. Resolution 15-40: 2016 Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for 2% Grant Applications
e. Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Srvices 
f. Senior Services of Island County Professional Services Contract
g. 10-Inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement - Professional Service Agreement with Gray & 

Osborne, Inc. for Engineering Services
h. Agreement with Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Council Vacancy Procedure
ii. Clean Water Facility Project Update 
iii. 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon Update by the Race Director - Elks Lodge
iv. NLC Conference - Select Councilmembers 

b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. Ordinance No. 1751: Vacating Beach Avenue
b. Ordinance No. 1753: 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments

c. Resolution 15-38: Labor Agreement between The City of Oak Harbor and the Oak Harbor 
Police Association - Commissioned Unit

d. Resolution 15-40: 2016 Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for 2% Grant Applications
e. Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Srvices 
f. Senior Services of Island County Professional Services Contract
g. 10-Inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement - Professional Service Agreement with Gray & 

Osborne, Inc. for Engineering Services
h. Agreement with Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Council Vacancy Procedure
ii. Clean Water Facility Project Update 
iii. 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon Update by the Race Director - Elks Lodge
iv. NLC Conference - Select Councilmembers 

b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. Ordinance No. 1751: Vacating Beach Avenue
b. Ordinance No. 1753: 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments
c. Resolution 15-39: Surplus of Property Acquired by Utility Funds

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 15-43: LEOFF 1 Disability Board - Medicare Part B Premiums
b. Ordinance No. 1711: Horse Drawn Carriage, Carts or Conveyances 

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. None

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

c. Resolution 15-39: Surplus of Property Acquired by Utility Funds

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 15-43: LEOFF 1 Disability Board - Medicare Part B Premiums
b. Ordinance No. 1711: Horse Drawn Carriage, Carts or Conveyances 

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. None

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

2



Proclamation 
Whereas: increased public awareness of the DUI problem is crucial now, at the holiday season,

when celebrating often means the deadly combination of alcohol and driving that 

needlessly threatens our families, friends, co-workers and neighbors; and 

Whereas:  throughout the year but particularly during the holiday season, we ask each citizen to

make a conscious effort to help prevent DUI by not driving impaired, never serving 

alcohol to those under the age of 21, hosting safe parties that include non-alcoholic 

drinks and getting guests home safely if needed and reporting suspected impaired 

drivers; and   

In addition: we ask all drivers to please observe Lights on for Life Day by driving with your

headlights on throughout December 18, which kicks off Holiday Lifesavers 

Weekend, to recognize those injured or killed by DUI. 

Whereas:  the Impaired Driving Impact Panel of Island County, Oak Harbor Police Department,

Oak Harbor Fire Department, Naval Air Station Whidbey Island, Whidbey General 

Hospital Emergency Medical Services and Oak Harbor High School’s Students 

Against Destructive Decisions join forces this year to remind citizens that impaired 

driving crashes are 100% preventable if we all do our part to prevent them. 

Now Therefore, WE, Scott Dudley, Mayor and Councilmembers of the City of Oak Harbor, 

do hereby proclaim December 2015 as: 

National Impaired Driving Prevention Month
to help make our roads safer for all. 

 
 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Scott Dudley, Mayor 

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and cause the Official Seal of

the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, to be affixed on this the 

________ day of _________________________________2015.

3



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Minutes of the Regular and 
Special Meetings on November 
17, 2015, and Workshop 
Meeting held November 18, 
2015

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Minutes of the 11/17/2015 Special and Regular Meetings, and Workshop Meeting held 11/18/2015.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.a
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Minutes of the Regular and 
Special Meetings on November 
17, 2015, and Workshop 
Meeting held November 18, 
2015

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Minutes of the 11/17/2015 Special and Regular Meetings, and Workshop Meeting held 11/18/2015.

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Special Meeting Minutes 11/17/15
2. Regular Meeting Minutes 11/17/15
3. Workshop Meeting Minutes 11/18/15

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Special Meeting Minutes 11/17/15
2. Regular Meeting Minutes 11/17/15
3. Workshop Meeting Minutes 11/18/15

4

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447978500_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448046018_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448051300_at.pdf


Special Meeting Minutes (Clean Water Facility Groundbreaking) – November 17, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council 
Special Meeting Minutes 

3:00 p.m. – November 17, 2015 
321 SE Pioneer Way – Clean Water Facility Project Site 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present:  Staff Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Administrator/Finance Director 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Captain of Police Teri Gardner 
Councilmember Bob Severns  City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  

Mayor Scott Dudley was absent. 

Also in Attendance: 

Kevin Fitzpatrick, Northwest Regional Manager of the Water Quality Program, Department of 
Ecology 

1. Groundbreaking of the Clean Water Facility

Recognition from Staff and Members of the Council regarding the groundbreaking of the Clean 
Water Facility.  

Comments from Kevin Fitzpatrick from the Department of Ecology, Northwest Regional Manag-
er of the Water Quality Program. 

ADJOURN 

The meeting adjourned at 4:30 p.m. 

Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

5



Regular Meeting Minutes – November 17, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

November 17, 2015 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present:  Staff Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Administrator/Finance Director 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Bob Severns  City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 

Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Chief of Police Ed Green 
Senior Services Administrator Mary Anderson 
Economic Development Coordinator Barbara  
Sphon 
Executive Assistant to Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

Mayor Scott Dudley was absent. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Councilmember Almberg provided the invocation, and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao led the pledge of 
allegiance. 

EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCILMEMBERS 

Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to excuse Councilmember Hizon, Councilmember 
  Servatius seconded, unanimously approved. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Main Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as presented, 
seconded by Councilmember Severns. 

Motion to Amend: Councilmember Campbell moved to amend the motion to add Approval of 
  Amended Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Membership Roster to the 
  Consent Agenda as item 4.l.  Seconded by Councilmember Servatius, 
  Motion, unanimously approved. 

6



Regular Meeting Minutes – November 17, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 

Main Motion as Amended: Unanimously Approved. 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:07 p.m. 

Citizens Speaking 
Skip Pothilla, 1090 SE Hathaway, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

After all comments were provided, the Citizen Comment period was closed at 6:08 p.m. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Minutes of the Workshop Meeting on October 28, 2015, and the Regular City Council
Meeting held on November 4, 2015

b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers
c. Resolution 15-30: Electronic Device and Wi-Fi Policy for City Council
d. Resolution 15-37:  Contract with Architectural Elements for art sculpture - SR20 and

NE 4th Avenue
e. Ordinance No. 1752: SEPA Responsible Official Code Amendment
f. Ordinance No. 1754: City Clerk Reporting Restructure
g. Sleeper Road Timber Harvest Contract Award to 3 Rivers Cutting, LLC
h. Scenic Heights Stormwater Outfall - Professional Services Agreement with Davido

Consulting Group, Inc.
i. Purchase Authorization – Altima Replacement
j. Approve the 2015 Capital Surplus List
k. Amendment to PWTF Loan PC12-951-048
l. Approval of Amended Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Membership Roster

Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to accept the Consent Agenda Items as amended, 
  motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved. 

STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 

City Administrator 

City Administrator Dr. Merriman reminded Council of the Economic Development Workshop 
Meeting scheduled for Tuesday, November 24, 2015, from 1:00 – 5:00 p.m. 

Dr. Merriman announced the November monthly Workshop Meeting will be held on the third 
week of this month due to the Thanksgiving Holiday – on November 18, 2015. 

He announced that the NLC Conference is now open for reservations.  The Conference is 
scheduled for March 5 – 9, 2016. 

The final Centennial Open House Event will be held on December 10, 2015 from 4:00 - 6:00 
p.m. at City Hall. 

7



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – November 17, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 
 

Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff  
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the Council with an update on the Clean Water Facility  
Project.   
 
Mayor 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao commented that the poor weather conditions cleared during the 
groundbreaking ceremony at the Clean Water Facility Special Meeting at 3:00 p.m. today.  
 
Councilmembers 
 
Councilmember Munns announced the next AWC meeting will be held Friday, December 11, 
2015.  Ms. Munns commented on the Clean Water Facility Groundbreaking Ceremony this af-
ternoon.  Councilmember Munns reminded the citizen to support the Whidbey Help House this 
season. 
 
Councilmember Campbell informed the public that the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee will 
meet on Thursday and Friday afternoons of this week for applicant presentations.  The Commit-
tee’s goal is to present final fund awards at the December 1, 2015, Council Meeting for ratifica-
tion. 
 
Councilmember Almberg announced upcoming meetings and issues relating to the Island 
Transit Board. 
 
Councilmember Severns and Mayor-elect announced the EDC is working to ensure the NAS 
Whidbey Task Force remains in effect.  Councilmember Severns commented on Larry Cort’s 
goal to give back to the Community. He and his wife Lisbeth Cort established a scholarship 
fund, entitled “Dr. Larry Cort Scholarship Foundation.”  Councilmember Severns thanked the 
public for their contributions and support for the Scholarship.   
 
Councilmember Servatius commented on the success of the Special Meeting at the Clean Wa-
ter Facility Project Site this afternoon.  
 
Councilmember Hizon thanked staff for their work on the Clean Water Facility project.  Ms. 
Hizon asked that Mr. Pothilla share with the public whether the Thanksgiving Community Har-
vest needs volunteers.  Skip Pothilla provided additional volunteer information. Councilmember 
Hizon then provided an update regarding the Oak Harbor Youth Coalition.  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS 

 
2016 Property Tax Levy – Ordinance Numbers 1747 and 1748 
Dr. Merriman, City Administrator, provided the staff report.  
 
Public Hearing was opened at 6:46 p.m., no comments, closed at 6:46 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions of the proposed Ordinances.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Ordinance 1747, seconded by  
    Councilmember Almberg, unanimously approved.  

8



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – November 17, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to adopt Ordinance 1748, seconded by 
    Councilmember Campbell, majority approved.  
 
    Councilmember Severns voted against the motion. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called a fifteen (15) minute recess at 7:01 p.m. for Executive Session -
Discussion of Property Acquisition.    
 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao reconvened the meeting at 7:17 p.m.  The City Council took no action 
during Executive Session.  
 

ADJOURN 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Campbell,       

   unanimously approved.  
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m. 
            

 
Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

9



  
 
Workshop Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Workshop Meeting Minutes 

November 18, 2015 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers and staff introduced themselves. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
City Council Present:     Staff Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao   City Administrator/ Finance Director 
Councilmember Bob Severns    Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius   City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell   Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Rick Almberg   Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
       Captain of Police Teri Gardner 
       Human Resources Director Sara Piccone  

City Engineer Joe Stowell 
       Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
       Economic Development Coordinator Barbara  

Spohn 
       Executive Assistant to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
 
Councilmembers Hizon and Munns, and Mayor Scott Dudley were absent. 
          

1.  Departmental Briefings 
 

            a.   Clean Water Facility – Windjammer Park Integration Plan 
Development Director Steve Powers provided the staff report. 

 
2.  Pending Agenda Items 

a. WAIF Agreement  
City Administrator Dr. Merriman discussed the WAIF Agreement and terms with the Council. 
 

b. ICOM Agreement  
Dr. Merriman reported on the ICOM Agreement.  
 

c. Whidbey General Hospital Agreement for EMS Services  
Chief of Fire Ray Merrill provided the report on the pending agreement with Whidbey General, 
which is set for approval on December 1, 2015. 
 
 

10



  
 
Workshop Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 

d. Horse Drawn Carriages, Carts or Conveyances  
City Attorney Nikki Esparza explained the proposed addition to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code. 
 

e. Police Association (Union) Agreement for the Commissioned Unit  
Human Resources Director Sara Piccone announced that the Police Association and the City 
have reached an agreement for the Commissioned unit. This contract is scheduled for the De-
cember 1st Council Meeting.  
 

f. Agreement with Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided a brief presentation regarding a proposed agree-
ment with Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers and the City. 
 

3.  Emerging Issues 
 

a. Council Vacancy on January 1, 2016 – Legal  
City Attorney Nikki Esparza explained the Council Vacancy procedure as required by State Law. 
 
Members of the Council discussed the proposed procedures. 
 

b. Storm Event Update 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided an update regarding the most recent storm. 

 
ADJOURN 

 
Meeting adjourned at approximately 4:15 p.m. 
     

Notes taken by Kellye Mazzoli, prepared by          
Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

11



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature cover sheets is attached. Claim cover sheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.b
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature cover sheets is attached. Claim cover sheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature cover sheets is attached. Claim cover sheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 164441 - 164594 in the amount of $889,192.49.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit numbers 36360 - 36516.

- EFT check numbers 760 - 764.

- Payroll Check numbers 98442 - 98495.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

documentation that regularly supports the signature cover sheets is attached. Claim cover sheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 164441 - 164594 in the amount of $889,192.49.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit numbers 36360 - 36516.

- EFT check numbers 760 - 764.

- Payroll Check numbers 98442 - 98495.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

12



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)

13

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448324979_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448483589_at.pdf


11/16/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

12:07:27PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164441 11/16/2015 0004906  CHURCHILL RENTAL Ref000228616 UB Refund Cst #00120024  4.59

 7.11UB Refund Cst #00124387Ref000228619

 36.49UB Refund Cst #00124397Ref000228620

 52.06UB Refund Cst #00124290Ref000228621

 2.52UB Refund Cst #00124431Ref000228622

 180.27UB Refund Cst #00166657Ref000228637

Total :  283.04

 164442 11/16/2015 0008004  CONNERS, PATRICIA JOANNE Ref000228625 UB Refund Cst #00147890  206.02

Total :  206.02

 164443 11/16/2015 0008011  FAULKNER, COLTON Ref000228634 UB Refund Cst #00164291  133.46

Total :  133.46

 164444 11/16/2015 0008015  FREIBERG, GARY Ref000228639 UB Refund Cst #00167994  138.38

Total :  138.38

 164445 11/16/2015 0008010  GONZALES, JOHN Ref000228633 UB Refund Cst #00163893  148.19

Total :  148.19

 164446 11/16/2015 0008003  GROEBLI, JEFFREY M Ref000228624 UB Refund Cst #00125444  155.22

Total :  155.22

 164447 11/16/2015 0008006  JEFFREY, LENZ Ref000228628 UB Refund Cst #00155364  124.07

Total :  124.07

 164448 11/16/2015 0008014  MAUCH, EMILY Ref000228638 UB Refund Cst #00167003  9.33

Total :  9.33

 164449 11/16/2015 0008007  MUSCUTT, BRYCE Ref000228630 UB Refund Cst #00161086  138.39

Total :  138.39

 164450 11/16/2015 0008005  OSBORN, BARRY Ref000228626 UB Refund Cst #00148998  119.55

Total :  119.55

 164451 11/16/2015 0008002  PETERS, ROBERT Ref000228623 UB Refund Cst #00125104  41.72

1Page:

14



11/16/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

12:07:27PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  41.72 164451 11/16/2015 0008002 0008002  PETERS, ROBERT

 164452 11/16/2015 0008001  PURDUE, ROGER OR SARA Ref000228618 UB Refund Cst #00123899  119.72

Total :  119.72

 164453 11/16/2015 0008013  QUINN, PATRICK Ref000228636 UB Refund Cst #00165700  110.31

Total :  110.31

 164454 11/16/2015 0001365  TARA PROPERTIES Ref000228629 UB Refund Cst #00160113  158.37

Total :  158.37

 164455 11/16/2015 0008012  VANRENS, BERTON Ref000228635 UB Refund Cst #00164835  140.30

Total :  140.30

 164456 11/16/2015 0008009  WALKER, DONNA Ref000228632 UB Refund Cst #00163556  138.39

Total :  138.39

 164457 11/16/2015 0001391  WINDERMERE Ref000228617 UB Refund Cst #00121271  424.38

 56.15UB Refund Cst #00151874Ref000228627

Total :  480.53

 164458 11/16/2015 0008008  WINTER, CHARLES Ref000228631 UB Refund Cst #00161523  122.32

Total :  122.32

Bank total :  2,767.31 18 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 2,767.31Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 18

2Page:

15



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164459 11/16/2015 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 00773 REGISTRATION/LINDENBURG  195.00

Total :  195.00

 164460 11/16/2015 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 00772 REGISTRATION/LEFEVRE  195.00

Total :  195.00

 164461 11/18/2015 0000673  OAK HARBOR MOTORS 111815 VEHICLE PURCHASE  14,269.68

Total :  14,269.68

 164462 11/25/2015 0006845  48 NORTH 34533 ADVERTISING  555.00

Total :  555.00

 164463 11/25/2015 0000004  A+ AUTO GLASS & RADIATOR 45746 ROCK CHIP REPAIR  43.48

Total :  43.48

 164464 11/25/2015 0000007  AA ELECTRIC 9325 TRANSFER SWITCH  173.92

Total :  173.92

 164465 11/25/2015 0000020  AERVOE INDUSTRIES 2015-081015-00 MARKING CHALK  220.04

Total :  220.04

 164466 11/25/2015 0000029  ALL PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 952-775669 NO CONTACT BLOCK  20.72

Total :  20.72

 164467 11/25/2015 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 OCT 2015/WATER PURCHASED  129,500.00

 1,235.88OCT 2015/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01

 10,734.27OCT 2015/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02

Total :  141,470.15

 164468 11/25/2015 0007606  ANDREWS, KIM TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  68.08

Total :  68.08

 164469 11/25/2015 0003091  ANDRICOS, JOANN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  29.00

Total :  29.00

 164470 11/25/2015 0005550  ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS 112415 SCULPTURE PAYMENT  23,132.99

1Page:

16



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  23,132.99 164470 11/25/2015 0005550 0005550  ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS

 164471 11/25/2015 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 163832 PEST CONTROL  108.70

Total :  108.70

 164472 11/25/2015 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0821029-IN FUEL  5,593.79

Total :  5,593.79

 164473 11/25/2015 0008038  B2 EQUIPMENT CO, INC 10038 STORAGE TANK  352.19

Total :  352.19

 164474 11/25/2015 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 169900 PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE  461.31

 460.81PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE169901

 445.81PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE169902

 275.42PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE169903

 1,140.32PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE169904

Total :  2,783.67

 164475 11/25/2015 0008036  BECKER, PAT 1 TRAVEL REFUND  138.00

Total :  138.00

 164476 11/25/2015 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 166604 PAD/COVER  499.40

Total :  499.40

 164477 11/25/2015 0002821  BOISSONNEAULT, THERESA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  29.00

Total :  29.00

 164478 11/25/2015 0002993  CAMPBELLS LODGE, INC 2694 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/GREEN  395.88

Total :  395.88

 164479 11/25/2015 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 458454 SUPPLIES  326.15

 593.51SUPPLIES502203

Total :  919.66

 164480 11/25/2015 0006215  CAROLLO 0144648 PROF SVC/WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PREL 195,146.66

Total :  195,146.66

 164481 11/25/2015 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 NATURAL GAS/210  10.60

2Page:

17



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164481 11/25/2015 (Continued)0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS

 130.19NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004

 16.51NATURAL GAS/20811829220273

 71.36NATURAL GAS/20712470743597

 11.45NATURAL GAS/20513275491754

 520.98NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

 135.75NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 11.45NATURAL GAS/20245420760055

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20157309970234

 228.89NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 216.46NATURAL GAS/20462337906945

 51.96NATURAL GAS/20967984882349

 552.03NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 38.65NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

 49.80NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  2,067.28

 164482 11/25/2015 0005889  CASCADE RECREATION, INC 7029 WASTE BAGS  252.71

Total :  252.71

 164483 11/25/2015 0000157  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC BBD4163 LED COMMERCIAL  1,354.79

 136.35COVERBCC8619

 330.62WALL MOUNT LCD ARMBCD2406

Total :  1,821.76

 164484 11/25/2015 0006063  CELLEBRITE USA, INC 163967 SOFTWARE SUPPORT  3,300.42

Total :  3,300.42

 164485 11/25/2015 0008030  CHAVEZ, STEPHANIE TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  86.83

Total :  86.83

 164486 11/25/2015 0000169  CHEYENNE LIVESTOCK & PRODUCTS 29733 METAL BEARINGS  239.14

Total :  239.14

 164487 11/25/2015 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 29825 TOWING SERVICES  194.57

Total :  194.57

3Page:

18



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164488 11/25/2015 0005773  COMCAST 8498300290363841 INTERNET  228.98

Total :  228.98

 164489 11/25/2015 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 1434608 CY 0155A  364.56

Total :  364.56

 164490 11/25/2015 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-77915 HOSE/TURBO  4,026.24

 210.73WASHERS/SEAL/TUBE001-78748

 52.09OIL DRAIN TUBE018-95620

 67.65SENSOR018-98521

Total :  4,356.71

 164491 11/25/2015 0007903  DANIEL, NIKKI 1471 MOORAGE REFUND  107.52

Total :  107.52

 164492 11/25/2015 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 15-23704 TESTING  181.00

 193.00TESTING15-24071

 18.00TESTING15-24370

 300.00TESTING15-24414

Total :  692.00

 164493 11/25/2015 0004164  EH WACHS COMPANY INV116113 UTILITY HYDRO-VAC  58,731.98

Total :  58,731.98

 164494 11/25/2015 0001789  ESPARZA, RONALD W TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  167.50

Total :  167.50

 164495 11/25/2015 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK21093 RND/STOCK  55.21

 110.77SAFETY GLASSWAOAK21396

 539.01GREASE GUN KIT/BATTERYWAOAK21423

 176.37BITS/BULK PKG/ESTWS/LOBEWAOAK21453

 17.99STAKE FLAG/SPANNER BITWAOAK21454

 110.09SDSWAOAK21464

 238.46SH BURR SETWAOAK21510

Total :  1,247.90

 164496 11/25/2015 0007929  FEHR PEERS 103832 PROF SVC/TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT  15,527.87

4Page:

19



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  15,527.87 164496 11/25/2015 0007929 0007929  FEHR PEERS

 164497 11/25/2015 0000314  FISHERIES SUPPLY COMPANY 3324884 OIL  44.28

Total :  44.28

 164498 11/25/2015 0000322  FOSTER PEPPER PLLC 42189/21 WATERWORKS UTILITY REVENUE BOND  13,750.00

Total :  13,750.00

 164499 11/25/2015 0001314  FRAME USA, INC 421305 NATURAL OAK  19.04

Total :  19.04

 164500 11/25/2015 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 113015 NOV 2015/ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 164501 11/25/2015 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  258.72

 118.04CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-2236

 70.23CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 64.45CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 59.10CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 73.59CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 35.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 28.80CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  708.04

 164502 11/25/2015 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 117384 PLANK  25.73

Total :  25.73

 164503 11/25/2015 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  361.00

Total :  361.00

 164504 11/25/2015 0007998  GOOD TO GO TB-159358734 TOLL BILL  5.75

Total :  5.75

 164505 11/25/2015 0008041  GRAVES, CAROLYN 1686 MOORAGE REFUND  105.45

Total :  105.45

 164506 11/25/2015 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 14624.00-0000005 PROF SVC/EXISTING CHLORINATION EQUIPMENT 154.56

5Page:

20



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  154.56 164506 11/25/2015 0002940 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC

 164507 11/25/2015 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8352 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  940.00

Total :  940.00

 164508 11/25/2015 0008040  GREEN, JIM 2556 MOORAGE REFUND  274.50

Total :  274.50

 164509 11/25/2015 0008033  GREEN, JOEL 5139 MOORAGE REFUND  220.20

Total :  220.20

 164510 11/25/2015 0004724  HARDER, CHICKO 1 TRAVEL REFUND  29.00

Total :  29.00

 164511 11/25/2015 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I4077873 PIPE/TEE/CAP/ELL/BALL VALVE/PRIMER  1,024.66

 175.98SWIVEL NUTI4081890

 58.42FREIGHTI4083018

 722.84METERSI4083294

 164.66BALL VALVEI4089199

Total :  2,146.56

 164512 11/25/2015 0000694  HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS E669367 GASKETS  302.23

-291.97GASKETSE776981

Total :  10.26

 164513 11/25/2015 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 56574615 MEMORY  86.09

 1,997.91COMPUTERS56584459

Total :  2,084.00

 164514 11/25/2015 0008031  HODGE CONSTRUCTION 111715 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  449.08

Total :  449.08

 164515 11/25/2015 0007709  HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OFC06 PROF SVC/OUTFALL  103,794.20

 36,620.56PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY PRECONSTRUP11

Total :  140,414.76

 164516 11/25/2015 0006047  HORIZON 2M042928 IGNITION SWITCH  60.76

6Page:

21



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  60.76 164516 11/25/2015 0006047 0006047  HORIZON

 164517 11/25/2015 0000253  ID TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 15040485 MONITORS  437.64

 3,213.03TABLETS15040486

 1,615.97TABLETS15040499

 1,615.97TABLETS15040500

Total :  6,882.61

 164518 11/25/2015 0005884  ISLAND COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES 3RD QTR 2015 3RD QTR 2015/EXCISE/PROFIT LIQUOR TAX  1,462.96

Total :  1,462.96

 164519 11/25/2015 0000412  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 112315 4TH QTR 2015/JOINT TOURISM  5,000.00

Total :  5,000.00

 164520 11/25/2015 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 090315 AUG 2015/COLLECTION CHARGES  13,806.80

 15,976.16SEP 2015/COLLECTION CHARGES100115A

 17,105.17OCT 2015/COLLECTION CHARGES110315

 102.41RECYCLING4161312

Total :  46,990.54

 164521 11/25/2015 0000441  ISLAND SYSTEMS 237531 WATER/MARINA  35.75

 14.30WATER/MARINA237763

Total :  50.05

 164522 11/25/2015 0000454  JET CITY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 20824 CONCRETE DUMPING  21.74

 21.74CONCRETE DUMPING20844

Total :  43.48

 164523 11/25/2015 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5037496MB ASPHALT  239.71

 289.29ASPHALT5103530MB

Total :  529.00

 164524 11/25/2015 0004361  LEMNA TECHNOLOGIES, INC 2531 LEMTEC FLOATING MODULAR COVER SYSTEM 13,345.10

Total :  13,345.10

 164525 11/25/2015 0007167  LEWIS, WAYNE 111815 SCULPTURE  3,000.00

Total :  3,000.00

7Page:

22



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164526 11/25/2015 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 111615 NOTARY RENEWAL/CHAVEZ-156749  30.00

Total :  30.00

 164527 11/25/2015 0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS 2129868-01 TIME SEAL SET UP  271.75

Total :  271.75

 164528 11/25/2015 0001701  LOCHMILLER, RICHARD 1 TRAVEL REFUND  17.00

Total :  17.00

 164529 11/25/2015 0002448  LOPER, MARGARET B 1 TRAVEL REFUND  15.00

Total :  15.00

 164530 11/25/2015 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  102.00

 93.00DRIVING SERVICES1

 66.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  261.00

 164531 11/25/2015 0005331  MAHONEY, MARY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  29.00

Total :  29.00

 164532 11/25/2015 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 107109 YARD WASTE  10.00

 7,484.00GARRY OAKS107488

Total :  7,494.00

 164533 11/25/2015 0008027  MALCOLM DRILLING COMPANY, INC 111015 BUSINESS LICENSE FEE REFUND  12.50

Total :  12.50

 164534 11/25/2015 0004752  MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY 3996986 SENSOR  163.48

Total :  163.48

 164535 11/25/2015 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 695694 GROCERIES  239.67

Total :  239.67

 164536 11/25/2015 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P42099 OCT 2015/POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  423.65

 3,056.53OCT 2015/POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTSP42100

Total :  3,480.18

 164537 11/25/2015 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 42099 OCT 2015/MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  243.05

8Page:

23



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  243.05 164537 11/25/2015 0006072 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC

 164538 11/25/2015 0000040  MATRIX 608407031 LONG DISTANCE  404.99

Total :  404.99

 164539 11/25/2015 0002291  MCYOUNG, MARY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  29.00

Total :  29.00

 164540 11/25/2015 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 111015 NOV 2015/HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,708.33

Total :  1,708.33

 164541 11/25/2015 0000538  MID AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL 0565280-IN OIL/SOLV/DEGREASER/CLEANER  547.32

Total :  547.32

 164542 11/25/2015 0008034  MOORE, KYLA MONIQUE 111915 CPL FEE REFUND  50.75

Total :  50.75

 164543 11/25/2015 0007699  MOUNT BAKER COUNCIL 111615 CHARTER RENEWAL  375.00

Total :  375.00

 164544 11/25/2015 0008039  NATIONAL FLUID POWER INSTITUTE 10121511 REGISTRATION/RILEY  1,195.00

Total :  1,195.00

 164545 11/25/2015 0002633  NEOPOST NORTHWEST NWDAR131268 INK CARTRIDGE  180.44

Total :  180.44

 164546 11/25/2015 0008028  NIXON PEABODY LLP 9711742 PROF SVC/DIRECT BOND PURCHASES  5,000.00

Total :  5,000.00

 164547 11/25/2015 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 260927 BULBS  20.09

 33.98GATE VALVES/NIPPLES/UNION262564

 20.60SNAPS262898

 29.01INSERTS/SILICONE263104

 71.66BATTERIES263120

 39.86FASTENERS/PLUG/BOLTS263133

 10.86KEY SET263135

 8.14SCREWS263150

 47.60FREIGHT263219

9Page:

24



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164547 11/25/2015 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 5.29PLUGS263245

 15.21COUPLE263277

 57.85COUPLE/ELBOW/BUSHING/PIPE263279

 10.85COUPLE/ELBOW263282

 22.55FREIGHT263286

 9.74ELBOWS263300

 19.56CABLE TIES263305

 21.16COUPLES263319

 8.67REDUCER/NIPPLE263322

 13.34ADAPTER/CONNECTOR263325

 26.04FASTENERS263419

 0.55FASTENERS263422

 21.72ADAPTERS263480

 79.20ROLLER/BRUSH/COVER263486

 132.29TOOLS/THINNER/FASTENERS/SCREWS263506

 72.58LOCK/WASHERS/FASTENERS263514

 35.81HOOKS/FASTENERS263521

 35.93FASTENERS263530

 37.71SWITCH/TIE WRAPS263534

 38.01PUTTY KNIVE/ROOF CEMENT263535

 20.15BUNGEE CORDS/SCREWS263566

 60.85PAINT263621

 14.11HOOK/CARWASH263637

 17.29FASTENERS263674

 5.40ADAPTER/ELBOW263893

Total :  1,063.66

 164548 11/25/2015 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-256858 FILTERS  78.44

 618.33CORES001-257083

-48.92CORES001-257091

 22.74WIPER BLADES001-257445

 502.55STEEARING GEAR BOX001-257499

 48.15FILTERS001-257502

 22.03FILTERS001-257511

 14.41BEAM001-257568

10Page:

25



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,257.73 164548 11/25/2015 0000668 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER

 164549 11/25/2015 0006743  OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE 113015 MARATHON SERVICES  3,000.00

Total :  3,000.00

 164550 11/25/2015 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 110515 SEPA CHECKLIST  548.00

Total :  548.00

 164551 11/25/2015 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 804753332001 MONITOR  252.72

 65.22DESKPAD CALENDARS805292044001

Total :  317.94

 164552 11/25/2015 0000688  OVERHEAD DOOR CO JS68512 ANNUAL DOOR MAINTENANCE  1,057.11

Total :  1,057.11

 164553 11/25/2015 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0093592 TIRES  85.72

 105.25TIRES0093593

 463.15TIRES0093798

Total :  654.12

 164554 11/25/2015 0001615  PART WORKS, INC 416240 GASKETS/WASHERS/RING  79.18

Total :  79.18

 164555 11/25/2015 0000699  PATRICK & COMPANY 910260 PET LICENSE TAGS  339.34

Total :  339.34

 164556 11/25/2015 0007610  PERKINS COIE, LLP 5397890 PROF SVC/CONSTRUCTION ADVICE  1,815.00

Total :  1,815.00

 164557 11/25/2015 0008032  PICCONE, MIKE EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  83.10

Total :  83.10

 164558 11/25/2015 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER 249662 SHIPPING  7.45

Total :  7.45

 164559 11/25/2015 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0030149-IN CLOSEOUT CHECKLIT CLEAR  57.38

 238.46CLASS 3 ORANGE W SLEEVES0030290-IN

11Page:

26



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  295.84 164559 11/25/2015 0000746 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT

 164560 11/25/2015 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 ELECTRICITY/DISPLT  1,455.02

 10.21ELECTRICITY/WIND200000919684

 2,376.05ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 12.58ELECTRICITY/EBATH200001097589

 21.46ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 194.38ELECTRICITY/30505 STATE ROUTE 20200002036164

 43.05ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 26.33ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.821780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT PUMP200002037261

 96.29ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST LF200002037501

 10.21ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 11.16ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 148.00ELECTRICITY/CMFTST200002723381

 17.09ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 99.71ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RESTRM200003459654

 26.12ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE SEWAGE200004342099

 74.74ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD LIGHT200004562878

 10.21ELECTRICTIY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.21ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 11.30ELECTRICITY/WKITCH200005461666

 4,659.12ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGOON200005933094

 13.94ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 99.42ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.21ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 17.09ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 35.13ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 123.26ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 16.38ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 60.81ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LIGHTS200010530240

 16.03ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200010530802

 186.08ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY #CAB200010531024

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP IRRIG200010531172

 118.27ELECTRICITY/CABI200010531354

 139.89ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

12Page:

27



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164560 11/25/2015 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 66.77ELECTRICITY/BALLPK200010699706

 483.87ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 52.53ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200011551930

 27.51ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.16ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 927.90ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 6,038.47ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 17.39ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 2,576.30ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 2,208.74ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 105.59ELECTRICITY/1570 SE PIONEER WAY LIFTST200013968405

 48.64ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 789.78ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 125.15ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVENUE200015618321

 71.13ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 323.56ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD STRTWR200017255619

 842.89ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 107.71ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347

 74.74ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD PUMP200017653656

 184.85ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415

 11.29ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 1,442.20ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

 31.71ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHTS200019043344

 45.26ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517

 32.38ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 630.50ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 11.21ELECTRICITY/KITEST200020308330

 35.87ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 26.78ELECTRICITY/TRAILER PK S END200022988147

 29.82ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 65.20ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 31.25ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTPMP200024715845

 115.85ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 145.89ELECTRCIITY/2725 NE GOLDIE ST220000598098

 77.00ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB RD220002244337

13Page:

28



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164560 11/25/2015 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 657.24ELECTRICITY/101220003651407

 812.16ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 19.54ELECTRICITY/1770 NE GOLDIE ST PUMP220005593946

 198.37ELECTRICITY/301 SE PIONEER WAY220005790955

 29.72ELECTRICITY/2900 N OAK HARBOR RD PUMP220007681624

 97.78ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010516

Total :  29,822.97

 164561 11/25/2015 0006762  RAINIER ENVIRONMENTAL 2019 TESTING  500.00

Total :  500.00

 164562 11/25/2015 0007885  REDNECK PROPERTIES, LLC 11302015 NOV 2015/PARKING LOT RENTAL  1,650.00

Total :  1,650.00

 164563 11/25/2015 0000781  SAFEWAY 439197 GROCERIES  24.87

Total :  24.87

 164564 11/25/2015 0007800  SEBRIS BUSTO JAMES 59328 PROF SVC/BARGAINING  2,324.00

Total :  2,324.00

 164565 11/25/2015 0002124  SEMINAR GROUP 111315 WEBINAR  450.00

Total :  450.00

 164566 11/25/2015 0000816  SHELL FLEET PLUS 0000000065163545511 FUEL  21.74

Total :  21.74

 164567 11/25/2015 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 141629 TRIMEC  239.26

 213.81LP-1 GALLON2037812

Total :  453.07

 164568 11/25/2015 0007890  SMARSH, INC INV00114597 ARCHIVING PLATFORM  207.00

Total :  207.00

 164569 11/25/2015 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC 0080941-IN DUMP VALVE  540.63

 228.73AIR FILTER INDICATOR0081174-IN

 1,312.30FILTER ELEMENT/PRESSURE0081185-IN

14Page:

29



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,081.66 164569 11/25/2015 0000843 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC

 164570 11/25/2015 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW666956 CITY NOTICES  56.07

 79.74CITY NOTICESWCW667393

 88.47CITY ORDINANCESWCW667511

 49.84DNS ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLISTWCW668267

Total :  274.12

 164571 11/25/2015 0004203  SRV CONSTRUCTION, INC 3 PROF SVC/AULT FIELD PUMP REPLACEMENT  20,376.32

Total :  20,376.32

 164572 11/25/2015 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3272216587 CLIPBOARD CASES  56.83

 131.59SOAP3272216588

 102.60TONER3272216590

 43.26FOLDERS3272216596

 65.55LAMINATING SUPPLIES3272216598

 123.34POST IT NOTES/STENO BOOKS/NOTEPADS/MOUSE3280816148

 181.39MARKERS/INK CARTRIDGE/PENCILS3280816150

 29.11SCISSORS/RIBBON3281394582

 3.85CLIPS3281394584

 70.64APC BACK-UPS3281394592

 101.74INK3281394593

-74.32CREDIT3283112291

 36.92HOLE PUNCH/TAPE3283112292

 157.59INK CARTRIDGE3283723975

 61.41MARKERS/RUBBERBANDS/DESKTOP3283723976

-5.48CREDIT3283723977

 61.15RUBBERBANDS/REFILLS3283723978

 502.49TONER3283723979

Total :  1,649.66

 164573 11/25/2015 0000856  STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE L111039 2015 AUDIT SERVICES FOR 2014  33,459.19

Total :  33,459.19

 164574 11/25/2015 0005786  STOWES SHOES & CLOTHING 0009686 BOOTS/FAKKEMA  165.96

Total :  165.96

 164575 11/25/2015 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1078477 PEST EXTERMINATION  30.44

15Page:

30



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164575 11/25/2015 (Continued)0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL

 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1078480

 32.61PEST EXTERMINATION1078487

 30.44PEST EXTERMINATION1078497

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1083134

 97.83PEST EXTERMINATION1083139

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1084237

Total :  354.38

 164576 11/25/2015 0007736  SYSTEMS FOR PUBLIC SAFETY, INC 27953 MAGNETIC MIC CONVERSION KIT  230.23

Total :  230.23

 164577 11/25/2015 0007265  THOMPSON, ANNA 112015 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

 108.69EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  128.69

 164578 11/25/2015 0000996  THOMSON REUTERS WEST 832739047 SUBSCRIPTION CHARGES  885.92

Total :  885.92

 164579 11/25/2015 0008016  TRIPLE D PUMP COMPANY 17295 DUPLEX LIFT STATION  13,096.00

Total :  13,096.00

 164580 11/25/2015 0006331  ULINE 72006805 RECYCLING RECEPT  62.19

Total :  62.19

 164581 11/25/2015 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W435 SHIPPING  22.50

 22.43SHIPPING0000A0182W445

 61.92SHIPPING0000A0182W455

Total :  106.85

 164582 11/25/2015 0001604  VANZYTVELD, LORRAINE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  29.00

Total :  29.00

 164583 11/25/2015 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9755256876 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  5,694.93

Total :  5,694.93

 164584 11/25/2015 0002557  WAGNER, CLIFF 1 TRAVEL REFUND  58.00

16Page:

31



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  58.00 164584 11/25/2015 0002557 0002557  WAGNER, CLIFF

 164585 11/25/2015 0000978  WALLACE, RICHARD EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  5,315.00

Total :  5,315.00

 164586 11/25/2015 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I16003052 BACKGROUND CHECKS  698.50

Total :  698.50

 164587 11/25/2015 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF40 PROF SVC/GENERAL  8,677.00

Total :  8,677.00

 164588 11/25/2015 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC S868877 AIR VALVE  120.64

 537.62CONTROLS868888

Total :  658.26

 164589 11/25/2015 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 259153 PARTS  1.96

 161.03STARTER265949

 19.01FHP BELT266605

Total :  182.00

 164590 11/25/2015 0008029  WHIDBEY GREEN COMM ASSOC 111015 WATER METER PERMIT REFUND  611.78

Total :  611.78

 164591 11/25/2015 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48089 BUSINESS CARDS/MORGAN  59.79

 357.19WINDOW ENVELOPES48105

 239.14BUSINESS CARDS48106

Total :  656.12

 164592 11/25/2015 0008037  WHITESMOKE, INC 899307000004661031 WRITER LIFTETIME LICENSE  2,099.30

Total :  2,099.30

 164593 11/25/2015 0008035  WILBURN, NOBUKO 1 TRAVEL REFUND  29.00

Total :  29.00

 164594 11/25/2015 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 701907534 SEP 2015/COPIER CHARGES  3,791.09

Total :  3,791.09

Bank total :  886,425.18 136 Vouchers for bank code : bank

17Page:

32



11/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

12:26:56PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 886,425.18Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 136

18Page:

33



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-38: Labor 
Agreement between The City of 
Oak Harbor and the Oak 
Harbor Police Association -
Commissioned Unit

FROM: Sara Piccone, Human Resources Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
To address and resolve the outstanding labor contract between The City of Oak Harbor and Oak 
Harbor Police Association – Commissioned Unit. The labor agreement will commence upon City 
Adoption through December 31, 2016.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.c
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-38: Labor 
Agreement between The City of 
Oak Harbor and the Oak 
Harbor Police Association -
Commissioned Unit

FROM: Sara Piccone, Human Resources Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
To address and resolve the outstanding labor contract between The City of Oak Harbor and Oak 
Harbor Police Association – Commissioned Unit. The labor agreement will commence upon City 
Adoption through December 31, 2016.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor and Oak Harbor Police Association – Commissioned Unit  Employees have 
engaged in mediation to address and resolve outstanding contract issues regarding agreement language, 
wages, benefits and the termination of the medical “opt out program.”

Pursuant to negotiations both parties have settled these outstanding issues the details of which are outlined 
below and in the attached documents:

 Labor Agreement between the City of Oak Harbor and Oak Harbor Police Association
Commissioned Unit Employees; and

 Appendix A – Wages

Wages

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor and Oak Harbor Police Association – Commissioned Unit  Employees have 
engaged in mediation to address and resolve outstanding contract issues regarding agreement language, 
wages, benefits and the termination of the medical “opt out program.”

Pursuant to negotiations both parties have settled these outstanding issues the details of which are outlined 
below and in the attached documents:

 Labor Agreement between the City of Oak Harbor and Oak Harbor Police Association
Commissioned Unit Employees; and

 Appendix A – Wages

Wages

34



Benefits

Employees receiving money considered to be “opt-out money” shall as of August 27, 2015 be covered 
by Resolution 13-27 whereby their “opt out money” payments will be included in their individual wage 
rate.

Bargaining unit employees paid “opt-out money” prior to August 27, 2015 and who did not enroll in any
city medical plan will be eligible for a medical enrollment.

Effective July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2016, employees enrolled in the HealthFirst Plan will pay the 
difference in premiums between the employer’s maximum contribution plan (HealthFirst 250) and their 
current plan, Health First.  Effective 2016 there shall be an open enrollment for 2017 plan selection 
afforded to bargaining unit employees offering the same choices as the City provides to unrepresented 

Contract Year COLA Market Longevity

2013 0% 0% Addition of 1.0% increase 
at 10 years

2014 2.0% 4.0% 1.0% increase

2015 2.0% 1.5% one-time increase in 
recognition of specialty 
pay

1.0% increase

2016 2.5% 0% 1.0% increase

Benefits

Employees receiving money considered to be “opt-out money” shall as of August 27, 2015 be covered 
by Resolution 13-27 whereby their “opt out money” payments will be included in their individual wage 
rate.

Bargaining unit employees paid “opt-out money” prior to August 27, 2015 and who did not enroll in any 
city medical plan will be eligible for a medical enrollment.

Effective July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2016, employees enrolled in the HealthFirst Plan will pay the 
difference in premiums between the employer’s maximum contribution plan (HealthFirst 250) and their 
current plan, Health First.  Effective 2016 there shall be an open enrollment for 2017 plan selection 
afforded to bargaining unit employees offering the same choices as the City provides to unrepresented 

Contract Year COLA Market Longevity

2013 0% 0% Addition of 1.0% increase 
at 10 years

2014 2.0% 4.0% 1.0% increase

2015 2.0% 1.5% one-time increase in 
recognition of specialty 
pay

1.0% increase

2016 2.5% 0% 1.0% increase

afforded to bargaining unit employees offering the same choices as the City provides to unrepresented 
staff.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Presented at November 18, 2015 Council Workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Council Bill
2. Resolution 15-38
3. Labor Agreement between the City of Oak Harbor and the Oak Harbor Police Association -
Commissioned Unit

afforded to bargaining unit employees offering the same choices as the City provides to unrepresented 
staff.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Presented at November 18, 2015 Council Workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Council Bill
2. Resolution 15-38
3. Labor Agreement between the City of Oak Harbor and the Oak Harbor Police Association -
Commissioned Unit

35

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447892822_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447690894_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447691148_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447691148_at.pdf


City of OakHarbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

Agenda Bill 

Bill No. 15.38 

Date:  November 18, 2015 

Subject: The City of Oak Harbor & Oak 

Harbor Police Association – 

Commissioned Unit Settlement 

Agreement  

FROM: Sara Piccone, Human Resource Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FORSUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 

_____ Scott Dudley, Mayor 

_____ Doug Merriman, City Administrator 

_____  Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

_____ Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form 

PURPOSE 

To address and resolve the outstanding labor contract between The City of Oak Harbor and Oak Harbor Police 

Association – Commissioned Unit. The labor agreement will commence upon City Adoption through December 

31, 2016. 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

The City of Oak Harbor and Oak Harbor Police Association – Commissioned Unit  Employees have engaged in 

mediation to address and resolve outstanding contract issues regarding agreement language, wages, benefits and 

the termination of the medical “opt out program.” 

Pursuant to negotiations both parties have settled these outstanding issues the details of which are outlined 

below and in the attached documents: 

Labor Agreement between the City of Oak Harbor and Oak Harbor Police Association Commissioned Unit 

Employees; and 

Appendix A – Wages 

Wages 

Contract Year COLA Market Longevity 

2013 0% 0% 0% 

2014 2.0% 4.0% Addition of 1.0% 

increase at year 10 year 

plus 1% increase at  year 

15 & 20 

2015 2.0% 1.5% one-time increase 

in recognition of 

specialty pay 

1.0% increase 

2016 2.5% 0% 1.0% increase 

36



City of OakHarbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

Agenda Bill 

Benefits 

Employees receiving money considered to be “opt-out money” shall as of August 27, 2015 be covered by 

Resolution 13-27 whereby their “opt out money” payments will be included in their individual wage rate. 

Bargaining unit employees paid “opt-out money” prior to August 27, 2015 and who did not enroll in any city 

medical plan will be eligible for a medical enrollment. 

Effective July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2016, employees enrolled in the HealthFirst Plan will pay the difference 

in premiums between the employer’s maximum contribution plan (HealthFirst 250) and their current plan, 

Health First.  Effective 2016 there shall be an open enrollment for 2017 plan selection afforded to bargaining 

unit employees offering the same choices as the City provides to unrepresented staff. 

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 

None 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt Resolution 15-38 adopting the labor agreement between The City of Oak Harbor (Employer) and; Oak 

Harbor Police Association – Commissioned Unit. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution 15-38 

Exhibit A- Labor Agreement between The City of Oak Harbor and the City of Oak Harbor Police Association’s 

– Commissioned Unit.

37



RESOLUTION NO. 15.38 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR ADOPTING THE LABOR 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR (EMPLOYER) AND OAK HARBOR POLICE 
ASSOCIATION – COMMISSIONED UNIT (UNION) .   

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor and Oak Harbor Police Association – Commissioned Unit labor agreement 

will commence upon Council approval and will terminate December 31, 2016;  and  

WHEREAS, The City of Oak Harbor and Oak Harbor Police Association – Commissioned Unit, have engaged 

in mediation and have settled the issues of agreement language, wage adjustments, benefits and the termination 

of the medical “opt out program” money for impacted employees in the bargaining unit. 

NOWTHEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor that: 

Section1.The labor agreement between The City of Oak Harbor (Employer) and; the Oak Harbor Police 

Association – Commissioned Unit, commencing upon Council approval, shall be adopted.   

Section2.This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and approval. 

PASSED and approved by the City Council this day of, 2015. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

________________________ _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Introduction: 

Adopted: 

Published:  

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-40: 2016 Lodging 
Tax Advisory Committee 
Awards for 2% Grant 
Applications

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 15-40.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On September 1, 2015, the City Council referred potential changes in the use of lodging tax (2%) funds 
to the City’s Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC). The Council set aside $150,000.00 for the 
2016 Grant Awards.  

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.d
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-40: 2016 Lodging 
Tax Advisory Committee 
Awards for 2% Grant 
Applications

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 15-40.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On September 1, 2015, the City Council referred potential changes in the use of lodging tax (2%) funds 
to the City’s Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC). The Council set aside $150,000.00 for the 
2016 Grant Awards.  2016 Grant Awards.  

The Lodging Tax Advisory Committee met on October 30th and on November 13th, 2015 to discuss 
State Law, policies and objectives to assist in the decision making process. During these initial meetings, 
the Committee drafted a Ranking Worksheet in an effort to provide objective criteria for decision-
making. On November 19th and 20th, the LTAC met to listen to applicant proposals for the use of 
lodging tax dollars.  Then on November 23, 2015 the Committee reviewed and discussed those 
proposals, and made recommendations on the use of these funds based on the approved Ranking 
Worksheets. Please see the meeting minutes attached.

The LTAC made their recommendations consistent with the limitations imposed on the use of these funds 
by state law. State statute limits the use of lodging tax dollars to the following:

 Tourism marketing;
 The marketing and operations of special events and festivals designed to attract tourists;
 Supporting the operations and capital expenditures of tourism-related facilities owned or operated 

by a municipality or public facilities district; and
 Supporting the operations of tourism-related facilities owned or operated by a nonprofit

organization.

2016 Grant Awards.  

The Lodging Tax Advisory Committee met on October 30th and on November 13th, 2015 to discuss 
State Law, policies and objectives to assist in the decision making process. During these initial meetings, 
the Committee drafted a Ranking Worksheet in an effort to provide objective criteria for decision-
making. On November 19th and 20th, the LTAC met to listen to applicant proposals for the use of 
lodging tax dollars.  Then on November 23, 2015 the Committee reviewed and discussed those 
proposals, and made recommendations on the use of these funds based on the approved Ranking 
Worksheets. Please see the meeting minutes attached.

The LTAC made their recommendations consistent with the limitations imposed on the use of these funds 
by state law. State statute limits the use of lodging tax dollars to the following:

 Tourism marketing;
 The marketing and operations of special events and festivals designed to attract tourists;
 Supporting the operations and capital expenditures of tourism-related facilities owned or operated

by a municipality or public facilities district; and
 Supporting the operations of tourism-related facilities owned or operated by a nonprofit

organization.

77



LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 67.28 authorizes cities to levy and collect a special excise tax of up to four percent for the 
furnishing of lodging. This statute chapter also requires the City’s legislative body to refer changes in the 
use of the lodging revenues to the LTAC. In turn, the LTAC choose makes recommendations for the use 
of revenue from the list of applicants applying for such funds. The legislative body may choose to make 
awards using the recommended amounts to all, some, or none of the candidates on this list.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-40
2. 2016 LTAC Applicant Ranking Worksheets
3. LTAC Minutes - 11/23/2015 (Draft)
4. LTAC Minutes - 11/20/2015
5. LTAC Minutes - 11/19/2015
6. LTAC Minutes - 11/13/2015
7. LTAC Minutes - 10/30/2015

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 67.28 authorizes cities to levy and collect a special excise tax of up to four percent for the 
furnishing of lodging. This statute chapter also requires the City’s legislative body to refer changes in the 
use of the lodging revenues to the LTAC. In turn, the LTAC choose makes recommendations for the use 
of revenue from the list of applicants applying for such funds. The legislative body may choose to make 
awards using the recommended amounts to all, some, or none of the candidates on this list.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-40
2. 2016 LTAC Applicant Ranking Worksheets
3. LTAC Minutes - 11/23/2015 (Draft)
4. LTAC Minutes - 11/20/2015
5. LTAC Minutes - 11/19/2015
6. LTAC Minutes - 11/13/2015
7. LTAC Minutes - 10/30/2015

78

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448476207_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448322372_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448324466_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448322397_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448322439_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448322453_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448322476_at.pdf


Resolution 15-40:  Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Recommendations for the 2016 Grant Program 
Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-40 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, ACCEPTING 
THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

FOR FUNDING THE 2016 LODGING TAX GRANT PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has imposed both the “basic” hotel-motel tax of 2% (RCW 
67.28.180) and the additional lodging tax of 2% (RCW 67.28.181) upon the sale of, or change 
made for the furnishing of lodging; and 
 
WHEREAS, cities with a population of 5,000 or more must establish a lodging tax advisory 
committee to ensure that interested parties have a forum for debating the merits of a proposed 
imposition of a lodging tax, proposed increase in a lodging tax rate, proposed removal of a tax 
exemption, or a proposed “change in use” of tax revenues. Proposals for change must be 
submitted to the lodging tax advisory committee for review and comment at least 45 days prior 
to taking action on the proposal; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor referred the proposed change in use of 
lodging funds for the 2016 Lodging Tax Grant Program to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee 
on September 1, 2015 and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee reviewed the applications submitted and 
hereby makes the following recommendations for funding to the City Council: 

1) Joint 2% Advisory Board for Whidbey & Camano Islands – $10,000.00.  Funds to be  
    used for Rolling Billboards on Whidbey-SeaTac Shuttles, including Marketing and      
    Advertising. 
 
2) Megan McClung Memorial Race – $5,000.00.  Funds to be used for Marketing,  
    Advertising and Operations Costs. 
 
3) North Whidbey Lion’s Club (31st Annual North Whidbey Car Show) – $3,000.00.   
    Funds to be used for Marketing, Advertising and Operations Costs. 
 
4) Oak Harbor Main Street – $3,500.00.  Funds to be used for Website Design,   
    Marketing, Advertising and Operations Costs. 
 
5) Oak Harbor Music Festival – $26,000.  Funds to be used for Marketing, Advertising  
    and Operations Costs. 
 
6) Whidbey Island Bicycle Club (Thanks Given’er Cyclocross Race) – $1,000.00.  Funds  
    to be used for Marketing, Advertising and Operations Costs. 
 
7) Whidbey Island Marathon/ Elks Lodge - $10,000.00.  Funds to be used for Marketing,  
    Advertising and Operations Costs. 
 
 

79



Resolution 15-40:  Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Recommendations for the 2016 Grant Program 
Page 2 of 2 
 

8) Chamber of Commerce (Marketing 365) – $67,500.00.  Funds to be used for  
    Marketing, Advertising and Operations Costs. 
 
9) Fidalgo Avenue Merchants Association (Pig Fest) – $6,000.  Funds to be used for  
    event Marketing, Advertising and Operations Costs. 
 
10) PBY Memorial Foundation – $15,000.00. Funds to be used for Marketing,  
      Advertising and Operations Costs. 
 
11) Whidbey Island Race Week – $3,000. Funds to be used for Marketing, Advertising  
      and Operations Costs. 

 
TOTAL: $150,000.00 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor 
accepts the recommendations of the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee to award lodging tax 
funding to the listed applicants for the amounts and specific uses as shown. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this 1st day of December, 2015. 
 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
________________________________ 
SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

80



 Applicant  Funds 
Requested 

1 Joint 2% Advisory Board (Sherrye Wyatt) $30,614.00  
 

2 Megan McClung Race (Re McClung) $9,100.00 
 

3 North Whidbey Lion’s Club (Terry Beatty) $5,000.00 
 

4 OH Main Street (Margaret Livermore) $7,000.00  
 

5 OH Music Festival (Margaret Livermore) $38,000.00  
 

6 Whidbey Island Bicycle Club (Matt Plush) $1,500.00 
 

7 Elks Lodge (Jason Wayne) $15,000.00 
 

8-11 Chamber of Commerce – Marketing  
(Christine Cribb) 

$67,500.00 
 

          Biking at the Bay $7,800.00 
          Movies in the Park $5,000.00 
          Island Ice $15,500.00 

12 Deception Pass Foundation (Terica Ginther) $1200.00 
 

13 Fidalgo Avenue Merchants  (Scott Fraser) $9,700.00 
 

14-15 PBY Memorial - Tourism (Wil Shellenberger) $53,575.00 
 
 

PBY Memorial - Marketing $18,500.00 
16 Whidbey Island Race Week (Schelleen 

Rathkopf) 
$8,500.00 
 

 

LTAC Funds available:            $150,000.00 

TOTAL monies requested:            $293,489.00 

 

81



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

Policy Objectives:

Potential to generate future 2% earnings - Preference is given to those activities which have the highest potential
    to generate future 2% revenues.  This preference follows State suggestions for sustainability and growth of 
    lodging tax revenues.

Days of event coverage - Preference is given, on a sliding scale, for those events covering multiple days potentially
     increasing the number of lodging nights.

Shoulder Season - Preference is given, on a sliding scale, to those events occurring during "off season" periods of time.
     This is to encourage event scheduling to spread activities during periods which are typically inactive.

New Project - A higher rating is given to new or startup activities as seed money to develop new events.  Accordingly,
     a sliding scale is used going from a rating of 5 for new activites to a rating of 1 for ongoing activities.

High Need - A higher rating is given to those activities demonstrating a high need for lodging tax support.  Will the event
     be unable to occur if lodging tax funding is not provided?"

Non-profit vs. For-profit - A preference is given to those non-profit organizations applying for funding versus for profit
     activities.

Full funding of event required - This non-rated item is a consideration tie-breaker in ranking between two similarly
     ranked activities.  Similar to High Need, the goal is to encourage activities to develop other sources of funding besides
     lodging taxes.

Note on Attendance - An overall preference may be given to activities which generate higher verifiable  attendance 
     numbers.

82



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$30,614.00Rolling Billboards  Joint 2% Advisory Board 

    40.33

83



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$9,100.00Megan McClung RaceMegan McClung Memorial

 31.33

84



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$5,000.0031st Annual Car ShowNorth Whidbey Lion's Club

     24

85



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$7,000.00Revitalize OH Main StreetOak Harbor Main Street

 47.33

86



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$38,000.00Music FestivalOak Harbor Music Festival

 38.92

87



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$1,500.00Thanks Given'er Cyclocross RaceWhidbey Island Bycicle Club

 34.33

88



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

 Whidbey Island Marathon                 $15,000.00Elks Lodge for City of Oak Harbor

  39.83

89



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$67,500.00Marketing 365Chamber of Commerce

    53

90



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$7,800.00Biking in the BayChamber of Commerce

   40.17

91



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$15,500.00Island IceChamber of Commerce

     42.5

92



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$5,000.00Movies in Park/First FridayChamber of Commerce

       35.66

93



RATING WORKSHEET

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$1,200.00
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year 

Deception Pass Foundation                    Information/Marketing

   27.83

94



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$53,575.00TourismPBY

    32

95



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$18,500.00MarketingPBY

        37.16

96



RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$9,700.00Pig FestFidalgo Avenue Merchants Association

        38.5

97



NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROJECT AMOUNT REQUESTED

         CHECKLIST

REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERATIONS

Sections 1- 5 Complete      Previous Award
Section 2 - Project Budget      If rejected, why?
Section 2 - Current Financials      Co-Sponsors
Organization Minutes (if applc)      Grants Pending?
Co-sponsor Description (if applc)      Project new or continuing?

RATING FACTORS (1-10, with 10 being highest)

A) Return on economic investment/benefit to the City?
           High - 10 Med - 5 Low - 2

B) General benefit to the City as a whole?
          Whole City - 10  Two Areas in City - 5        One Area in City - 1

C) Potential to generate future 2% revenue with lodging nights? (Circle one)
Strong - 5 4 3 2 1 - Minimal

D) How many days does the event cover?
         3+ days - 5 2 days - 3 1 day - 1

E) Promote Oct-May "Shoulder Season"?
         All Year - 10;   December - February - 10;    October - May - 7;    June - Sept. - 2

F) Matching funds as % of request?
          Maximum - 10 50% - 5 20% - 2 None - 0

G) New project - 5 Continuing Project - 1
Circle: YES or NO

H) Project need of LTAC Funding (will project be completed if NO money granted?)
High Need - 3 Moderate Need - 2 Minimal Need - 1

I) Full funding needed from Oak Harbor LTAC as described in application?
            Circle: YES or NO 

J) Non-profit - 5 For-profit - 1

TOTAL POINTS

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: $

Acitivites should:
Support sustainability of future Lodging Tax Revenues
Be targeted to activities having the potential to attract visitors from 50+ miles
Be able to accumulate data to complete year end JLARC report

Other Comments:  

$8,500.00

RATING WORKSHEET
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX - 2016 Grant Year 

Race WeekWhidbey Island Race Week

    31.66

98



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 23, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

November 23, 2015 – 1:30 p.m. 
 

Mayor’s Conference Room – Council Chambers 
865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

Board Staff 
 
Councilmember Jim Campbell - Chair 
Margaret Livermore 
Jason McFadyen 
Pete Franssen 
Ron Apgar 
Donald Macomb 

 
Dr. Merriman, City Administrator 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 

Absent: Robert Lundstrom 

1. Call to Order 

Councilmember Jim Campbell called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.   

2. New Business 

 a.   Approve Minutes of the November 20th Lodging Tax Advisory Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

 
Motion:  Margaret Livermore moved to approve the November 20th 2015 LTAC Minutes as  
   presented, seconded by Ron Apgar,  and the motion was unanimously approved. 
 
 b.        Award LTAC Funds to 2016 Applicants (subject to Council Approval) 
 
The Committee began by discussing applications that met the Lodging Tax policy goals – to 
attract visitors/heads in beds – and ones which did not.  
 
The Committee made the following awards: 
 
 1) Joint 2% Advisory Board    $10,000.00 
 2) Megan McClung Race    $5,000.00 
 3) North Whidbey Lion’s Club – Annual Car Show $3,000.00 
 4) Oak Harbor Main Street    $3,500.00 
 5) Oak Harbor Music Festival    $26,000.00 
 

99



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 23, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 6) Whidbey Island Bicycle Club – Cyclocross Race $1,000.00 
 7) Whidbey Island Marathon/ Elks Lodge  $10,000.00 
 8) Chamber of Commerce – Marketing  $67,500.00 
 9) Chamber of Commerce – Biking at the Bay $0 
 10) Chamber of Commerce – Movies in the Park $0 
 11) Chamber of Commerce – Island Ice  $0 
 12) Deception Pass Foundation    $0 
 13) Fidalgo Avenue Merchants – Pig Fest   $6,000.00 
 14) PBY Memorial – Tourism    $0 
 15) PBY Memorial Foundation – Marketing   $15,000.00 
 16) Whidbey Island Race Week   $3,000.00 
 
Total Awards - $150,000.00 
 
Motion:  Margaret Livermore moved to accept the amounts awarded for the 2016 Grant  
   Applicant List.  Motion seconded by Donald Macomb, unanimously approved.  
 
Motion:  Ron Apgar moved to present the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee’s 2016 Grant  
   Awards to City Council for ratification, seconded by Pete Franssen, unanimously  
   approved.  
 

3. Adjournment  

The meeting adjourned at 2:28 p.m. 

100



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
November 20, 2015 – 1:00 p.m. 

 
City Hall – Council Chambers 

865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

Board Staff 
 
Councilmember Jim Campbell - Chair 
Margaret Livermore 
Jason McFadyen 
Pete Franssen 
Ron Apgar 
Donald Macomb 

 
Dr. Merriman, City Administrator 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 

Absent: Robert Lundstrom 

1. Call to Order 

Councilmember Jim Campbell called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.   

2. Presentations 

a.       2016 Lodging Tax Grant Program Applicant Presentations 

The presentations began at 1:01 p.m.: 

 Chamber of Commerce, presented by Christine Cribb 

 Deception Pass Foundation, presented by Terica Ginther 

 Fidalgo Avenue Merchants, by Scott Fraser 

 PBY Memorial, provided by Wil Shellenberger 

 Whidbey Island Race Week, presented by Schelleen Rathkopf 

Committee Members asked follow up questions of each applicant.   

3. New Business 

 a.   Approve Minutes of the November 19th Lodging Tax Advisory Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

 
Motion:  Ron Apgar moved to approve the November 20th 2015 LTAC Minutes as presented,  
   seconded by Donald Macomb,  and the motion was unanimously approved. 

101



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 b.      Review and score Applicant Presentations 
 
Following the presentations, the Board reviewed the presentations and scored each applicant 
based on the approved Rating Worksheet.   
 
The Board discussed scoring strategies for awarding monies to applicants at the next Special 
Meeting. 
 

4. Adjournment  

The meeting adjourned at 2:43 p.m. 

102



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
November 19, 2015 – 1:30 p.m. 

 
City Hall – Council Chambers 

865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

Board Staff 
 
Councilmember Jim Campbell - Chair 
Margaret Livermore 
Jason McFadyen 
Pete Franssen 
Ron Apgar 
Donald Macomb 

 
Dr. Merriman, City Administrator 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Assistant to the Mayor 

Absent: Robert Lundstrom 

1. Call to Order 

Councilmember Jim Campbell called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.  The Board introduced 

themselves for the applicants present. 

2. Presentations 

a.       2016 Lodging Tax Grant Program Applicant Presentations 

The presentations began at 1:32 p.m.: 

 Joint 2% Advisory Board, presented by Sherrye Wyatt 

 Megan McClung Race, presented by Re McClung 

 North Whidbey Lion’s Club, presented by Terry Beatty 

 Oak Harbor Main Street, presented by Margaret Livermore 

 Oak Harbor Music Festival, by Margaret Livermore 

 Whidbey Island Bicycle Club, given by Matt Plush 

 Elks Lodge, presented by Jason Wayne 

Committee Members asked follow up questions of each applicant.   

 

 

103



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 19, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

3. New Business 

 a.   Approve Minutes of the October 30th and November 13th Lodging Tax Advisory 
Committee Meeting Minutes 

 
Motion:  Jason McFadyen moved to approve the October 30th and November 13th 2015 LTAC  
                 Minutes as presented, seconded by Ron Apgar, and the motion was unanimously  
   approved. 
 
 b.      Review and score Applicant Presentations 
Following the presentations, the Board reviewed the presentations and scored each applicant 
based on the approved Rating Worksheet.   
 

4. Adjournment  

The meeting adjourned at 3:07 p.m. 

104



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 13, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
November 13, 2015 – 1:00 p.m. 

 
City Hall – Mayor’s Conference Room 

865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

Board Staff 
 
Councilmember Jim Campbell - Chair 
Margaret Livermore 
Jason McFadyen 
Pete Franssen 
Ron Apgar 
Dana Beckman 

 
Dr. Merriman, City Administrator 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 

Absent: Robert Lundstrom 

 

Councilmember Jim Campbell called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m. 

1. Review Rating Worksheet 

 Dr. Merriman introduced the item and the Committee reviewed the worksheet.  

Members made comments and changes to the draft worksheet provided. 

2. Discuss Policies for the 2016 Grant Program Selection Process 

 Committee Members discussed policies for the 2016 Grant Selection process. The 

members decided to add the policies to the Rating Worksheet.  

3. Schedule Oral Presentations  

              All applicants who submitted applications wish to make oral presentations before the 

LTAC Board. The Board scheduled approximately half of the 12 applicants on November 19, 

from 1:30 – 4:00 p.m. and the other half on November 20th from 1:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m.   

 After all presentations have been presented on the 19th and 20th, the Committee will 

review and rank each applicant using the approved Rating Worksheet.  The Committee will 

render one final Ranking Sheet per application.  

105



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 13, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 If more time is needed to make final monetary award decisions, the board may 

schedule another Special Meeting on November 23rd from 1:30 - 3:00 p.m. The Lodging Tax 

Committee will presented the final award decisions to City Council at the December 1, 2015 

Council Meeting. 

4. Set Oral Presentation Guidelines 

              Five (5) minutes per application is allowed.  Following the presentation, the Members 

will have up to Five (5) minutes for question and answer for each applicant. 

  

ADJOUNRMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 1:49 p.m. 

106



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – October 30, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
SPECAIL MEETING MINUTES 

October 30, 2015 – 1:00 p.m. 
 

City Hall – Mayor’s Conference Room 
865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Board Staff 

 
Councilmember Jim Campbell - Chair 
Margaret Livermore 
Jason McFadyen 
Pete Franssen 
Ron Apgar 
Robert Lundstrom – arrived at 1:18 p.m. 

 
Dr. Merriman, City Administrator 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 

 

1. Discuss the Duties of the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee 

 Councilmember Jim Campbell called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m., then asked Dr. Merriman to 

address the discussion items. 

 Dr. Merriman explained the establishment of the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee and its purpose.  He 

informed the committee about the Lodging Tax moneys available as determined by the City Council at an 

earlier meeting this year.  

2. Question and Answer Regarding the 2016 Lodging Tax Program 

 Committee members and public attendees asked questions about the lodging tax monies and timelines 

of the 2016 application process. Dr, Merriman provided answers. 

3. Brief Review of the Applications Received – No Action  

 Following questions, Dr, Merriman explained that of the sixteen (16) applications received, four (4) 

were incomplete or marginal and asked whether the board wished to take action on the issue.  He also 

suggested using a scoring criteria worksheet during the selection process so that the members have objectives 

with which to grade and select applicants. 

 

 

107



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – October 30, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

Motion:   Ron Apgar moved to allow one week (deadline November 6th) for applicants that filed  
incomplete/marginal applications to resubmit complete applications, which are     applicant 
numbers 6, 7, 8 & 10 [Elks Lodge (Marathon), Fidalgo Avenue Merchants Association (Pig Fest), Joint 
2% advisory Board, and North Whidbey Lion’s Club (Car Show)].  Within the one week allowance 
period, an applicant may seek guidance from city staff in order to fill out a complete application. The 
motion was seconded by Jason McFadyen and unanimously approved.  

 
The Board Members tentatively scheduled another meeting for November 13. This meeting is set to 

specifically discuss implementation of ranking worksheets, overall principals and guidelines for the 2016 

application selection process, and rules for oral presentations.   

On November 20th, oral presentations will be heard.  November 19th may be added for oral testimony if 

needed.  

4. Open Public Meetings Act & Public Records Act Training 

The Board Members participated in the Washington Attorney General’s Office Open Public Meetings 

Act Training and Public Records Act Trainings through the online video trainings.   

ADJOUNRMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 2:35 p.m. 

108



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Professional Services Agreement 
with Jack Kerr for Indigent 
Defense Screening Srvices 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Agreement as submitted and authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreement with Jack Kerr for 
Public Defense Administration services.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Pursuant to the 6th Amendment to the United States Constitution, every person charged with a crime for 
which jail time is a potential penalty and who is unable to pay the cost of an attorney is entitled to have an
attorney appointed to represent them at public expense.  Washington law (Chapter 10.101 RCW) places
an obligation to pay for public defense services for indigent defendants upon the charging jurisdiction. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.e
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Professional Services Agreement 
with Jack Kerr for Indigent 
Defense Screening Srvices 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Agreement as submitted and authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreement with Jack Kerr for 
Public Defense Administration services.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Pursuant to the 6th Amendment to the United States Constitution, every person charged with a crime for 
which jail time is a potential penalty and who is unable to pay the cost of an attorney is entitled to have an 
attorney appointed to represent them at public expense.  Washington law (Chapter 10.101 RCW) places 
an obligation to pay for public defense services for indigent defendants upon the charging jurisdiction. an obligation to pay for public defense services for indigent defendants upon the charging jurisdiction. 
Therefore, the City is required to determine whether a person qualifies for a public defense. 

The City’s current Agreement for Public Defense Administration Services is with Jack Kerr, and will 
expire on December 31, 2015.  Mr. Kerr has served as the Public Defense Administrator since January
1, 1999 and review of the services, as required and provided by Mr. Kerr, indicates that they are of the 
highest quality. Mr. Kerr is agreeable to a one-year renewal to provide screening services for indigent 
defense.

The proposed Agreement is for one year, and after execution the agreement will terminate on December
31, 2016.  Compensation remains unchanged, at $1,400 per month.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
$1,400 per month or $16,800 per year

Fund: 001 General (Court)

an obligation to pay for public defense services for indigent defendants upon the charging jurisdiction. 
Therefore, the City is required to determine whether a person qualifies for a public defense. 

The City’s current Agreement for Public Defense Administration Services is with Jack Kerr, and will 
expire on December 31, 2015.  Mr. Kerr has served as the Public Defense Administrator since January 
1, 1999 and review of the services, as required and provided by Mr. Kerr, indicates that they are of the 
highest quality. Mr. Kerr is agreeable to a one-year renewal to provide screening services for indigent 
defense.

The proposed Agreement is for one year, and after execution the agreement will terminate on December 
31, 2016.  Compensation remains unchanged, at $1,400 per month.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
$1,400 per month or $16,800 per year

Fund: 001 General (Court)

109



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Agreement with Jack Kerr

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Agreement with Jack Kerr

110

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448408364_at.pdf


2015 Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Services 
Page 1 of 9 
 

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

AND JACK KERR  
 FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement’) is made and entered into by and between the City of Oak 
Harbor, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and Jack Kerr, a Washington State 
Sole Proprietor (“Consultant”). 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performances 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with Consultant services regarding 
screening applicants to determine whether such individuals qualify for appointment of an 
attorney at the City’s expense to defend against criminal charges brought by the City as described 
in Article II. The general terms and conditions of the relationship between the City and the 
Consultant are specified in this Agreement. 
 
 ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference 
(“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks outlined in 
the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in the Scope of 
Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with the standards 
of the Consultant’s profession. 
 
 ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 
 
III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Consultant shall accept minor changes, 

amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the 
City when such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed 
delivery schedule.  Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in 
cost or schedules will be addressed as follows: 

 
 Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Consultant perform work or render 

services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services.  Such work will be 
considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope 
thereof.  All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared by the Consultant at no 
cost to the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until executed 
in writing by the parties. 

111



2015 Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Services 
Page 2 of 9 
 

 
III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS.  The work product and all documents 

produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and upon 
completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Consultant 
will be responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted 
by the City.  Work product includes but it not limited to the following records as 
described Exhibit A, section 2: Invoices, Monthly Reports, Promissory Notes, Intake 
Forms, and State Indigency Forms.  The Consultant shall deliver all original work product 
records to the City for retention.  

 
 In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 

Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work 
product of the Consultant, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or 
termination, shall become the property of the City.  Upon request, the Consultant shall 
tender the work product and summary to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a 
prerequisite to final payment under this Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be 
prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

 
 Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement 

or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this 
Agreement without the written authorization of Consultant. 

 
III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2016 and shall 

terminate at midnight, June 30, 2017.  The parties may extend the term of this Agreement 
by written mutual agreement. 

 
III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be 

assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 
 
III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in the 

performance of any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, 
shall be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and all 
claims that may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any 
said employees while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a 
consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the Consultant or its 
employees while so engaged in any of the work or services provided herein shall be the 
sole obligation of the Consultant. 

 
III.6 INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and 

hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all 
claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 

112



2015 Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Services 
Page 3 of 9 
 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to 
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of 
the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the 
Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the 
extent of the Consultant's negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood 
that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant's waiver of immunity 
under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. 
This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
III.7 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 

OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION.  The Consultant agrees to comply with equal 
opportunity employment and not to discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for 
employment or for services because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital 
status, sex, sexual orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational 
qualification with regard, but not limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; 
demotion or transfer; recruitment or any recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for training, rendition of services.  
The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous 
places, setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant 
understands and agrees that if it violates this nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement 
may be terminated by the City, and further that the Consultant will be barred from 
performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a showing is made 
satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and that 
recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

 
III.8 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this Agreement, 

the Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment 
practices. 

 
III.9 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local 

laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Consultant 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be 
performed and that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this 
Agreement are fully qualified and properly licensed to perform the work to which they 
will be assigned.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with 
the laws of Washington.  Venue for any litigation commenced relating to this Agreement 
shall be in Island County Superior Court. 

 
III.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

 
a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the Consultant is 

an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his 

113



2015 Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Services 
Page 4 of 9 
 

status as an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services 
required under this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part 
independent contractor test set forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.  
The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for 
carrying out and accomplishing the services required under this Agreement.  The 
Consultant shall make no claim of City employment nor shall claim any related 
employment benefits, social security, and/or retirement benefits. 

 
b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, and 

assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security 
tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions 
from income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a 
result of this Agreement.  In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a 
result of this Agreement, the Consultant shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 
c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent 

contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs 
hereunder. 

 
d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business license 

from the City. 
 

III.11 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the City of 
any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant’s client base and shall obtain written 
permission from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or 
potential conflict of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a 
conflict is irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 

 
III.12 CITY CONFIDENCES.  The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict confidence, 

and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any 
information regarding the City or services provided to the City. 

 
III.13 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULTANTS. 

 
a. The Consultant shall be responsible for all work performed by 

subcontractors/subConsultants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subConsultants they directly 

hire meet the responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a 
subcontractor/subConsultant has proper license and bonding, if required by 
statute, must be included in the verification process.  

 
c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subConsultants without 

the written approval of the City.  The Consultant must obtain said consent from 
the City not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of any proposed 

114



2015 Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Services 
Page 5 of 9 
 

assignment. The City reserves the right to reject without cause any such 
assignment. 

 
 
 ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 
 
IV.1 PAYMENTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City for services rendered under this 
Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as provided in this section.  
In no event shall the compensation paid to Consultant under this Agreement 
exceed One Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($1,400.00) without the written 
agreement of the Consultant and the City.  Such payment shall be full 
compensation for work performed and services rendered and for all labor, 
materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work.  In 
the event the City elects to expand the scope of services from that set forth in 
Exhibit "A", the City shall pay Consultant a mutually agreed amount. 

 
b. The Consultant shall submit a monthly invoice to the City for services performed 

in the previous calendar month in a format acceptable to the City.  The Consultant 
shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City upon 
request. 

 
c. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before the 

20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent 

contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the 
approval of the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been 
completed in compliance with the Scope of Services and City requirements. 

 
IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS.  The Consultant shall maintain all 

books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices.  All such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall 
be subject to inspection and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington 
State Auditor at all reasonable times, and the Consultant shall afford the proper facilities 
for such inspection and audit.  Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State 
Auditor may copy such books, accounts and records where necessary to conduct or 
document an audit.  The Consultant shall preserve and make available all such books of 
account and records for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this 
Agreement.  In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any discrepancy in such 
financial records, the Consultant shall provide the City with appropriate clarification 
and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the 
discrepancy. 

 

115



2015 Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Services 
Page 6 of 9 
 

 
 
 
 
 ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 
 
V.1 NOTICES.  Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
  

 Mayor 
 City of Oak Harbor  
 865 SE Barrington Drive 
 Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 

 Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 
 

Jack Kerr 
2316 Busby Road 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

  
 Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 

notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 
 
V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement in 

whole or in part at any time upon thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to the 
Consultant. 

 
 If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 

shall pay the Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of 
termination in accordance with payment provisions of Section VI.1. 

 
V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation and 

compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

 
V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION.  This Agreement, together with 

attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the 
parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written 
or oral.  This Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written 
instrument properly signed by both parties. 

 
 
V.5 SEVERABILITY 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations 

116



2015 Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Services 
Page 7 of 9 
 

shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid. 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory provision 
of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be deemed 
modified to conform to such statutory provision. 

V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party hereto of 
any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not in 
default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof.  Leniency, delay or failure of 
either party to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of 
this Agreement, or to exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall 
not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, 
condition or right. 

V.7 FAIR MEANING.  The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair meaning and 
shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of authorship.  
This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE.  The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall lie in the 
Superior Court of Washington for Island County, Washington. 

V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same 
Agreement. 

V.11  AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT.  The 
undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to 
bind the parties for and on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 

 
DATED this ______ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR    Jack Kerr 
 
By______________________________  By _______________________________ 
Scott Dudley, Mayor     Jack Kerr, Consultant    

        
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 

117



2015 Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Services 
Page 8 of 9 
 

City Attorney 
 
Attest:   
 
      
City Clerk 
 

118



2015 Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Services 
Page 9 of 9 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
1. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is for the Consultant to furnish services to the 

City to fulfill the City’s responsibility for public defense administrative services for 
defendants charged with crimes in the City Municipal Court. 
 

2. Responsibilities of Consultant. To fulfill its responsibilities under this Agreement, the 
Consultant agrees to do the following: 

a. Screen applicants to determine whether they qualify for appointment of an 
attorney at City’s expense to defend against criminal charges brought by the City. 
Screening services include telephone reception for setting up screening 
appointments which may be held in a jail if a defendant is incarcerated, furnishing 
and having an applicant complete a financial affidavit and verifications, review of 
the completed affidavit and verification and a determination of eligibility for City-
paid attorney services based upon Washington State Standards of Indigency 
established by the Washington Administrator for the Courts. For those determined 
to be “indigent with the ability to pay,” the Consultant will provide a promissory 
note for the defendant to sign to pay a portion of the cost of the City’s expense of 
furnishing legal counsel for the defendant.  

 
b.  Pursuant to RCW 10.101.020(3), any information provided by the accused for a 

determination of indigency shall be confidential and shall not be available to the 
prosecution in the pending case or cases. 

 
c.  Upon the Consultant’s determination that the applicant does not qualify for City -

paid legal defense, the Consultant will notify the applicant of his or her right to 
appeal the determination to the Municipal Court Judge and upon request from the 
Court, the consultant will furnish the Court a copy of the defendant's application. 

 
d.  When the defendant is determined to be eligible, the Consultant will refer the 

Defendant to the City’s contracted Chief Public Defender for representation. The 
Chief Public Defender shall make the case assignment. 

 
e.  Prepare the form “Notification of Determination of Indigency” and distribute to 

the Municipal Court and City-contracted Chief Public Defender. 
 
f. Invoice. Furnish a fee claim form to the City Clerk at the end of each month 

assuring that the work has been completed. 
 
g. Monthly Report. Collect and compile data on a monthly basis relating to 

applicants determined to be eligible for indigent defense services, including the 
following: date of appointment for indigent defense, the attorney appointed, cause 
number(s), charges, whether the appointment denied, and whether the 
appointment was made by the Judge. 

119



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Senior Services of Island County 
Professional Services Contract

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign a one-year professional services agreement with Senior Services of Island 
County for professional and administrative services for nutrition and Information and Assistance 
programs.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents a professional services contract with Senior Services of Island County for 
nutrition and information and assistance programs.  The contract term is for one year.

The City of Oak Harbor has financially supported senior programs since 1974, initially with Island 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.f
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Senior Services of Island County 
Professional Services Contract

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign a one-year professional services agreement with Senior Services of Island 
County for professional and administrative services for nutrition and Information and Assistance 
programs.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents a professional services contract with Senior Services of Island County for 
nutrition and information and assistance programs.  The contract term is for one year.

The City of Oak Harbor has financially supported senior programs since 1974, initially with Island The City of Oak Harbor has financially supported senior programs since 1974, initially with Island 
County and then with Senior Services of Island County (SSIC).  Since 2012, the City has paid $18,000 
annually to SSIC to help offset the costs of them providing the senior nutrition program and Information
and Assistance services. The City has also provided office, kitchen and dining room space at no charge 
to SSIC. The current agreement expires on December 31, 2015. 

Outside of the agreement, SSIC has provided funds to the Senior Center via the Oak Harbor Senior 
Center Foundation. These funds were part of a change in how Island County helped fund senior 
services.  In short, Island County discontinued direct contribution to the City and provided those funds to 
SSIC.  Through an informal agreement SSIC in turn provided funding to the City.  In 2015, those funds 
were equal to $33,000. The informal agreement had the annual amount decreasing by $5,000 per year;
2016’s contribution was to have been $28,000.  It is important to note that Senior Services of Island 
County is under no obligation to continue providing those funds and has indicated that they may be unable 
to do so in the future.

Staff from both SSIC and the City have met several times to discuss what the best contractual 
relationship may be for both organizations.  (Conversations have also been had with Island County staff.) 
The previous arrangement where both organizations paid the other, one through a contract and one 
through an informal agreement, was confusing at best.  Both staffs agree that simplifying the funding 
relationship is in the best interest of the agencies.  It was determined that the best way to achieve this goal

The City of Oak Harbor has financially supported senior programs since 1974, initially with Island 
County and then with Senior Services of Island County (SSIC).  Since 2012, the City has paid $18,000 
annually to SSIC to help offset the costs of them providing the senior nutrition program and Information 
and Assistance services. The City has also provided office, kitchen and dining room space at no charge 
to SSIC. The current agreement expires on December 31, 2015. 

Outside of the agreement, SSIC has provided funds to the Senior Center via the Oak Harbor Senior 
Center Foundation. These funds were part of a change in how Island County helped fund senior 
services.  In short, Island County discontinued direct contribution to the City and provided those funds to 
SSIC.  Through an informal agreement SSIC in turn provided funding to the City.  In 2015, those funds 
were equal to $33,000. The informal agreement had the annual amount decreasing by $5,000 per year; 
2016’s contribution was to have been $28,000.  It is important to note that Senior Services of Island 
County is under no obligation to continue providing those funds and has indicated that they may be unable 
to do so in the future.

Staff from both SSIC and the City have met several times to discuss what the best contractual 
relationship may be for both organizations.  (Conversations have also been had with Island County staff.) 
The previous arrangement where both organizations paid the other, one through a contract and one 
through an informal agreement, was confusing at best.  Both staffs agree that simplifying the funding 
relationship is in the best interest of the agencies.  It was determined that the best way to achieve this goal 

120



is for the City to no longer enter into a contract with SSIC that requires the payment of the $18,000.  
Similarly, SSIC will no longer provide the City any funding.  

The proposed professional services agreement (Attachment 1) provides for professional and 
administrative services for the same programs and services, at the same levels, at no cost to the City. The 
City will continue to offer office, kitchen and dining room space at no charge to SSCI, a donation value of 
$42,000 per year.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 35A.11.020 provides local legislative bodies the authority to provide cultural and recreational 
services and to contract for those services.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: None. 

In-kind donation of office, kitchen and dining room space is provided at a value of $42,000 per year.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented to the City Council at their October workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Professional Services Agreement

is for the City to no longer enter into a contract with SSIC that requires the payment of the $18,000.  
Similarly, SSIC will no longer provide the City any funding.  

The proposed professional services agreement (Attachment 1) provides for professional and 
administrative services for the same programs and services, at the same levels, at no cost to the City. The 
City will continue to offer office, kitchen and dining room space at no charge to SSCI, a donation value of 
$42,000 per year.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 35A.11.020 provides local legislative bodies the authority to provide cultural and recreational 
services and to contract for those services.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: None. 

In-kind donation of office, kitchen and dining room space is provided at a value of $42,000 per year.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented to the City Council at their October workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Professional Services Agreement

121

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448327523_at.pdf


Professional Services Contract - 1  

 

NUTRITION and INFORMATION & ASSISTANCE 

PROFESSIONAL SERVCIES AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into in duplicate this day of        by and 

between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR, a Washington municipal corporation, hereinafter 

referred to as the "CITY" and SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND COUNTY, a private non-

profit corporation, authorized to do business in the State of Washington, hereinafter referred 

to as the "SERVICE PROVIDER". 

 

RECITALS: 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY believes supporting programs aimed at providing assistance to the 

senior community is an important undertaking; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Nutrition and Information & Assistance programs are two areas where the 

focused expenditure of public monies can greatly benefit the senior community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY has provided partial funding for these programs for over 30 years; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the CITY cannot reasonably undertake the funding of these programs alone; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the SERVICE PROVIDER also receives funding for these programs from the 

Northwest Regional Council on Aging, Island County and private fundraising efforts; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY contribution to these programs can be utilized to offset the 

professional and administrative costs associated with operating these programs for the Oak 

Harbor senior community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to have certain services and/or tasks performed as set forth 

below requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified 

and possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities, including technical and 

professional expertise, where required, to perform the services and/or tasks set forth in this 

Agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performance 

contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

  

122



Professional Services Contract - 2  

 

1. Scope of Services. 

 

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall provide professional and administrative services 

necessary to support and provide Nutrition and Information & Assistance (I&A) 

services to the City of Oak Harbor that primarily serve senior residents of Oak 

Harbor. The professional and administrative services necessary to support the tasks 

and services set out in the scope of services detailed in Exhibit "A" attached hereto 

shall be performed throughout the term of this Agreement. 

The City shall provide the necessary space at the Senior Center premises located at 

51 SE Jerome Street in Oak Harbor for SERVICE PROVIDER to perform services 

as described in Exhibit “ A". 

 

2. Term. 

 

The professional services shall begin on January 1, 2016, and shall be completed no 

later than December 31, 2016, unless sooner terminated according to the provisions 

herein. 

 

3. Compensation  

 

3.1 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE 

PROVIDER except that the City shall provide office, kitchen and dining room 

space at the Senior Center, at no charge to the SERVICE PROVIDER. . 

 

4. Reports and Inspections. 

 

4.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER, at such times and in such forms as the CITY 

may require, shall furnish to the CITY such statements, records, reports, data, 

and information as the CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by 

this Agreement. SERVICE PROVIDER agrees to provide monthly reports in 

the form set out in Exhibit B. 

 

4.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain books, records and documents, 

which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to 

the performance of this Agreement. These records shall be subject at all 

reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit, by the CITY, its authorized 

representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized 

by law to monitor this Agreement. 

 

4.3 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall retain all books, records, documents and 

other material relevant to this Agreement, for six (6) years after its expiration. 

The SERVICE PROVIDER agrees that the CITY or its designee shall have 

full access and right to examine any of said materials at all reasonable times 

during said period. 

 

123



Professional Services Contract - 3  

5. Independent Contractor Relationship. 

 

5.1 The parties intend that an independent SERVICE PROVIDER/CITY 

relationship will be created by this Agreement. The CITY is interested 

primarily in the results to be achieved; subject to paragraphs herein, the 

implementation of services will lie solely with the discretion of the SERVICE 

PROVIDER. No agent, employee, servant or representative of the SERVICE 

PROVIDER shall be deemed to be an employee, agent, servant or 

representative of the CITY for any purpose, and the employees of the 

SERVICE PROVIDER are not entitled to any of the benefits the CITY 

provides for its employees. The SERVICE PROVIDER will be solely and 

entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, 

servants, subcontractors or representatives during the performance of this 

Agreement. 

 

5.2 In the performance of the services herein contemplated the SERVICE 

PROVIDER is an independent contractor with the authority to control and 

direct the performance of the details of the work, however, the results of the 

work contemplated herein must meet the approval of the CITY and shall be 

subject to the CITY'S general rights of inspection and review to secure the 

satisfactory completion thereof. 

 

6. Hold Harmless/Indemnification. 

 

6.1 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, 

officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, 

damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting 

from the acts, errors or omissions of the SERVICE PROVIDER in 

performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the 

sole negligence of the City. 

 

6.2 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement 

except as expressly provided herein. 

 

6.3 For purposes of this indemnification provision only, SERVICE PROVIDER 

expressly waives its immunity pursuant to Title 51 RCW for claims by its 

employees, officers, and agents arising out of SERVICE PROVIDER’s 

performance under this Agreement. 

 

7. Treatment of Assets. 

 

Title to all property furnished by the CITY shall remain in the name of the CITY and 

the CITY shall become the owner of the work product and other documents, if any, 

prepared by the SERVICE PROVIDER pursuant to this Agreement. 

  

124



Professional Services Contract - 4  

 

8. Compliance with Laws. 

 

8.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER, in the performance of this Agreement, shall 

comply with all applicable federal, state or local laws and ordinances, 

including regulations for licensing, certification and operation of facilities, 

programs and accreditation, and licensing of individuals, and any other 

standards or criteria as described in this Agreement to assure quality of 

services. 

 

9. Nondiscrimination. 

 

9.1 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer. 

 

9.2 Nondiscrimination in Employment. In the performance of this Agreement, the 

SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant 

for employment on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital 

status, sexual orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or 

the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability, or the use of a trained 

dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability; provided that the 

prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability, or the use 

of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability, shall not 

apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular 

worker involved. The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are 

employed, and that employees are treated during employment without 

discrimination because of their race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital 

status, sexual orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or 

the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained 

guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability. Such action shall 

include, but not be limited to: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfers, 

recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other 

forms of compensation, and programs for training including apprenticeships. The 

SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as 

may be required to ensure full compliance with local, state and federal laws 

prohibiting discrimination in employment. 

 

9.3 Nondiscrimination in Services. The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate 

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on 

the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, sexual 

orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or the presence 

of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or 

service animal by a person with a disability. 

  

125



Professional Services Contract - 5  

 

9.4 If any assignment and/or subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY, said 

assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against 

discrimination. The SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action as may be 

required to ensure full compliance with the provisions in the immediately 

preceding paragraphs herein. 

 

10. Assignment/subcontracting. 

 

10.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall not assign its performance under this 

Agreement or any portion of this Agreement without the written consent of the 

CITY, and it is further agreed that said consent must be sought in writing by the 

SERVICE PROVIDER not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of any 

proposed assignment.  The CITY reserves the right to reject without cause any 

such assignment. 

 

10.2 Any work or services assigned hereunder shall be subject to each provision of this 

Agreement and proper bidding procedures where applicable as set forth in local, 

state and/or federal statutes, ordinances and guidelines. 

 

11. Changes. 

 

Either party may request changes to the scope of services and performance to be 

provided hereunder, however, no change or addition to this Agreement shall be valid 

or binding upon either party unless such change or addition be in writing and signed 

by both parties. Such amendments shall be attached to and made part of this 

Agreement. 

 

12. Termination. 

 

12.1 Termination for Convenience. Either party may terminate this Agreement for any 

reason whatsoever by providing written notice of at least sixty (60) days prior to 

the date of termination.  

 

12.2 Termination for Cause. If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the 

manner called for in this Agreement, or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to 

comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such 

noncompliance within five (5) days' written notice thereof, the CITY may 

terminate this Agreement for cause. Termination shall be effected by serving a 

notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in 

which the SERVICE PROVIDER in default.  

 

13. Notice. 

 

Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses 

designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement. 

126



Professional Services Contract - 6  

14. Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.

If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or because 

of a dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any of the 

provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from 

the other party, in addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled, 

reasonable attorney's fees and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding. 

15. Jurisdiction and Venue.

15.1 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and 

delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that 

this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington, both as to 

interpretation and performance. 

15.2 Any action of law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of 

this Agreement or any provisions thereof shall be instituted and maintained only 

in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction in Island County, Washington. 

16. Severability.

16.1 If, for any reason, any part, term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court 

of the United States to be illegal, void or unenforceable, the validity of the 

remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the 

parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the 

particular provision held to be invalid. 

16.2 If it should appear that any provision hereof is in conflict with any statutory 

provision of the State of Washington, said provision that may conflict therewith 

shall be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in conflict 

therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform to such statutory provisions. 

17. Entire Agreement.

The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto 

and any oral representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded.  

Further, any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both 

parties. Failure to comply with any of the provisions stated herein shall constitute a 

material breach of contract and be cause for termination. Both parties recognize time 

is of the essence in the performance of the provisions of this Agreement. It is also 

agreed by the parties that the forgiveness of the nonperformance of any provision of 

this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of the provisions of this Agreement. 

127



Professional Services Contract - 7  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the 

day and year first hereinabove written. 

 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

865 SE Barrington Drive Oak Harbor, 

WA 98277 

 

 

 

By       

 Scott Dudley, Mayor 

 

SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND 

COUNTY 14594 SR 525 

Langley, WA 98260 

 

 

 

   By      

 Walt Blackford, Board President 

 

 

  

 

Attest:  Attest: Approved by the Board of Directors 

 

 

          

 City Clerk     Secretary 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

  

 City Attorney 

 

  

128



Professional Services Contract - 8  

 

Exhibit A 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

The SERVICE PROVIDER will provide professional and administrative services to 

administer the following programs: 

 

Information & 

Assistance Program 

Provide staffing to operate 35 hours (part time) a week Monday through Friday from 8 

am to 3 pm in the Oak Harbor Senior Center. 

 

Provide appropriate and accurate information on services, products and resources 

available to clients and their families through social service agencies, medical providers 

and community partners in the aging network; keep current on new services in 

community for client referral. 

 

Plan and implement programs, for Oak Harbor Senior Center participants that contribute 

to the physical, social, emotional and mental health of older adults. 

 

Screen clients for services, including case management via telephone interviews, home 

visits and office visits. Assess clients’ needs and refer to appropriate services. Provide 

follow up with clients to assure needs are met.  Conduct two targeting surveys a year to 

determine population being served. 

 

Provide crisis/mental health referrals for clients and maintain client files with 

documentation of services provided.  

 

Develop and maintain resource files to provide to clients regarding availability of 

services in the community. 

 

Direct the Family Caregiver Support Program to include Case Management for Respite 

clients utilizing adult day care facilities and in-home care respite services from local 

Caregiver agencies. Prepare monthly budget report and consultant budget report to 

Northwest Regional Council (NWRC) planner in charge of Respite. 

 

Serve as Respite Case Manager including screening, T-CARE assessment, ongoing 

authorization, and recurring yearly assessments of current clients using respite services. 

 

Provide standard case management services for clients needing intense care, and 

continuing assistance. 

  

129



Professional Services Contract - 9  

Provide liaison with community agencies and organizations that support senior 

clients, attend monthly meetings and makes referrals as necessary to include Adult 

Protective Services as a mandatory reporter. 

 

Complete monthly statistics on clients served during the month. 

 

Manage and update job bank referral lists for use by clients who have need for 

caregivers, housekeepers and handymen. 

 

Assist families and senior clients to apply for DSHS Medicaid (COPES) through 

outreach, prescreening for Medicaid programs, facilitating Medicaid applications, 

assistance in utilizing Medicaid services and interagency coordination for medical 

services. 

 

Perform as Administrator for enrolling clients using the Meals on Wheels Program, 

Washington State Dental Program, Farmer's Market Voucher Program, Island County 

Trash Discount Cards and other recurring programs. 

 

Perform as administrator and accounts receivable manager for Nutritional 

supplements sold to clients who need this product. 

 

Draft routine correspondence and mail information to client's requesting information on 

various services provided. 

 

Provide outreach and information to difficult to serve populations, including clients 

with limited English proficiency, rural/isolated populations and minority older 

adults. 

 

Attend quarterly and as needed Information & Assistance training meetings. 

 

Provide information on Medicare, Medicare RX and Medicaid and assist clients in 

accessing these programs by assisting with documentation required.  Coordinate the 

services with local DSHS office. 

 

Home Delivered Nutrition Program (Meals on Wheels) 
Provide adequate staffing to safely operate a lunch delivery including a hot lunch meal and 

/or frozen meals which are delivered to homebound eligible participants three days/week, 

Monday, Wednesday, and Friday (except holidays). Paid staff will be supplemented by local 

volunteers. 

 

Provide a lunch that ensures a high quality nutritious meal; meets one third of the Nutrition 

requirements for seniors 60+. The delivery of meals emphasizes a safe, nutritious meal and 

also provides for a connection to the community with a gate keeping function as an 

additional asset. 

 

Nutrition Director develops and provides Meals on Wheels monthly menu available for 
130



Professional Services Contract - 10  

participants for their use and planning. 

 

Complete an intake assessment prior to the start of a new participant.  It is the primary 

function of Meals on Wheels Assessor to complete the intake assessment within 2 weeks of 

the new client starting to receive the home delivered meals and once a year thereafter. If 

time allows, I & A (information and assistance) Senior Services employees may also 

complete intakes and send to Meals on Wheels assessor. 

 

A voluntary Nutrition screening tool will be collected as well as demographic information, 

in a Participant Information Form (PIF) for each client. This information is kept on file with 

the Nutrition program and copies sent to Northwest Regional Council Area on Aging. 

 

Provide the City with appropriate copy for use in publicity materials, brochure, required 

forms, etc. Publication and printing expenses will be the sole responsibility of the City. 

 

Meals on Wheels Assessor and volunteers delivering the meals will make referrals to other 

agencies as appropriate. 

 

Meals on Wheels assessor will maintain participant files and records and collect emergency 

contact information as well as confidential records authorization to exchange information, if 

needed. 

 

Work cooperatively with case managers and family members to assure that Meals on 

Wheels service is provided in a quality manner. 

 

Meal Site Manager will submit monthly reports to the Nutrition Director and provide 

necessary paperwork in compliance with Northwest Regional Council requirements directly 

to Northwest Regional Council as required. 

 

Assure that training is available for volunteer and SSIC staff and any required certifications 

are secured and documented. 

 

Assure appropriate safety and health standards are followed as outlined by Washington 

Island County Health Department. 

 

Provide and make available a policy and procedure manual. 

 

The SSIC Program Director will coordinate/meet as needed with NWRC representatives, 

specifically, but not exclusively for the purpose of satisfying annual review requirements. 

  

131



Professional Services Contract - 11  

 

Congregate Nutrition Program Lunch at Oak Harbor Senior Center 

Assure that at a minimum the Oak Harbor Nutrition Program meets all applicable Nutrition 

Care standards. 

 

Provide adequate staffing to safely operate a lunch meal occurring three days/week, 

Monday, Wednesday, and Friday (except holidays). Paid staff will be supplemented by local 

volunteers. 

 

Provide a lunch that ensures a high quality nutritious meal; meets one third of the Nutrition 

requirements for seniors 60+. The meal atmosphere emphasizes a safe caring environment, 

quality of life experiences, and social interaction. 

 

Provide a monthly menu available for participants for their use and planning. 

 

A voluntary Nutrition screening tool will be collected as well as demographic information, 

in a Participant Information Form (PIF) for each client. This information is kept on file with 

the Nutrition program records and copies are sent to Northwest Regional Council Area on 

Aging. 

 

Provide the City with appropriate copy for use in publicity materials, brochure, required 

forms, etc. Publication and printing expenses will be the sole responsibility of the City. 

 

Meal Site Manager and volunteers will make referrals to other agencies as appropriate. 

 

Work cooperatively with case managers, physicians and family members to assure that care 

plans are followed. 

 

Meal Site Manager will submit monthly reports to the Nutrition Director. This will include 

dates attending the site and numbers of meals received. 

 

Provide necessary paperwork in compliance with Northwest Regional Council requirements 

directly to Northwest Regional Council as required. 

 

Assure that training is available for volunteer and SSIC staff and any required certifications 

are secured and documented. 

 

Assure appropriate safety and health standards are followed as outlined by Washington 

Island County Health Department. 

 

Provide and make available a policy and procedure manual. 

 

The SSIC Program Director will coordinate/meet as needed with NWRC representatives, 

specifically, but not exclusively for the purpose of satisfying annual review requirements. 

 

Assure that at a minimum the Nutrition Congregate Meal Program meets all applicable 

Nutrition Care standards. 132



Professional Services Contract - 12  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

MONTHLY 

REPORTS 

 

MONTHLY PROGRAM 

SUPPORT 

 

 

Monthly Report for: ______________ 

Program Days:          ________ 

Information & Assistance Program 

 

 Oak Harbor Residents Non-Residents 

Number of Cases Managed   

Number of Liaison 

Referrals 

  

Outreach Assistant Referrals   

 

 

Home Delivered Nutrition Program 

 

 Oak Harbor Residents Non-Residents 

Number of Home Deliveries   

Number of New 

Assessments 

  

   

 

 

Congregate Nutrition Program 

 

 Oak Harbor Residents Non-Residents 

Number of Congregate 

Lunches 

  

 

133



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: 10-Inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger 
Replacement - Professional 
Service Agreement with Gray & 
Osborne, Inc. for Engineering 
Services

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. 
for the scope of services described herein in for a not to exceed amount of $60,000.00 Additionally, a 
motion authorizing a management reserve of $6,000.00 (10%) to allow the City Engineer the ability to 
authorize minor contract changes should they occur.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.g
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: 10-Inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger 
Replacement - Professional 
Service Agreement with Gray & 
Osborne, Inc. for Engineering 
Services

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. 
for the scope of services described herein in for a not to exceed amount of $60,000.00 Additionally, a 
motion authorizing a management reserve of $6,000.00 (10%) to allow the City Engineer the ability to 
authorize minor contract changes should they occur.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Oak Harbor water supply is conveyed across the Deception Pass and Canoe Pass bridges by a pair 
of water mains suspended under the bridges. Early this year it was observed that several of the hangers 
attaching the mains to the bridge have visible corrosion. Consequently the engineering consulting firm of 
Gray & Osborne was hired to conduct inspections of the pipe hangers and make recommendations for 
maintenance and correction of deficiencies.

The City coordinated the pipeline inspection with the Washington State Department of Transportation 
(WSDOT) to conduct the inspection at the same time that WSDOT was performing their routine 
inspections of both bridges. WSDOT assisted by providing traffic control, a special Under Bridge 
Inspection Truck and a mobile scaffold system with operators for use by the City. Gray & Osborne staff
inspected the suspension systems supporting the 16-inch pipeline under the east side of and the 10-inch
pipeline under the west side of the bridges. It was found that the suspension system for the 16-inch 
pipeline is in good condition and that the 10-inch pipeline suspension system should be replaced due to 
corrosion damage.

Designing a new hanger system requires the services of an experienced, licensed Structural Engineer. 
Staff solicited Statements of Qualification for this project from a list of 17 engineering firms provided by a 
search of the Municipal Research and Services Center consultant roster. Gray & Osborne was the only
responsive and qualified firm resulting from the selection process.

Staff has been in contact with WSDOT staff at the Northwest Region Office and Bridge Preservation

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Oak Harbor water supply is conveyed across the Deception Pass and Canoe Pass bridges by a pair 
of water mains suspended under the bridges. Early this year it was observed that several of the hangers 
attaching the mains to the bridge have visible corrosion. Consequently the engineering consulting firm of 
Gray & Osborne was hired to conduct inspections of the pipe hangers and make recommendations for 
maintenance and correction of deficiencies.

The City coordinated the pipeline inspection with the Washington State Department of Transportation 
(WSDOT) to conduct the inspection at the same time that WSDOT was performing their routine 
inspections of both bridges. WSDOT assisted by providing traffic control, a special Under Bridge 
Inspection Truck and a mobile scaffold system with operators for use by the City. Gray & Osborne staff 
inspected the suspension systems supporting the 16-inch pipeline under the east side of and the 10-inch 
pipeline under the west side of the bridges. It was found that the suspension system for the 16-inch 
pipeline is in good condition and that the 10-inch pipeline suspension system should be replaced due to 
corrosion damage.

Designing a new hanger system requires the services of an experienced, licensed Structural Engineer. 
Staff solicited Statements of Qualification for this project from a list of 17 engineering firms provided by a 
search of the Municipal Research and Services Center consultant roster. Gray & Osborne was the only 
responsive and qualified firm resulting from the selection process.

Staff has been in contact with WSDOT staff at the Northwest Region Office and Bridge Preservation134



Staff has been in contact with WSDOT staff at the Northwest Region Office and Bridge Preservation 
Office to begin the coordination of this project. WSDOT will need to approve the design of the new pipe 
hanger system and the installation methods. Our design team will meet with WSDOT staff prior to 
beginning design work so that we understand the design requirements and project approval process for 
this project from the beginning. WSDOT staff has been very supportive and responsive to us in our 
efforts to maintain the transmission mains on the bridges.

Schedule:

The schedule for this project is aggressive with the goal of having the new suspension system installed 
before Memorial Day, May 30, 2016. This goal is based on the desire to minimize impacts to traffic on 
the Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges as the installation will require closing one lane of the bridges to 
traffic while the work is done.

 Design services are planned to begin December 2 and concluded by January 29, 2016,
 Feb 2, 2016; Request City Council Authorization to solicit construction bids.
 Feb 25, 2016; Permitting completed
 March 15, 2016; Award Construction Contract to the lowest qualified bidder
 April 30, 2016; Construction completed

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:  $66,000.00

Appropriation Source:  Water Fund

Staff has been in contact with WSDOT staff at the Northwest Region Office and Bridge Preservation 
Office to begin the coordination of this project. WSDOT will need to approve the design of the new pipe 
hanger system and the installation methods. Our design team will meet with WSDOT staff prior to 
beginning design work so that we understand the design requirements and project approval process for 
this project from the beginning. WSDOT staff has been very supportive and responsive to us in our 
efforts to maintain the transmission mains on the bridges.

Schedule:

The schedule for this project is aggressive with the goal of having the new suspension system installed 
before Memorial Day, May 30, 2016. This goal is based on the desire to minimize impacts to traffic on 
the Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges as the installation will require closing one lane of the bridges to 
traffic while the work is done.

 Design services are planned to begin December 2 and concluded by January 29, 2016,
 Feb 2, 2016; Request City Council Authorization to solicit construction bids.
 Feb 25, 2016; Permitting completed
 March 15, 2016; Award Construction Contract to the lowest qualified bidder
 April 30, 2016; Construction completed

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:  $66,000.00

Appropriation Source:  Water Fund

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
WORKSHOPS

The 10-Inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement Project was discussed at the October 28, 2015 City 
Council Workshop.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

March 17, 2015,- Approved the professional Services Agreement With Gray & Osborne, Inc. to 
conduct Structural Inspections on the water mains suspended from the Deception Pass and Canoe Pass 
bridges in the amount not to exceed $17,300. Authorized the Mayor to sign the Professional Service 
Agreement with Gray & Osborne.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Professional Services Agreement - Exhibit A: Consultant Scope of Services

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
WORKSHOPS

The 10-Inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement Project was discussed at the October 28, 2015 City 
Council Workshop.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

March 17, 2015,- Approved the professional Services Agreement With Gray & Osborne, Inc. to 
conduct Structural Inspections on the water mains suspended from the Deception Pass and Canoe Pass 
bridges in the amount not to exceed $17,300. Authorized the Mayor to sign the Professional Service 
Agreement with Gray & Osborne.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Professional Services Agreement - Exhibit A: Consultant Scope of Services

135

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448469661_at.pdf


136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Agreement with Ft. Nugent 
Electric Flyers

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Agreement with the Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers and authorize the Mayor to sign.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to present a proposed agreement, similar to the agreements that we 
have with other sport field users, with the Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers (FNEF) for use of Ft. Nugent Park 
to fly radio controlled model aircraft.

The FNEF has requested permission to use Ft. Nugent Park to fly radio controlled model aircraft in a 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.h
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Agreement with Ft. Nugent 
Electric Flyers

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Agreement with the Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers and authorize the Mayor to sign.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to present a proposed agreement, similar to the agreements that we 
have with other sport field users, with the Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers (FNEF) for use of Ft. Nugent Park 
to fly radio controlled model aircraft.

The FNEF has requested permission to use Ft. Nugent Park to fly radio controlled model aircraft in a The FNEF has requested permission to use Ft. Nugent Park to fly radio controlled model aircraft in a 
designated area (southwest portion as identified in Exhibit A), during designated hours, when not in use 
by other sports leagues, and when the park is not being used for other activities.  The model aircraft are 
radio controlled, battery powered, typically made of extruded polystyrene foam or balsa wood, with a 
wing span of approximately three to four feet and weighing approximately four pounds.  Helicopters, 
quads and drones will not be permitted to fly at Ft. Nugent Park.

FNEF is a well organized and safety conscious group.  They are also members of the Academy of Model
Aeronautics (AMA) who insures them with $2,500,000 personal liability insurance coverage.  FNEF is 
also willing to purchase additional insurance, in the amount of $2,000,000, and name the City of Oak 
Harbor as additional insured.  FNEF flyers are required to abide by the AMA's National Aircraft Safety
Code as well as the City of Oak Harbor's park rules.  The club also plans to encourage new flyers to 
become members of the FNEF and educate them about the rules of flying model aircraft.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The City is authorized to provide recreational services through RCW 35A.11.020.  Also, the City of Oak 
Harbor's Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan Guiding Principles support the concept of offering 
diverse recreational opportunities to the community.  In addition, OHMC 6.12.120(20) allows the flying
of model aircraft in designated areas of parks.

FISCAL IMPACT

The FNEF has requested permission to use Ft. Nugent Park to fly radio controlled model aircraft in a 
designated area (southwest portion as identified in Exhibit A), during designated hours, when not in use 
by other sports leagues, and when the park is not being used for other activities.  The model aircraft are 
radio controlled, battery powered, typically made of extruded polystyrene foam or balsa wood, with a 
wing span of approximately three to four feet and weighing approximately four pounds.  Helicopters, 
quads and drones will not be permitted to fly at Ft. Nugent Park.

FNEF is a well organized and safety conscious group.  They are also members of the Academy of Model 
Aeronautics (AMA) who insures them with $2,500,000 personal liability insurance coverage.  FNEF is 
also willing to purchase additional insurance, in the amount of $2,000,000, and name the City of Oak 
Harbor as additional insured.  FNEF flyers are required to abide by the AMA's National Aircraft Safety 
Code as well as the City of Oak Harbor's park rules.  The club also plans to encourage new flyers to 
become members of the FNEF and educate them about the rules of flying model aircraft.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The City is authorized to provide recreational services through RCW 35A.11.020.  Also, the City of Oak 
Harbor's Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan Guiding Principles support the concept of offering 
diverse recreational opportunities to the community.  In addition, OHMC 6.12.120(20) allows the flying 
of model aircraft in designated areas of parks.

FISCAL IMPACT 152



FISCAL IMPACT
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The City of Oak Harbor Park Board approved this proposal at their November 9, 2015 meeting and 
voted to forward their recommendation to City Council.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Agreement with Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers
2. Exhibit A
3. Rules for Model Aircraft Field Operation
4. Email from NAS Whidbey re Flying Model Aircraft

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The City of Oak Harbor Park Board approved this proposal at their November 9, 2015 meeting and 
voted to forward their recommendation to City Council.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Agreement with Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers
2. Exhibit A
3. Rules for Model Aircraft Field Operation
4. Email from NAS Whidbey re Flying Model Aircraft

153

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447979702_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1446236874_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447979715_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1446237103_at.pdf


   1 

City of Oak Harbor 
 

PARTICIPATION / ACTIVITY AGREEMENT 
 

 

This Agreement is made and entered into this            day of                          , 2015, between the City of 

Oak Harbor ("City") and Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers (FNEF), a nonprofit, unincorporated flying club and 

member of the National Academy of Model Aeronautics (AMA), for use of Ft. Nugent Park 

(“premises”) to fly radio controlled model aircraft at an approved designation and limited to approved 

flying hours. 

 

1. Purpose 

1.1 The City is authorized to provide recreational services through RCW 35A.11.020.  The City of 

Oak Harbor’s Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan Guiding Principles supports the concept of 

offering diverse recreational opportunities to the community as well as to ensure that reasonable 

safety measures are met.  The City allows public use of the premises for recreational activities.   

1.2 The City allows the flying of model airplanes in designated areas of parks OHMC 6.12.120(20). 

1.3 FNEF has requested to use the premises to fly radio controlled model aircraft in a designated area 

(southwest portion as identified in Exhibit A), during designated hours (as outlined under Terms 

and Conditions below), when not in use by other sports leagues or park activities. 

 

2. Terms and Conditions 

2.1 FNEF shall provide the City with the organization structure, names, telephone numbers and 

email addresses of the persons designated to represent them.  The City must be notified of any 

changes made to the contact list as they occur. 

2.2 FNEF understands, acknowledges and agrees that the premise is a general use park for use by the 

general public.  The flying of model aircraft shall take place in the designated area only, when 

not in use by other sports leagues, and when the park is not being used for other activities, during 

specific hours, and may not fly above 400 feet. 

2.3 FNEF acknowledges the existing condition of the premises and accepts the premises “as is”.  

FNEF shall not alter or improve the premises in any way without prior review and written 

approval by the City. 

2.4 FNEF shall obtain the City’s prior consent before exhibiting, inscribing, painting or affixing any 

sign, advertisement, notice or lettering on any part of the premises. 

2.5 During the term of this Agreement, FNEF will be allowed to fly model aircraft between the hours 

of 7:30 a.m. and 12:00 p.m., seven days per week, in the southwest portion of the park, as 

identified in Exhibit A.   

2.6 FNEF shall abide by a mutually agreed upon set of operating rules (attached).  Use of the 

premises shall be in compliance with the operating rules.  These rules shall be in accordance with 

the Academy of Model Aeronautics National Safety Code and shall provide rules for frequency 

control, for model aircraft flight operations and for ground operations.  All changes to the 

operating rules and subsequent revisions must be submitted to the City for approval.  The City 

shall install and maintain signs prominently displaying these rules on the premises. 

2.7 FNEF may not fly more than three (3) aircraft at one time and may not fly outside of the 

designated area, over spectators, houses, streets, parking areas, pets or other park users. 

2.8 All model aircraft shall be under the positive control and in visual contact of the operator, within 

the approved fly zone, while using 2.4 GHz radio control.  Only battery powered aircraft are 

permitted.  Model aircraft are typically made of extruded polystyrene foam or balsa wood, with a 

wing span of approximately three to four (3-4) feet and weight not to exceed four (4) pounds.  154



   2 

2.9 Only fixed wing aircraft are allowed to be flown at Ft. Nugent Park.  NO helicopters, quads or 

drones will be allowed. 

2.10 Helicopters, quads and drones are NOT permitted. 

2.11 Aircraft using gas, nitro or turbine engines are NOT permitted. 

2.12 This agreement shall be restricted to members of the Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers, AMA Members. 

 

3. Insurance and Hold Harmless 

3.1 FNEF shall maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against all claims for injuries to 

persons or damage to property which may arise from, or in connection with, flying radio 

controlled model aircraft at the premises.   

3.2 FNEF, as members of the Academy of Model Aeronautics (AMA), is covered by their insurance 

policy and shall maintain $2,500,000 of commercial general liability insurance coverage. 

3.3 In addition, FNEF will purchase an additional insurance policy, in the amount of $2,000,000.  

3.4 FNEF shall ensure that the City of Oak Harbor is included as additionally insured with respect to 

liability arising out of activities performed by FNEF. 

3.5 FNEF shall furnish the City with original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements 

including, but not limited to, the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance 

requirements of FNEF. 

3.6 FNEF expressly agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City, its elected 

officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against liability claims (including 

all demands, suits and judgments) for damages arising out of injury to persons or damage to 

property where such injury or damage is caused by, arises out of or is incident to the scope of 

FNEF activities under this Agreement.  FNEF duty to the City is limited to the acts or omissions 

of FNEF, its members, invitees and guests. 

 

4. Termination of Agreement 

4.1 The term of this Agreement will remain in effect for one (1) year from the date of the Agreement 

unless canceled by written notice delivered to either party at least thirty (30) days prior to the 

termination of the initial term or any renewal term of this Agreement. 

4.2 This Agreement may be reviewed and renewed on an annual basis. 

 

5. Non-Discrimination 

5.1 FNEF shall ensure that they make available their flying schedule to all of their members, 

regardless of disability or membership in any protected class, in conformity with the Americans 

with Disabilities Act, the Rehabilitation Act, the Washington Law Against Discrimination and all 

other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.   

5.2 FNEF shall also comply with RCW 49.60.500 – Community Athletic Programs – Sex 

Discrimination prohibited. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party to this Agreement has caused it to be executed at Oak Harbor, 

Washington, on the date indicated below. 

 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR    FT. NUGENT ELECTRIC FLYERS  

 

 

Signed       Signed       

 

 
155



3 

Date Date 

156



157

ctaylor
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



865 S.E. Barrington Drive ● Oak Harbor, Washington 98277-4092 ● City Hall  (360) 279-4500 

 

 

 

MODEL AIRCRAFT FIELD OPERATING RULES 

 

 Only Members of the Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers (FNEF) may use the flying area at Ft. 

Nugent Park for flying model aircraft. 

 FNEF flying rules apply and insurance is required.   

 All flyers must have a current open or youth membership in the FNEF and may be 

required to present proof of membership. 

 New members must have received flying instruction from FNEF before flying solo. 

 All flyers must comply with the Official AMA National Model Aircraft Safety Code. 

http://www.modelaircraft.org/ 

 All aircraft must meet model standards (glider, hand launch or electric power only - 2.4 

GHz radio controlled, battery powered, systems).  The aircraft are typically made of 

extruded polystyrene foam or balsa wood, with a wing span of approximately three to 

four (3-4) feet and weight not to exceed four (4) pounds. 

 Helicopters, quads and drones are NOT permitted. 

 Aircraft using gas, nitro or turbine engines are NOT permitted. 

 All model aircraft shall be under the positive control and in visual contact of the 

operator, within the approved fly zone, while using 2.4 GHz radio control.   

 Do NOT fly over spectators, houses, streets, parking areas or beyond the flight limits 

indicated on the flying field map.   

 Flyers must remain within the approved fly zone only, using the designated flight 

boxes, as indicated on the flying field map.  Aircraft may not be flown above 400 feet. 

 Follow the established traffic pattern.  Take off and land left to right, unless prevailing 

winds dictate otherwise. 

 Do NOT perform low level aerobatics, hovering maneuvers or high-speed passes over 

the runway. 

 No more than three (3) aircraft are permitted in the air at any one time. 

 Use of a spotter is recommended. 

 The airfield is open for flying between 7:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

158

http://www.modelaircraft.org/


159



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Council Vacancy Procedure

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Council Vacancy Procedure and Application as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
As of December 31, 2015, Mayor-elect Bob Severns' City Council position (no. 4) will be vacant.  
 RCW 42.12.070 provides that the City Council appoint a qualified person to fill the vacancy within 90 
days of the vacancy. Council position no. 4 needs the remaining term of office filled and served until a 
person is elected and sworn in immediately after certification of the regular election in November of 2017.

Council requested to begin the vacancy application process at the November 18, 2015 Workshop.  Staff
recommends the following timeline:

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.i
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Council Vacancy Procedure

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Council Vacancy Procedure and Application as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
As of December 31, 2015, Mayor-elect Bob Severns' City Council position (no. 4) will be vacant.  
 RCW 42.12.070 provides that the City Council appoint a qualified person to fill the vacancy within 90 
days of the vacancy. Council position no. 4 needs the remaining term of office filled and served until a 
person is elected and sworn in immediately after certification of the regular election in November of 2017.

Council requested to begin the vacancy application process at the November 18, 2015 Workshop.  Staff 
recommends the following timeline:recommends the following timeline:

1) Application period open from December 3, 2015 through January 1, 2016 - applications to be
submitted no later than Friday, January 1, 2016 by 4:30 p.m. to the City Clerk's Office.

2) January 12, 2016 Special Meeting (3:00 p.m.) - review qualified applications and create a shortlist of
qualified applications.

3) January 19, 2016 Regular Council Meeting - interview the short-listed candidates, discuss candidates 
in Executive Session, reopen into Open Session to make final appointment and swear in the candidate. 
 Interviews and the final selection will be conducted in the open public meeting. 

The Application attached is the result of Council's request that necessary pieces of applications, such as 
resumes and cover letters, be furnished in the form of an application for ease of comparing applicants. 
Page 3 of the application presents proposed interview questions the Council may ask at the January 19, 
2016 Regular Meeting.  Council may desire to ask different questions, or remove Page 3 completely from
the application.

Staff will advertise the Council Vacancy Application and important details in the Whidbey News Times, 
the City's Facebook Page, and on www.oakharbor.org.  

recommends the following timeline:

1) Application period open from December 3, 2015 through January 1, 2016 - applications to be
submitted no later than Friday, January 1, 2016 by 4:30 p.m. to the City Clerk's Office.

2) January 12, 2016 Special Meeting (3:00 p.m.) - review qualified applications and create a shortlist of
qualified applications.

3) January 19, 2016 Regular Council Meeting - interview the short-listed candidates, discuss candidates
in Executive Session, reopen into Open Session to make final appointment and swear in the candidate. 
 Interviews and the final selection will be conducted in the open public meeting. 

The Application attached is the result of Council's request that necessary pieces of applications, such as 
resumes and cover letters, be furnished in the form of an application for ease of comparing applicants. 
Page 3 of the application presents proposed interview questions the Council may ask at the January 19, 
2016 Regular Meeting.  Council may desire to ask different questions, or remove Page 3 completely from 
the application.

Staff will advertise the Council Vacancy Application and important details in the Whidbey News Times, 
the City's Facebook Page, and on www.oakharbor.org.  

160



LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.12.070

Filling nonpartisan vacancies.

RCW 42.12.070 states in part:

“Where one position is vacant, the remaining members of the governing body shall appoint a qualified 
person to fill the vacant position.”  It also states “if a governing body fails to appoint a qualified person to 
fill a vacancy within 90 days….the county legislative authority …..shall appoint a qualified person to fill 
the vacancy.”

RCW 42.30.110

Executive sessions.  

RCW 42.30.110 (1)(h) states: 

(1)  “Nothing contained in this chapter may be construed to prevent a governing body from holding an 
executive session during a regular or special meeting:

(h)   To evaluate the qualifications of a candidate for appointment to elective office.  However, any 
interview of such candidate and final action appointing a candidate to elective office shall be in a meeting 
open to the public.”

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.12.070

Filling nonpartisan vacancies.

RCW 42.12.070 states in part:

“Where one position is vacant, the remaining members of the governing body shall appoint a qualified 
person to fill the vacant position.”  It also states “if a governing body fails to appoint a qualified person to 
fill a vacancy within 90 days….the county legislative authority …..shall appoint a qualified person to fill 
the vacancy.”

RCW 42.30.110

Executive sessions.  

RCW 42.30.110 (1)(h) states: 

(1)  “Nothing contained in this chapter may be construed to prevent a governing body from holding an 
executive session during a regular or special meeting:

(h)   To evaluate the qualifications of a candidate for appointment to elective office.  However, any 
interview of such candidate and final action appointing a candidate to elective office shall be in a meeting 
open to the public.”

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUTPREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
City Council Workshop held November 18, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Proposed Application for Council Position No. 4
2. Score Sheets for Interview Questions
3. Council Vacancy Notice - Whidbey News Times, Legal section
4. Schedule for Filling Council Vacancy

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
City Council Workshop held November 18, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Proposed Application for Council Position No. 4
2. Score Sheets for Interview Questions
3. Council Vacancy Notice - Whidbey News Times, Legal section
4. Schedule for Filling Council Vacancy

161

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448474564_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448474598_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448395933_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448474578_at.pdf


2016 Council Vacancy Application  
Page 1 of 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277 

Phone: (360)279-4500 
Fax: (360)279-4507 

 

Application for Appointment to 
City of Oak Harbor City Council Position No. 4 

 
Thank you for your interest in serving the community as a member of the Oak Harbor City Council. 
 
 
The timeline for filling the Council vacancy is as follows: 
 January 1, 2016  Applications are due to the City Clerk by 4:30 p.m. 
 January 12, 2016  Review applications and create a shortlist (Special Meeting) 
 January 19, 2016 Interview the short-listed applicants and select the new Council Member 

(Regular Meeting) 
 
To be considered, your application must be completed and received by the City Clerk at Oak Harbor 
City Hall, 865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA  98277 no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 
January 1, 2016.  Applications received after 4:30 p.m. will not be accepted.   Mailing post-marked 
applications will also not be accepted.  Additional written information after this date will not be accepted, 
unless requested by the City Council.   
 
 
 Please submit the completed application, 

beginning on page 4. 
 

 May be submitted in hard copy or electronic 
form 

 
For further information, please contact: 
 Anna Thompson, City Clerk at  
 (360)279-4539, or athompson@oakharbor.org         
   
      Dr. Merriman, City Administrator, at         
      (360)279-4531, or dmerriman@oakharbor.org  

  
  
 The application packet should be submitted to: 
   
            Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
  Re:  Council Member Recruitment 
  City of Oak Harbor 
  865 SE Barrington Drive 
  Oak Harbor, WA  98277 
             
            athompson@oakharborg.org  

        
 

Council Member Eligibility, Requirements, and Public Disclosure 
 
To be eligible to be appointed to the Oak Harbor City Council, you: 
 
 Residency Requirement: Must have continuously resided within Oak Harbor’s city limits for a 

minimum of one (1) year prior to your appointment to the Council, and 
 
 Voter Registration Requirement: Must be a registered voter in Island County, City of Oak Harbor. 

162

mailto:athompson@oakharbor.org
mailto:dmerriman@oakharbor.org
mailto:athompson@oakharborg.org


2016 Council Vacancy Application  
Page 2 of 9 

 
Please note that: 
 
 Once a Council Member application is filed with the City, it is a public record available to the public. 
 
 The applications received from all candidates who meet the minimum requirements of State law, 

along with the answers to the supplemental questions, will be posted on the City of Oak Harbor’s 
website as part of the Council’s meeting packet the week of the initial interview. 

 
 If you are appointed to the vacant position by a majority vote of the City Council, your term will 

expire on the date that the 2017 General Election is certified. 
 
 If appointed, you will be required by State law to file financial disclosure statements with the 

Washington Public Disclosure Commission (www.pdc.wa.gov) 
 

\ 
City Council Duties and Compensation 

 
The Oak Harbor City Council is the legislative authority of the City of Oak Harbor.  The City operates 
under a Mayor – Council form of government.  The seven-member City Council serves as the 
legislative body of the City.  The Council is responsible for setting policy, adopting the annual budget, 
adopting laws, determining the services to be provided and the funding levels for those services, and 
appointing citizens to its advisory boards and commissions. 
 
The duties of a City Council Member will likely involve an average minimum commitment of 18 – 20 
hours per month for preparation, participation, and attendance at various meetings and community 
activities.  Beyond the broad duties previously mentioned, Council Member duties include, but are not 
limited to: 
 
 Attendance is required at regular City Council meetings which are held on the first and third 

Tuesday evenings of each month with the exception of one meeting per month in July and August 
on the first Tuesday of these two months.  Meetings begin at 6:00 p.m. and can run to 9:00 p.m. 
and occasionally later.  From time to time, the Council or Mayor may call special Council meetings 
to handle City business.  Attendance is also required at Council retreats. 

 
 Council Members are expected to attend Monthly Workshop meetings as well, which have been 

held on the fourth Wednesday of every month. During the months of November and December, 
they meet on the third Wednesday of the month to accommodate the holidays. Council Members 
are also expected to serve on regional boards and commissions, and to represent the City Council 
at various community functions.  These meetings and functions can occur before or during business 
hours, but may also occur during the evening or weekend.   

 
 Some travel is expected locally, regionally, and/or within the State of Washington, involving various 

organizations of which the City of Oak Harbor is a member.   Council Members may also, at their 
discretion travel and attend training, education, and/or participate in other organizations at the local, 
regional, State, or in some instances, the national level.  Travel, education, and training expenses 
for local, regional, State, and national activities are reimbursed in accordance with City policy 
applicable to all employees and City officials, subject to the budgetary limit set for each Council 
Member and for the City Council as a whole.   

 
The monthly Council Member salary as of January 1, 2016 is $618.00 per month plus benefits for the 
Member only.   

163

http://www.pdc.wa.gov/


2016 Council Vacancy Application 
Page 3 of 9 

Interview Questions – January 19, 2016 

Each candidate should come to the interview prepared to speak to the following questions: 

1. Why do you want to serve on the City Council?

2. What experiences, talents or skills do you bring to the Council and community that you would like to
highlight?

3. Are there any regional issues or forums in which you have a particular interest or expertise? (e.g.
transportation, water supply, human services, water quality, fiscal management, solid waste, parks
and open space, etc.)

4. Do you want to serve on the City Council because of a particular local issue on which you want to
work or are your interests more broadly distributed?

The Council may ask additional questions of candidates during the interview.  

164



2016 Council Vacancy Application  
Page 4 of 9 

 
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO OAK HARBOR CITY COUNCIL POSITION NO. 4 

 
Applicant Information 

(Please type or print) 
 
Applicant Name  
 
Residence Address  
 
Mailing Address  
(If different) 

 

 
Home Phone  Cell Phone  Other  
 
E-mail Address  
 
Are you registered to vote within Island 
County, City of Oak Harbor?  

 

 
Date of Residency within Oak Harbor 
City Limits 

 

 
Have you continuously lived in Oak Harbor 
City Limits since the Start date above? 

 

 
Do you meet the Residency Requirements?  
  
 
 

Résumé 
 

Experience 

Provide the following information for each corresponding labeled section: 
  a) Name of Institution, 
  b) Address of Institution, 
  c) Dates of service and job function(s) 

 
 

1. a)  
 b)  
 c)  

  
2. a)  

 b)  
 c)  

  
165



2016 Council Vacancy Application  
Page 5 of 9 

3. a)  
 b)  
 c)  

  
4. a)  

 b)  
 c)  

  
5. a)  

 b)  
 c)  

  
6. a)  

 b)  
 c)  

  
7. a)   

 b)  
 c)  

  
8. a)  

 b)  
 c)  

 

Education 

Provide the following information for each corresponding labeled section: 
  a) Name of Institution and location  
  b) Degree earned, or describe subjects studied 
  c) Dates of attendance, or year of completion 

 
1. a)  

 b)  
 c)  

  
2. a)  

 b)  
 c)  

  
3. a)  

 b)  
 c)  

  
4. a)  

 b)  
 c)  

  
166



2016 Council Vacancy Application  
Page 6 of 9 

5. a)  
 b)  
 c)  

 

Related Skills 

 
1.   

  
  
  

2.   
  
  

  
3.   

  
  

 

Selected Accomplishments  

 
1.   

  
  
2.   

  
  
3.   

  
  

4.   
  

  
5.   
  

 
 

Supplemental Questions 
 
Please respond to the following questions regarding your interest in the position of Council Member for 
the City of Oak Harbor on the following spaces provided: 
 
1. Why are you interested in serving as an Oak Harbor City Council Member? 

 
 

167



2016 Council Vacancy Application  
Page 7 of 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2. What strength would you bring to the Council? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3. What are the three highest priorities and/or issues you believe the City needs to address?  

How would you propose to address these issues? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4. Explain your current and past community involvement and/or service on City, non-profit, or 

public boards, committees, task forces, or commissions and how this has contributed to the 
Oak Harbor community.  Address its relevance to the position of Oak Harbor City Council 
Member. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

168



2016 Council Vacancy Application  
Page 8 of 9 

5. What do you wish to accomplish during this appointed term as an Oak Harbor City Council 
Member? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
6. What is your vision for our City and community? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7. Do you participate in or are involved in any contract(s) with the City of Oak Harbor?  Please 
explain your involvement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
8. Do you hold any other elected public office? If yes, please describe the offices held.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

169



2016 Council Vacancy Application  
Page 9 of 9 

9.   Is there anything else that you may wish to add that would help us get to know you a little  
      better? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Please return this completed application to the City Clerk at Oak Harbor City Hall, 865 SE Barrington 
Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, January 1, 2016.  Applications 
received after 4:30 p.m. will not be accepted, and mailing post-marked applications will not be 
accepted.  
 

The application and any correspondence should be addressed to: 
 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
Re:  Council Member Recruitment 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277 
 
athompson@oakharbor.org  

170

mailto:athompson@oakharbor.org


 
Interview Questions – City Council Score Sheets (5-highest) 

 
Each candidate should come to the interview prepared to speak to the following questions: 
 
1. Why do you want to serve on the City Council? 

 
Score response  1 2 3 4 5 

 
2. What experiences, talents or skills do you bring to the Council and community that you would like to 

highlight? 
 
Score response  1 2 3 4 5 

 
3. Are there any regional issues or forums in which you have a particular interest or expertise? (e.g. 

transportation, water supply, human services, water quality, fiscal management, solid waste, parks 
and open space, etc.) 

 
Score response  1 2 3 4 5 
 

4. Do you want to serve on the City Council because of a particular local issue on which you want to 
work or are your interests more broadly distributed? 
 
Score response  1 2 3 4 5 
 

Additional Questions 
 

5.  
 

 
 
 
Score response  1 2 3 4 5 
 

6.  
 
 
 
Score response  1 2 3 4 5 
 

7.  
 
 
 
Score response  1 2 3 4 5 
 

8.  
 
 
 
Score response  1 2 3 4 5 
 

171



PUBLISH:  Saturday, December 5, 2015 
 
 
 

City of Oak Harbor 
Oak Harbor City Council Vacancy 

 
The City of Oak Harbor currently has an opening on the City Council, term to run until 
after the next General Election in November 2017.   
 
Qualifications:  One (1) year residency within the City limits; must be a registered voter 
in Island County, City of Oak Harbor; have a sincere desire to serve the community.   
 
Interested persons should submit a completed application. The application can be 
obtained at City Hall’s Utilities Office, or online via the City’s website:  
www.oakharbor.org   
 
The submittal packet must be received by Friday, January 1, 2016, by 4:30 p.m. and 
addressed to:   Anna Thompson, City Clerk, City of Oak Harbor, 865 SE Barrington 
Drive, Oak Harbor, WA  98277, Re:  Council Member Recruitment.  Or email packet to:  
athompson@oakharor.org   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Anna M. Thompson 
City Clerk 
Posted on December 3, 2015 
 
POSTED:         City Hall Bulletin Boards 
PUBLISHED:    Whidbey News Times, Legal  
                         Section - 12/05/15 – 12/26/15 

EMAILED:   legals@soundpublishing.com   
  
 
REMOVE:    after January 1, 2016 

 

172

http://www.oakharbor.org/
mailto:athompson@oakharor.org
http://www.oakharbor.org/
mailto:legals@soundpublishing.com


Schedule for filling City Council Vacancy 
 

 
December 1, 2015 – Regular Meeting Approve the procedure for filling the City 

Council Vacancy, Council Position No. 4 
 

December 5th, 12th, 19th, 26th, 2015 Advertise the Vacancy in the legal 
section of the Whidbey News Times 
 

January 1, 2016 – 4:30 p.m.  Deadline for application submittal to the 
Clerk’s Office 
 

January 12, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 
Special Meeting 

Review Qualified Applications and create 
Shortlist 
 

January 19, 2015 – Regular Meeting 
 

Interview Candidates on Shortlist, 
Discuss Candidates in Executive 
Session, then reopen in open session to 
make final Appointment and Swear in. 

 

173



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update 

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Director of Public Works

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
N/A

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Council Meeting Report on the Clean Water Facility Project, as requested by City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.ii
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update 

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Director of Public Works

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
N/A

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Council Meeting Report on the Clean Water Facility Project, as requested by City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY
Motion by City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Report on Clean Water Facility

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Motion by City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Report on Clean Water Facility

174

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448067874_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update December 1, 2015 
1 

CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – December 1, 2015
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  

RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 
• November 17th - Groundbreaking Ceremony for the Clean Water Facility was a success.
• Mobilization for Site Preparation Package B is underway.
• Site Preparation Package C is being advertised.
• Design team making progress toward December 15th presentation of a larger community room.

ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 
• November – Recruit CAG members for Windjammer Park Integration Plan
• November/December – Winter project newsletter
• December 10th – Bid Opening for Site Preparation Package C (Micropiles)
• December 15th - Further information on the community room will be presented at the City Council

Meeting.
• 90% Design is expected to begin this month with an anticipated completion in March.

DESIGN STATUS 
Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design Carollo Engineers have submitted 60% design drawings 

and are proceeding with the 90% documents.  
60% 

Site Preparation 
Package B  

The design for the deep excavation package is complete. 
Construction has begun. 

completed 

Site Preparation 
Package C  

Site Prep C is out for bid with an anticipated bid opening of 
December 10th and award on January 5th pending permit 
acquisition. 

completed 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 
Pending Permits Description 

• Boundary Line Adjustment
• Foundation permit
• Site Plan Amendment

• Application has been submitted.
• Site Prep C – Mircopiles – requires a foundation permit
• Once a determination has been made on the community room, the

design team needs to revise the site plan submittal to reflect
Concept B and the decision on the community room.

175



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  December 1, 2015 
2 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 
Item Description Estimated Completion 
GMP #2 (Outfall 
Construction) 

The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 
are currently finalizing the paperwork for this phase 
of work. 

December 2015 

GMP #3 (Site 
Preparation A) 

The subcontractor has completed their work and the 
contract is being closed out. 

November 2015 

GMP #4 (Site 
Preparation B) 

Construction activities have begun May 2016 

 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 
GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 
Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 
Includes Membrane Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection 
equipment procurement and design support.  Does not include 
installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 
Construction of a new outfall from approximately the 
waterfront trail out into Oak Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15.  
Preliminary site excavation and archaeological investigation.  
Preliminary results indicate this work will come in under budget 
or be delayed until Site Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 
(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package B will include utility relocates, minor 
demolition at the existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, 
sheet pile installation and deep excavation.  City Council 
approved GMP #4 on October 20. . 

Overall Project TBD 60% design documents have been received by the City. Carollo 
and Hoffman completed cost estimates. Staff presented the 
updated cost estimate to City Council at a workshop on 
September 30th with options regarding biosolids handling and 
including a community/training room.  90% Design is expected 
to begin in October. 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

$2,028,222 Bio-solids handling options were presented to City Council at a 
Special Workshop held on September 30th.  A Resolution and 
GMP #5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved at the 
October 20th City Council Meeting.   

Community Room TBD Cost estimates and funding for the community room were 
presented with the 60% cost estimate on September 30th and .  
The community room was discussed at the October 20th City 
Council meeting.  Council directed staff to explore a larger 
facility and report back on December 15th. 

 

  

176



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  December 1, 2015 
3 

 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant was also offered. 
The 2016 CWSRF agreement is currently being drafted. 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

Application for 2017 CWSRF funding was submitted October 16, 2015. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant 

Finalizing agreement for $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program. 

Bond Anticipation Note Staff is taking the necessary steps to secure interim financing through US Bank to 
bridge the gap between CWSRF reimbursements and the issuance of revenue 
bonds.  We are anticipating a $10,000,000 short term loan (6 months) at 0.64% 
interest. 

Bonds The City’s financial advisor for the project, PFM, presented options for issuing 
bonds for the new Clean Water Facility at the September 30th City Council Special 
Workshop.  The City is reviewing our funding options with regards to CWSRF vs. 
Bonds to develop the most advantageous funding program for the project. The 
goal is to reduce the overall burden on the rate payers. City staff initiated 
preparation of POS statement necessary to issue revenue bonds. 

Rates HDR presented potential rate impacts of the new Clean Water Facility to City 
Council at a Special Workshop held September 30th.  Staff is currently reviewing 
the impacts of the funding sources listed above, current bond rates and the 
estimated cost of the project to determine how the project rates might be 
impacted by the construction cost increases and lower financing rates. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 

Upcoming activities or 
In-Progress activities Description 

Project communications 
plan 

With initiation of the Site Prep B portion of the project, the project team will be 
upgrading the Good Neighbor Plan.    

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

An amendment to Carollo Engineer’s contract on October 20th includes 
development of the Windjammer Park Integration Plan.  Staff is initiating 
activities in early November and will present a work plan to Council in mid-
December. 

Ground breaking 
Ceremony 

A groundbreaking ceremony is scheduled for November 17th at 3:00pm at the 
project site. 

 

177



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  December 1, 2015 
4 

 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  

 

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 
 
Mail  
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 
 
Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 

Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org 

 

We are here 

178

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon 
Update by the Race Director -
Elks Lodge

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
N/A

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Monthly Report on the progress of the 2016 Marathon.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Requested by City Council

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.iii
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon 
Update by the Race Director -
Elks Lodge

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
N/A

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Monthly Report on the progress of the 2016 Marathon.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Requested by City CouncilRequested by City Council

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

Requested by City Council

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

179



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: NLC Conference - Select 
Councilmembers 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Select Councilmembers to attend the NLC Conference.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The NLC Conference in Washington, D.C. is scheduled for March 5 - 9, 2016.

Councilmembers Hizon, Servatius, and Munns attended the NLC Conference last year.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.iv
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: NLC Conference - Select 
Councilmembers 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Select Councilmembers to attend the NLC Conference.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The NLC Conference in Washington, D.C. is scheduled for March 5 - 9, 2016.

Councilmembers Hizon, Servatius, and Munns attended the NLC Conference last year.

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

180



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1751: Vacating 
Beach Avenue

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Hold a public hearing and approve Ordinance 1751 vacating the public right of way known as "Beach 
Avenue" located within Windjammer Park between SE City Beach Street and SW Beeksma Drive. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Prior to City acquisition of what is now Windjammer Park, a public street named "Beach Avenue" was 
established to provide access to the lots created in the southern portion of what is now Windjammer 
Park.  When the City acquired the parcels that make up Windjammer, the need for a public right of way
was eliminated.  "Beach Avenue" has not been used as a public street and there is no need for a street in

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1751: Vacating 
Beach Avenue

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Hold a public hearing and approve Ordinance 1751 vacating the public right of way known as "Beach 
Avenue" located within Windjammer Park between SE City Beach Street and SW Beeksma Drive. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Prior to City acquisition of what is now Windjammer Park, a public street named "Beach Avenue" was 
established to provide access to the lots created in the southern portion of what is now Windjammer 
Park.  When the City acquired the parcels that make up Windjammer, the need for a public right of way 
was eliminated.  "Beach Avenue" has not been used as a public street and there is no need for a street inwas eliminated.  "Beach Avenue" has not been used as a public street and there is no need for a street in
that location in the future.  A street running through the southern portion of Windjammer is not consistent
with park use and the location of the street interferes with the City's construction of the new Waste Water
Treatment Facility.  The City needs to complete a boundary line adjustment between the Windjammer 
Park lot and the former Whidbey Island Bank lot and cannot do so until "Beach Avenue" is vacated. 

On November 4, 2015, Council approved Resolution 15-35, which initiated the street vacation process.  
Following the passage of Resolution 15-35, notice of the intent to vacate was posted as required under 
RCW 35.79.  A public hearing must now be held and Ordinance 1751 passed in order to complete the 
vacation process. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 35.79.010

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was first presented at the October 28, 2015 workshop.

was eliminated.  "Beach Avenue" has not been used as a public street and there is no need for a street in 
that location in the future.  A street running through the southern portion of Windjammer is not consistent 
with park use and the location of the street interferes with the City's construction of the new Waste Water 
Treatment Facility.  The City needs to complete a boundary line adjustment between the Windjammer 
Park lot and the former Whidbey Island Bank lot and cannot do so until "Beach Avenue" is vacated. 

On November 4, 2015, Council approved Resolution 15-35, which initiated the street vacation process.  
Following the passage of Resolution 15-35, notice of the intent to vacate was posted as required under 
RCW 35.79.  A public hearing must now be held and Ordinance 1751 passed in order to complete the 
vacation process. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 35.79.010

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was first presented at the October 28, 2015 workshop.

6.a

181



Resolution 15-35 initiating the vacation process was passed on 11/4/15.  

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 1751

Resolution 15-35 initiating the vacation process was passed on 11/4/15.  

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 1751

182

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447358595_at.pdf


Ordinance 1751 – Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1751 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR VACATING, PURSUANT TO 

CHAPTER 35.79 RCW, PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY KNOWN AS BEACH AVENUE LOCATED 

WITHIN WINDJAMMER PARK BETWEEN SE CITY BEACH STREET (70
th

) AND SW

BEEKSMA DRIVE IN THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR. 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 15-35 adopted on November 4, 2015, the Oak Harbor City 

Council stated its intention to vacate the portion of Beach Avenue located within Windjammer 

Park between SE City Beach Street (70
th

) and SW Beeksma Drive, being legally described on

EXHIBIT "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the vacation of said street on December 1, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the evidence and public comment presented at the 

hearing and entered the following findings of fact: 

1. The portion of Beach Avenue located within Windjammer Park between SE City Beach

Street (70
th

) and SW Beeksma Drive, more fully described in EXHIBIT "A", was

established to provide access to lots created in the southerly portion of Windjammer Park

prior to the City’s acquisition of the property, but upon City’s acquisition of the property,

the parcels accessed by Beach Avenue were consolidated into City ownership and were

thereafter used for park purposes, eliminating the need for a street in the location of Beach

Avenue.

2. The subject portion of Beach Avenue has not been used as a public street for many decades,

if ever, and no future need for a street in the location of this portion of Beach Avenue is

anticipated.

3. A street in the location of the subject portion of Beach Avenue is incompatible with the

City’s park usage of the property.

4. The vacation of this portion of right-of-way would not adversely affect the street pattern

or circulation of the immediate area or the community as a whole.

5. The public need will not be adversely affected by the vacation of this portion of Beach

Avenue.

6. The City is the sole owner of all property abutting the portion of Beach Avenue to be

vacated.

7. The City’s property will not be landlocked by the vacation nor will access to the City’s

property be substantially impaired.

183



Ordinance 1751 – Page 2 

8. The section of Beach Avenue to be vacated does not abut any body of fresh or salt water,

and the provisions of RCW 35.79.035 do not apply to the subject vacation.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, 

WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  That portion of Beach Avenue legally described in EXHIBIT "A" is hereby vacated. 

Section 2.  No payment or other consideration shall be required for the vacation of said street, 

and there shall be no conditions precedent to this ordinance becoming effective. 

Section 3.  This ordinance and the vacation of the street referred to herein shall become effective 

five (5) days after publication of this ordinance and upon the recording of a certified copy of the 

same in the records of the Island County Auditor. 

PASSED by the City Council this _____ day of _______________, 2015. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

By:  

       SCOTT DUDLEY, Mayor 

Attest: 

By:  

       ANNA THOMPSON, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

By:  

        NIKKI C. ESPARZA, City Attorney 

Date of Publication:  _______________ 

Effective Date (5 days after publication):  _______________ 

L:\LGLG\2015 Ord and Res\Ord 1751 Beach Vacation .doc

184



Ordinance 1751 – Page 3 

EXHIBIT "A" 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF BEACH AVENUE 

AREA TO BE VACATED 

All of Beach Avenue lying within Government Lots 3 and 4, and Government Lot 5, if 

any, in Section 2, Township 32 North, Range 1 East W.M., 

EXCEPT any portion lying Easterly of the Westerly line of City Beach Street (formerly 

70
th

 SW) and ALSO EXCEPT any portion lying Westerly of the Easterly line of S.

Beeksma Dr. (formerly 80
th

 SW).

Situate in the County of Island, State of Washington. 

185



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1753: 2015 
Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
 Conduct public hearing
 Adopt Ordinance No. 1753 approving the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  The amendments include land use 

map amendments for three properties on SW 3rd Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-4940, and 
R13203-488-5060) from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential and updates to the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6.b
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1753: 2015 
Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
 Conduct public hearing
 Adopt Ordinance No. 1753 approving the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  The amendments include land use 

map amendments for three properties on SW 3rd Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-4940, and 
R13203-488-5060) from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential and updates to the R13203-488-5060) from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential and updates to the 
Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).  

The City Council approved the docket for the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 3, 
2015.  The docket included an update to the Capital Improvements Plan, Land Use change for three 
properties on SW 3rd Avenue and the incorporation of the Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment 
Facility.   

Capital Improvements Plan 2016-2021 –

The 2015 update included minor changes to some revenue sources and project schedules.  However, no 
new projects were added as part of this year’s update.  There are no policy changes to the CIP this year. 
The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the CIP on October 27, 2015.  The report to 
the Planning Commission that includes the criteria based evaluation for the CIP is attached to this memo. 
The Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the updated Capital Improvements Plan. 

Land use changes for three properties on SW 3rd Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-
4940, and R13203-488-5060) - Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential

This is a sponsored application requesting a change to the land use.  The Planning Commission held a 
public hearing on this item at its July 28, 2015 meeting.  Please refer to the July 28th report to Planning 

R13203-488-5060) from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential and updates to the 
Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).  

The City Council approved the docket for the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 3, 
2015.  The docket included an update to the Capital Improvements Plan, Land Use change for three 
properties on SW 3rd Avenue and the incorporation of the Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment 
Facility.   

Capital Improvements Plan 2016-2021 –

The 2015 update included minor changes to some revenue sources and project schedules.  However, no 
new projects were added as part of this year’s update.  There are no policy changes to the CIP this year. 
The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the CIP on October 27, 2015.  The report to 
the Planning Commission that includes the criteria based evaluation for the CIP is attached to this memo. 
The Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the updated Capital Improvements Plan. 

Land use changes for three properties on SW 3rd Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-
4940, and R13203-488-5060) - Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential

This is a sponsored application requesting a change to the land use.  The Planning Commission held a 
public hearing on this item at its July 28, 2015 meeting.  Please refer to the July 28th report to Planning 

186



Commission for details on this amendment and the criteria based evaluation in accordance with OHMC 
18.15.080.  The Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of this land use change. 

Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment Plant

The inclusion of the Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment Plant was originally approved as part of
the 2015 Comprehensive Plan docket to memorialize the City’s action on the facility.  However, after 
further research, staff recommends that its incorporation be done in conjunction with the adoption of the 
2016 Update to the Comprehensive Plan.  The inclusion of the Facility Plan is primarily an organizational
step to record the City’s action.  Therefore no action is being proposed regarding this for the 2015 
Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  A deferred action does not impact the project.

PLANNING COMMISSION

As was noted above, the Planning Commission conducted individual public hearings (July 28th and 
October 27th) on the proposed amendments.  The proposed amendments were reviewed against the 
standards of OHMC Section 18.15.080, Annual Amendment Decision Criteria.  At the conclusion of the 
public hearings the Commission recommended approval of the proposed amendments.  The Planning 

Commission took a separate action at their October 27th meeting to forward their recommendations to 
the City Council.

CONCLUSION

The Planning Commission fulfilled their obligation to review the proposed amendments, conduct public 
hearings, and forward a recommendation on these items to the City Council.  This work was 
accomplished in accordance with the provisions of OHMC Chapter 18.15, Comprehensive Plan 

Commission for details on this amendment and the criteria based evaluation in accordance with OHMC 
18.15.080.  The Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of this land use change. 

Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment Plant

The inclusion of the Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment Plant was originally approved as part of 
the 2015 Comprehensive Plan docket to memorialize the City’s action on the facility.  However, after 
further research, staff recommends that its incorporation be done in conjunction with the adoption of the 
2016 Update to the Comprehensive Plan.  The inclusion of the Facility Plan is primarily an organizational 
step to record the City’s action.  Therefore no action is being proposed regarding this for the 2015 
Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  A deferred action does not impact the project.

PLANNING COMMISSION

As was noted above, the Planning Commission conducted individual public hearings (July 28th and 
October 27th) on the proposed amendments.  The proposed amendments were reviewed against the 
standards of OHMC Section 18.15.080, Annual Amendment Decision Criteria.  At the conclusion of the 
public hearings the Commission recommended approval of the proposed amendments.  The Planning 

Commission took a separate action at their October 27th meeting to forward their recommendations to 
the City Council.

CONCLUSION

The Planning Commission fulfilled their obligation to review the proposed amendments, conduct public 
hearings, and forward a recommendation on these items to the City Council.  This work was 
accomplished in accordance with the provisions of OHMC Chapter 18.15, Comprehensive Plan accomplished in accordance with the provisions of OHMC Chapter 18.15, Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment Process.  The City Council must now conduct its own public hearing and take action on the 
proposed amendments.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 1753 would have the Council accepting the 
Planning Commission’s recommendations and approving the amendments. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Adopting amendments to the Future Land Use Map are not anticipated to have any immediate fiscal 
impacts.  The Capital Improvements Plan was updated to adjust the schedules and costs for proposed 
projects but no new projects were added.  The Comprehensive Plan and the CIP are “planning”
documents and inclusion of project and policies in these documents do not directly relate to immediate 
fiscal impacts.  When the budget is adopted for the City, certain projects from the Comprehensive Plan 
and the CIP may be chosen for implementation based on the resources available.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 Planning Commission conducted individual public hearings (July 28th and October 27th) on the 
proposed amendments.

ATTACHMENTS

accomplished in accordance with the provisions of OHMC Chapter 18.15, Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment Process.  The City Council must now conduct its own public hearing and take action on the 
proposed amendments.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 1753 would have the Council accepting the 
Planning Commission’s recommendations and approving the amendments. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Adopting amendments to the Future Land Use Map are not anticipated to have any immediate fiscal 
impacts.  The Capital Improvements Plan was updated to adjust the schedules and costs for proposed 
projects but no new projects were added.  The Comprehensive Plan and the CIP are “planning”
documents and inclusion of project and policies in these documents do not directly relate to immediate 
fiscal impacts.  When the budget is adopted for the City, certain projects from the Comprehensive Plan 
and the CIP may be chosen for implementation based on the resources available.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 Planning Commission conducted individual public hearings (July 28th and October 27th) on the 
proposed amendments.

ATTACHMENTS 187



ATTACHMENTS
1. Planning Commission report and minutes of October 27, 2015 recommending approval of the 2016-
2021 Capital Improvements Plan and the Land Use changes on SW 3rd Avenue
2. Ordinance No. 1753

ATTACHMENTS
1. Planning Commission report and minutes of October 27, 2015 recommending approval of the 2016-
2021 Capital Improvements Plan and the Land Use changes on SW 3rd Avenue
2. Ordinance No. 1753

188

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448327058_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448327058_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448326954_at.pdf


Attachment 1 

October 27, 2015 

Planning Commission Report 

189



 City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

Date:  October 27, 2015 
Subject: 2015 Comprehensive 

Plan Amendments 

FROM:    Cac Kamak, AICP 
Senior Planner 

PURPOSE  
This memo presents the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  The amendments include land 
use changes for three properties on SW 3rd Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-4940, and 
R13203-488-5060) from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential and updates to 
the Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).   

The Planning Commission is requested to conduct a public hearing at the October 27th meeting 
and take public testimony.  The Planning Commission is expected to make a recommendation to 
the City Council on the amendments.      

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 
Oak Harbor’s Comprehensive Plan includes several elements such as Utilities, Transportation, 
Economic Development, Capital Facilities etc. that includes policies and improvements system 
wide that have fiscal impacts.  This year’s amendments do not include changes that add any 
fiscal impacts.  The Capital Improvements Plan was updated to adjust the schedules and costs but 
have not been amended to add any projects.  The Comprehensive Plan and the CIP are 
“planning” documents and inclusion of project and policies in these documents do not directly 
relate to immediate fiscal impacts.  When the budget is adopted for the city, certain projects from 
the Comprehensive Plan and the CIP may be chosen for implementation based on the resources 
avalable.  That is when funds are programmed for planning, design and construction.  The 

The Land Use Map amendment for the three properties on SW 3rd Avenue is not anticipated to 
have any immediate fiscal impacts to the City. 

BACKGROUND 
The City Council approved the docket for the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 
3, 2015.  The docket included an update to the Capital Improvements Plan, Land Use change for 
three properties on SW 3rd Avenue and the incorporation of the Facility Plan for the Wastewater 
Treatment Facility.   

Land use changes for three properties on SW 3rd Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-
4940, and R13203-488-5060) - Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential 
This is a sponsored application requesting a change to the land use.  The Planning Commission 
held a public hearing on this item at its July 28, 2015 meeting.  Please refer to the July 28th report 

10

190



 City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

to Planning Commission for details on this amendment and the criteria based evaluation in 
accordance with OHMC 18.15.080.  The Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of 
this land use change.  

Capital Improvements Plan 2016-2021 –  
The Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) has been amended annually to reflect the most recent 
revenue and expenditure projections.  The format of various funds within the CIP was changed in 
2014 to better track projects and their schedule by incorporating project expenditures and 
revenues sources in the same table to ensure that adequate funds exist to implement a project at 
the prescribed time.  The 2015 update has minor changes to some revenues and schedules.  
However, no new projects have been added as part of this years update.  There are no policy 
changes to the CIP this year. 

Tables for the various funds have been attached for your review.  To limit printing of the entire 
document, especially since policies have not been amended this year, only the tables for the 
various funds that lists the projects over the next six years have been attached to this report.  To 
view the entire document please visit the following link:  

Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Though the incorporation of the Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment Plant was approved 
as part of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan docket, staff recommends that it be done in conjunction 
with the adoption of the 2016 Update to the Comprehensive Plan.  Staff is working on an 
organization chart for the Comprehensive Plan and will help with the incorporation for plans 
such as these.   

DISCUSSION 
The Future Land Use Map Amendments for the properties on SW 3rd Avenue were previously 
reviewed against the Comprehensive Plan review criteria established in OHMC 18.15.080, as 
shown in the Planning Commission reports that are attached to this report.  The Capital 
Improvements Plan 2016-2021 is reviewed against the criteria below. 

Comprehensive Plan Review Criteria  
In accordance with OHMC 18.15.080 the Planning Commission shall review and make a 
recommendation on the CIP 2016-2021 to the City Council based on the criteria listed below. 

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in any 
significant way. 
The proposed CIP and related amendments will not adversely affect the public health, 
safety and welfare.   Projects in the CIP are scheduled based on need identified in 
approved plans and are intended to serve the public needs and improve health, safety and 
welfare.   

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 
comprehensive plan. 
The proposed CIP and schedule of projects are intended to implement the goals and 

11

191



 City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

intent of approved Plans and are therefore consistent with the existing goals and policies 
of the Comprehensive Plan.  .  

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the Countywide 
Planning Policies. 
The amendments are in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the 
Countywide Planning Polices.  The Capital Improvements Plan includes projects from 
other adopted plans.  

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community as a 
whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 
The amendments to the Capital Improvements Plan reflect the ongoing changes to 
projects and schedules based on budget, permits or other related issues. The Capital 
Improvements Plan 2016-2021 has been generated by taking into account the changing 
circumstances within the community and based on available resources. 

(5) Environmental impact from the amendments have been addressed through the SEPA 
review and /or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 
A SEPA checklist has been prepared for the amendments.  No significant environmental 
impacts have been identified with the adoption of the amended CIP.  However, projects 
that are in the CIP may have environmental impacts and mitigation.  Each individual 
project will have a separate SEPA review and impacts will be addressed on a project by 
project basis. 

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which were the 
basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth allocations. 
The projects within the CIP have their source in adopted Plans that are based on the 
projected population growth and allocations.  Therefore there are several projects in the 
CIP that are intended to address level of service issues which is primarily related to land 
use and population growth. 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and surrounding 
neighborhoods. 
The CIP document and its adoption do not create any land use changes.  However, there 
may be individual projects within the CIP that may have to address compatibility during 
permitting and design process.  These will be dealt on a project by project basis. 

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city council. 
The amendments to the CIP update include decisions made by the City Council during 
the course of the year.   

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified as the beginning of the process. 
No special criteria were identified as the beginning of the process to consider this year’s 
amendments. 

12

192



 City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Conduct public hearing on the CIP 2016-2021 and recommend its approval.
• Forward a recommendation to the City Council on the adoption of the 2015

Comprehensive Plan Amendments that include updates to the Capital Improvements Plan
(CIP) and amends the Future Land Use Map to designate three properties on SW 3rd
Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-4940, and R13203-488-5060) from Low
Density Residential to Medium Density Residential.

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Planning Commission Report – Land Use change for properties on SW 3rd Avenue

(R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-4940, and R13203-488-5060) from Low Density
Residential to Medium Density Residential

2. Planning Commission minutes – July 28, 2015
3. Capital Improvements Plan 2016-2021 (Tables only)

13

193



CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LAND USE CHANGE – 185 SW 

3RD AVENUE AND ADJACENT PARCELS (R13203-488-4830, R13203-348-

4940 AND R13203-488-5060) 

DATE: JULY 27, 2015 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

PURPOSE: 

This memo addresses the land use change requested by Valley High Investments Incorporated for 

three properties located south of SW 3
rd

 Avenue and west of Oak Harbor Road (Attachment 1).  

The request was made as part of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendment process.     

PROCESS: 

The process to amend the Comprehensive Plan is regulated by OHMC Chapter 18.15.  This land 

use amendment was added to the preliminary docket in 2015 as a sponsored amendment and 

approved by the City Council on March 3, 2015.  Public notification on the project will be in 

accordance to the requirements set forth in OHMC Section 18.20.380(5).  The land use change 

along with the other comprehensive plan amendments will be reviewed by the applicable criteria 

established under OHMC Section 18.15.080.   

BACKGROUND 

Valley High Investments Incorporated owns two properties along SW 3
rd

 Avenue.  One property 

(185 SW 3
rd

 Ave) has a single family residence on it, and the other is vacant.  The properties are 

each approximately 44,000 square feet in area and are substantially larger than the 7,200 square 

feet minimum lot size requirements in the current R-1 Single Family Residential District.  Valley 

High Investments Incorporated believes that these properties can be developed to a higher density 

and has therefore requested a land use change.  To the east of the properties owned by Valley 

High Investments is a single parcel owned by the Oak Harbor School District (OHSD) that is also 

currently vacant of structures and has an access road into the Oak Harbor Middle School.  The 

OHSD does not have any change in plans for their property, however, Valley High Investments 

Incorporated has included the property in the requested change since it creates a better transition 

to the High Density Residential designated along Oak Harbor Road to the east (see attachment 2 

Land Use Map).  The OHSD is aware of Valley High Investments request for the land use change 

and is not opposed to their inclusion in this amendment (see Attachment 3 – letter). 

DISCUSSION 

Site Characteristics 

The properties are mostly flat and are devoid of any sudden slope changes. As mentioned above, 

there is a single family residence on the western most property of the three included in the 

request.  The property to the west is a church (Assembly of God), and the church’s parsonage is 

adjacent to the single family residence on the applicant’s property. To the north and across the 

street is also a church (First Reformed Church).  To the east, the properties are developed with 

ATTACHMENT 114

194



2 
 

multifamily residential structures along Oak Harbor Road.  Oak Harbor Middle School lies south 

of the subject properties.  

 

Sewer and water are available to the properties from SW 3
rd

 Avenue.  SW 3
rd

 Avenue is primarily 

a two lane asphalt street with ditches on either side for drainage.  The south side of SW 3
rd

 Ave 

has sidewalks on the south side adjacent to the property.   

 

 
 

 

Review Criteria 

OHMC Section 18.15.080 establishes the criteria to review annual amendments to the 

Comprehensive Plan were the criteria are applicable.  The criteria and their review are provided 

below. 

 

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in any 

significant way. 

The amendment requested will increase the allowed density of the property from 3-6 

units per acre to 3-12 units per acre.  This increase in density is not uncharacteristic of 

this area that has high density residential uses immediately adjacent to the east.  The other 

uses surrounding the properties are two churches and a school which would be minimally 

impacted from the increased density.  The proposed amendment and increase in density is 

well suited to take advantage of the utilities and services that are adjacent to these 

properties.  Therefore, the proposed amendment will not adversely affect the public 

ATTACHMENT 115

195



3 
 

health, safety and welfare.  

 

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 

comprehensive plan. 

The proposed change will allow a higher density residential development in this area.  

This change is supported by goals and policies in the Comprehensive Plan that support 

infill development and encourage a mix of housing types.  This location is served by city 

utilities and is near many services such as retail, groceries, home improvement stores, 

schools etc.  The location also serves as an ideal transition from high density to the east to 

low density to the west.  The location for this change is further enhanced due to the 

location of churches adjacent to the subject properties that provide a break and a 

transition from the subject properties to other low density residential uses to the west.       

 

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the countywide 

planning policies. 

The proposed change to the land use designation does not create any inconsistencies with 

the Growth Management Act or the County Wide Planning Policies.  In fact, it is 

supported by the Act and the CWPP that support infill development and higher densities 

where infrastructure is already available.   

 

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community as a 

whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 

The amendment does not resolve any inconsistencies.  However, the amendment can be 

seen as addressing the needs of changing circumstances because by supporting higher 

densities within the city limits where urban services are already available, it reduces the 

need for seeking land in the fringes of the city where utilities need to be extended.  It is 

fair to say that increasing the density, where appropriate, within the city is generally a 

better option than seeking UGA boundary changes and is highly encouraged by GMA 

and the CWPP.  

 

(5) Environmental impacts from the amendments have been addressed through SEPA review 

and/or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 

There are no immediate environmental impacts from the land use change.  However, 

development of the property will need to meet the requirements of Oak Harbor’s 

Municipal Code and may require a SEPA review.  Any impacts can be addressed at the 

time of development.  Since similar uses are accommodated in both designations, 

environmental impacts will not be significantly different due to the change. 

   

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which were the 

basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth allocations. 

The proposed amendment to increase the density is consistent with land use and growth 

projections.  The City is aware that NAS Whidbey will have an increase in personal due 

to the increase in squadrons.  Therefore, increasing the density in areas where services are 

available will help with providing additional housing options for the increase in 

population. 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 116

196



4 
 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and surrounding 

neighborhoods. 

The proposed amendment is compatible with the neighboring land uses and creates a 

good transition from the high density multifamily uses to the east to the low density 

residential uses to the west.  The transitions are further enhanced with location of 

churches adjacent to the subject properties.   

 

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city council.  

This is not applicable for this change since it does not address a new policy direction. 

 

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified at the beginning of the process.  

 Not applicable. 

 

From the above review, it can be determined that there will not likely be adverse impacts from 

changing the land use designations for the property from Low Density Residential to Medium 

Density Residential.    

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Conduct Public Hearing 

 Recommend amending the Future Land Use Map designation for the subject properties 

from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Location Map 

2. Land Use Map 

3. OHSD Letter 

4. Application 

ATTACHMENT 117

197



Ha
wth

orn
e P

ark

SR 20

SW
 3R

D A
VE

W 
WH

IDB
EY

 AV
E

SW
 6T

H A
VE

SW FAIRHAVEN DR

SW
 1S

T A
VE

SW DYER ST

S OAK HARBOR ST

SW
 4T

H A
VE SWERIEST

SE
 3R

D A
VEE W

HID
BE

Y A
VE

SW
 2N

D A
VE SW

 EC
HO

 LO
OP

SE ATLAS ST

SW CRUISE ST

SW ER I E
CI

R

SW DISCOVERY ST

SW ESTON CT

SW FESTIVAL CT

NWBOSUNST

SW
 6T

H A
VE

SW
 6T

H A
VE

SW
 2N

D A
VE

0
25

0
50

0
12

5
Fe

et

µ

Va
lle

y H
igh

 In
ve

stm
en

t P
rop

ert
ies

Va
lle

y H
igh

 In
ve

stm
en

t P
rop

ert
ies

OH
SD

 Pr
op

ert
y

Proposed Land Use Change ATTACHMENT 1

ATTACHMENT 118

198



ATTACHMENT 2

ATTACHMENT 119

199



ATTACHMENT 3

ATTACHMENT 120

200



ATTACHMENT 4

ATTACHMENT 121

201



ATTACHMENT 122

202



ATTACHMENT 123

203



ATTACHMENT 124

204



ATTACHMENT 125

205



ATTACHMENT 126

206



ATTACHMENT 127

207



ATTACHMENT 128

208



ATTACHMENT 129

209



ATTACHMENT 130

210



ATTACHMENT 131

211



ATTACHMENT 132

212



ATTACHMENT 133

213



ATTACHMENT 134

214



ATTACHMENT 135

215



ATTACHMENT 136

216



ATTACHMENT 137

217



ATTACHMENT 138

218



ATTACHMENT 139

219



ATTACHMENT 140

220



ATTACHMENT 141

221



ATTACHMENT 142

222



ATTACHMENT 143

223



ATTACHMENT 144

224



ATTACHMENT 145

225



ATTACHMENT 146

226



ATTACHMENT 147

227



ATTACHMENT 148

228



ATTACHMENT 149

229



ATTACHMENT 150

230



ATTACHMENT 151

231



ATTACHMENT 152

232



ATTACHMENT 153

233



ATTACHMENT 154

234



ATTACHMENT 155

235



ATTACHMENT 156

236



ATTACHMENT 157

237



ATTACHMENT 158

238



ATTACHMENT 159

239



ATTACHMENT 160

240



ATTACHMENT 161

241



ATTACHMENT 162

242



ATTACHMENT 163

243



ATTACHMENT 164

244



ATTACHMENT 165

245



ATTACHMENT 166

246



ATTACHMENT 167

247



ATTACHMENT 168

248



ATTACHMENT 169

249



ATTACHMENT 170

250



ATTACHMENT 171

251



ATTACHMENT 172

252



ATTACHMENT 173

253



ATTACHMENT 174

254



ATTACHMENT 175

255



ATTACHMENT 176

256



ATTACHMENT 177

257



ATTACHMENT 178

258



ATTACHMENT 179

259



ATTACHMENT 180

260



ATTACHMENT 181

261



ATTACHMENT 182

262



ATTACHMENT 183

263



ATTACHMENT 184

264



ATTACHMENT 185

265



ATTACHMENT 186

266



ATTACHMENT 187

267



ATTACHMENT 188

268



ATTACHMENT 189

269



ATTACHMENT 190

270



ATTACHMENT 191

271



ATTACHMENT 192

272



ATTACHMENT 193

273



ATTACHMENT 194

274



ATTACHMENT 195

275



ATTACHMENT 196

276



ATTACHMENT 197

277



ATTACHMENT 198

278



ATTACHMENT 199

279



ATTACHMENT 1100

280



 

Planning Commission 
July 28, 2015 

Page 3 of 4 

ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. WALKER-WYSE SECONDED, MOTION 
CARRIED TO RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL EXTEND THE 
EXISTING MEDICAL MARIJUANA MORATORIUM ORDINANCE NO. 1692 AN 
ADDITIONAL ONE YEAR UNTIL SEPTEMBER 1, 2016.   

 
TELECOMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Lefevre reported that this item is an effort to bring our code current with federal legislation 
“Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012”. Section 6409 of this Act (a.k.a. the 
“Spectrum Act”) mandated that “local governments approve, and cannot deny, an application 
requesting modification of an existing tower or base station if such modification does not 
substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station.” The purpose of this 
act is to facilitate and expedite the deployment of equipment and infrastructure to meet the 
demand for wireless capacity. 

Mr. Lefevre explained that our current code establishes location and options for wireless 
facilities and focuses primarily on the construction of new facilities. The current code permits 
collocation of wireless facilities on existing structures but does not provide an expedited 
application and review process nor provide for mandatory approval if specific criterion are met.    
 
Mr. Lefevre stated that an amendment creating Chapter 19.30 will establish application 
submittal requirements, permit classification, timing for permit review, and the approval process. 
Following adoption of this amendment, Development Services staff will prepare an application 
based on the new Chapter 19.30 guidelines and requirements. Staff will also amend Schedule A 
of the Master Fee Schedule to include this application and review fee. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commissioners asked that the fee schedule be shared with them once the fee has 
been determined.   
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 2) and summarized the 
Comprehensive Plan amendment process, review criteria, location and site characteristics of 
the subject properties.  Mr. Kamak reported that this a is a sponsored amendment to change the 
land use designation from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential for three 
properties located south of SW 3rd Avenue and West of Oak Harbor Road.  Mr. Kamak noted 
that two of the properties are owned by Valley High Investments Incorporated and the third 
property is owned by the Oak Harbor School District.  The school district was contacted by 
Valley High Investments and the school district has no objection to their inclusion in the land use 
designation amendment. 
 
Mr. Kamak recommended that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing and forward 
a recommendation to the City Council to amend the Future Land Use Map designation of the 
subject properties from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commissioners asked about the school district’s plan for their property.  Mr. Kamak 
stated that there was no proposal for the school district property.    
 
The public hearing was opened at 8:59 p.m. There were no comments. 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2101

281

gifford
Highlight

gifford
Highlight



 

Planning Commission 
July 28, 2015 

Page 4 of 4 

ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 
RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL AMMEND THE FUTURE LAND 
USE MAP DESIGNATION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTIES FROM LOW 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL. 

 
The public hearing was closed at 9:05 p.m. 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Workshop 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 3) which presented a review of the 
land use map, current land use designations, associated zoning districts and neighborhoods.  
The Planning Commission discussed and considered a generalized land use map which would 
simplify policies, allow rezoning within the same land use categories, would not be dependent 
on land use changes and would not impact the current zoning classification or the development 
potential.  Planning Commission also discussed forming districts categorized by character, style, 
layout, location, approximate similar era, predominant land use and mix of uses and similar 
uses. 
 
Planning Commissioners were supportive of the idea of using a generalized land use map and 
district categories. 
 
Mr. Kamak said that the next step will be to present this to the City Council at their next 
workshop.  Within the next couple of Planning Commission meetings there should be a structure 
for the land use element.  
 
ADJOURN: 9:45 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

ATTACHMENT 2102

282



2015 COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENT 
SW 3RD AVENUE 

FROM LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO MEDIUM 

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

7/28/2015 

Planning Commission 

Public Hearing 

Background 
Request includes 3 properties

Two owned by Valley High

Investments

Third owned by OHSD

OHSD not opposed

Planning 

Co mmiss ion  

SW 3RD 

AVE 

Site Characteristics 

Existing single family

residence

Surrounded by two churches,

school and multifamily

Relatively flat

Utilities available

Sidewalk
Planning 

Co mmiss ion  

SW 3RD 

AVE 

LOCATION MAP 
 

N
o

rt
h

 

LOCATION MAP 

 

N
o

rt
h

 

Church 

Church 

School 

Multi-

Family 

Review Criteria 

Public health, safety and welfare

Consistent with the
Comprehensive Plan

Compliance with GMA and CWPP

Changing needs or resolves
inconsistencies

Environmental impacts

Consistent with growth and
population

Compatible with surrounding
uses

Accommodates new policy – n/a

Other specific criteria

Planning 

Co mmiss ion  

SW 3RD 

AVE 

ATTACHMENT 2

ATTACHMENT 2103

283



2 

Suggested action 

Consistent with criteria

Hold public hearing

Recommend approval to CC

Planning 

Co mmiss ion  

SW 3RD 

AVE 

ATTACHMENT 2

ATTACHMENT 2104

284



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx  Page 1

Printed 10/15/2015

Table 4.3. Streets  (Non-Enterprise Funded)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Local Street Overlays $2,650,000 $0 $500,000 $500,000 $550,000 $550,000 $550,000
Bayshore Drive Extension 3,500,000 0 0 0 3,500,000 0 0
Whidbey Avenue Crosswalk 224,500 224,500 0 0 0 0 0
Waterfront Trail (Veterans' Park) 150,000 150,000 0 0 0 0 0
Heller Street Overlay (Whidbey to Crosby) 345,000 0 0 0 345,000 0 0
W. Pioneer/City Beach/Bayshore Intersection 200,000 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 0
Pedestrian Access Improvements 638,000 0 114,000 122,000 128,000 134,000 140,000
Capital Project Expenditures $7,707,500 $374,500 $614,000 $822,000 $4,523,000 $684,000 $690,000

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance:

 Streets (Fund 101) $1,714,916 $0 $378,810 $586,106 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000
 Arterials (Fund 104) 300,000 0 0 0 100,000 100,000 100,000
Transportation Capital Improvements (Fund 105) 600,000 0 0 0 200,000 200,000 200,000

Transportation Impact Fees 217,631 34,500 35,190 35,894 36,612 37,344 38,091
REET 1 (50% of annual) 525,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500
REET 2 (50% of annual) 525,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500
Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax: Non-operating 150,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 3,083,750 374,500 0 0 2,709,250 0 0
Other City Funds 500,000 0 0 0 500,000 0 0
Developer Contributions 1,000,000 0 0 0 1,000,000 0 0
Total Available Revenue $8,616,297 $609,000 $614,000 $822,000 $4,995,862 $787,344 $788,091

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $908,797 $234,500 $0 $0 $472,862 $103,344 $98,091

Notes:
moved crosswalk and trail to 2016
crosswalk and trail are fully funded by grants

Projects Total Project 
Costs

ATTACHMENT 3105

285



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.4 Parks and Recreation (Non-Enterprise Funded)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Windjammer Park

Lagoon Bridge $150,000 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Splash Park 250,000 0 0 250,000 0 0 0
Existing Building Replacements 195,000 0 0 0 120,000 75,000 0
  RV Park 2,500,000 0 0 2,500,000 0

Baseball Field Relocation/Planning/Design/Const 1,625,000 0 0 125,000 1,500,000 0 0
Land Acquisition 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Open Space Land Acquisition Near Ft. Nugent Park 250,000 0 250,000 0 0 0 0
Future Park 250,000 0 250,000 0 0 0 0
Future Park 1,500,000 0 0 1,500,000 0 0 0

Total Capital Expenditures $6,720,000 $150,000 $500,000 $4,375,000 $1,620,000 $75,000 $0

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance

Neigh. Parks (Fund 125) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Comm. Parks (Fund 126) 50,000 0 0 50,000 0 0 0

Park Impact Fees 387,951 61,500 62,730 63,985 65,265 66,570 67,901
REET 1 (50% of annual) 525,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500
REET 2 (50% of annual) 525,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500
Paths and Trails 16,085 2,550 2,601 2,653 2,706 2,760 2,815
General Fund 895,000 0 500,000 200,000 120,000 75,000 0
Grants 5,500,000 0 0 4,000,000 1,500,000 0 0
Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $7,899,036 $239,050 $740,331 $4,491,638 $1,862,971 $319,330 $245,716

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $1,179,036 $89,050 $240,331 $116,638 $242,971 $244,330 $245,716

Notes:
$1,500,000 future park funded by grant
$250,000 splash park funded by general fund
$120,000 & $75,000 building replacement funded by general fund
$1,500,000 baseball field relocation funded by grant

Projects Total Project 
Costs

ATTACHMENT 3106

286



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.5 Wastewater System (Enterprise Funded)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Wastewater Treatment Plant $82,893,627 $31,163,643 $51,729,984 $0 $0 $0 $0
Wastewater Treatment Plant - Outfall 800,000 800,000 0 0 0 0 0
Biosolids Removal (Lagoon Treatment Facility) 587,000 0 0 587,000 0 0
Sewer Line Replacements 1,030,000 150,000 170,000 170,000 180,000 180,000 180,000      
SW 6th Ave & Erie St Line Replacement 150,000 150,000 0 0 0 0 0
Ely St Line Replacement 250,000 250,000 0 0 0 0 0
NE 9th to Taftson Line Installation 250,000 250,000 0 0 0 0 0
Downtown Area Restrooms 750,000 0 0 250,000 250,000 250,000 0
Capital Project Expenditures $86,710,627 $32,763,643 $51,899,984 $1,007,000 $430,000 $430,000 $180,000

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contribution from Beginning Fund Balance

Sewer (Fund 402) $1,563,059 $250,000 $0 $715,793 $136,369 $460,897 $0
Cumulative Reserve (Fund 412) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

System Development Charges 630,812 100,000 102,000 104,040 106,121 108,243 110,408
Trunk Line Fees 104,084 16,500 16,830 17,167 17,510 17,860 18,217
Rates 1,563,500 433,500 420,000 170,000 180,000 180,000 180,000
Loans 31,963,643 31,963,643 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue Bond Proceeds 51,729,984 0 51,729,984 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $87,555,082 $32,763,643 $52,268,814 $1,007,000 $440,000 $767,000 $308,625

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $844,455 $0 $368,830 $0 $10,000 $337,000 $128,625

Notes:
$13,372,073 plant funded by $8,260,000 loan, bond proceeds and rates
$2,958,387 outfall funded by 3,2000,000 loan, bond proceeds and rates-update cost?
$17,790,735 and $51,729,984 plant funded by bond proceeds

Projects Total Project 
Costs

ATTACHMENT 3107

287



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.6 Water System (Enterprise Funded)
Total Project 

Costs 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Well No. 9 Replacement (S-1) $251,000 $0 $251,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Deception Pass 10-inch Main Hanger Replacement $120,000 $120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Emergency Supply Study (S-2) 109,000 0 0 0 109,000 0 0
Ault Field Booster Station Surge Protection Analysis (BS-1) 46,000 0 46,000 0 0 0 0
Ault Field Booster Station Surge Protection Const. (BS-1) 208,000 0 0 0 208,000 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9)- NE 4th 407,000 407,000 0 0 0 0 0
Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9)- NE 11th 316,000 316,000 0 0 0 0 0
O'Leary St. Water Main (PZ-1) 636,000 0 636,000 0 0 0 0
North O'Leary St. Water Main (PZ-2) 527,000 0 527,000 0 0 0 0
Telemetry upgrades wells/west tank 55,000 0 0 55,000 0 0 0
Cross City Transmission Main (T-1A) 1,751,000 0 0 0 1,751,000 0 0
Emergency Supply Well (S-4) 64,000 0 0 0 0 64,000 0
West 384 Zone Development (PZ-4) - design 71,000 0 0 0 0 0 71,000
Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9) - design 160,000 0 0 0 0 160,000 0
Telemetry upgrades wells/web viewing 54,000 0 0 0 0 54,000 0
NE Regatta Drive Pipeline (DS-1) 127,000 0 0 0 127,000 0 0
Eastside Reservoir Demolition (S-3) 110,000 0 0 110,000 0 0 0
Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9) - construction 929,000 0 0 0 0 929,000 0
Develop emergency well supply (S-4) 280,000 0 0 0 0 0 280,000
West 384 Zone development (PZ-4) - construction 294,000 0 0 0 0 294,000 0
Glencoe Street Fire Flow Improvements (DS-2) - design 217,000 0 0 0 0 0 217,000
West 384 Zone Extension: Phase 1 (T-3) 3,015,000 0 0 3,015,000 0 0 0
Capital Project Expenditures $9,747,000 $843,000 $1,460,000 $3,180,000 $2,195,000 $1,501,000 $568,000

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance

Water (Fund 401) $1,271,746 $308,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $163,746
Cumulative Reserve (Fund 411) 750,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 0

System Development Charges 1,167,000 185,000 188,700 192,474 196,323 200,249 204,254
Rates 1,350,000 200,000 350,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue Bonds 5,974,953 0 636,000 2,487,526 1,498,677 1,352,750 0
Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $10,513,699 $843,000 $1,524,700 $3,230,000 $2,245,000 $2,102,999 $568,000

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $766,699 $0 $64,700 $50,000 $50,000 $601,999 $0

Projects

ATTACHMENT 3108

288



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.7 Stormwater System (Enterprise Funded)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Scenic Heights (Liszak) Outfall $155,000 $155,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Project Expenditures $155,000 $155,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance

Stormwater (Fund 404) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Cumulative Reserve (Fund 414) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Rates 155,000 155,000 0 0 0 0 0
Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $155,000 $155,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Notes:
moved liszak to 2016

Total Project 
CostsProjects

ATTACHMENT 3109

289



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.8 General Government 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
New West Side Fire Station $4,000,000 $0 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Library HVAC 170,000 170,000 0 0 0 0 0
Animal Shelter 400,000 400,000 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Project Expenditures $4,570,000 $570,000 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
General Fund $570,000 $570,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bond Levy Proceeds - Voter Approved 4,000,000 0 4,000,000 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $4,570,000 $570,000 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expe $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Notes:
$4,000,000 fire station funded by bond proceeds

Projects Total Project 
Costs

ATTACHMENT 3110

290



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.9 Marina (Enterprise Funded)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Capital Project Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue Sources 6-Year Totals 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance

Marina (Fund  ) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Cumulative Reserve (Fund  ) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Rates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Project 
CostsProjects

ATTACHMENT 3111

291



Attachment 1 

Planning Commission  

October 27, 2015 

Draft Minutes 

292



 

Planning Commission 
October 27, 2015 

Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
October 27, 2015 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Greg Wasinger, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson, Mike Piccone, Jes 

Walker-Wyse and Cecil Pierce  
 Absent: Ana Schlecht 

Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planners, 
Cac Kamak and Dennis Lefevre; Associate Planner Ray Lindenburg  

 
Chairman Wasinger called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: Ms. Walker-Wyse pointed out a correction to the Planning Commission 

discussion section of the Maritime Zoning Ordinance agenda item.  The word 
“wouldn’t” in the second sentence should be “would”. 

 
 MRS. PETERSON MOVED, MRS. WALKER-WYSE SECONDED, MOTION 

CARRIED TO APPROVE THE SEPTEMBER 22, 2015 MINUTES AS 
CORRECTED. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Hal Hovey asked if the Windjammer Park Lower Bayshore Master Plan would be under the 
purview of the Planning Commission and when would be updates be presented.  Mr. Powers 
indicated that the Council will be briefed tomorrow at their workshop.  The project is just getting 
started and is being referred to as the Windjammer Park Integration Plan and will look at how 
we integrate the Clean Water Facility into the park.  The Planning Commission will be involved 
as well as the Park Board and a citizen’s advisory group will be formed. Initial public meetings 
should kick off after the first of the year. 
 
2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT: 

 2016 – 2021 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN - Public Hearing 

 2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS: RECOMMENDATION TO CITY 
COUNCIL 

Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 1) and reviewed the 

Comprehensive Plan amendment process.  Mr. Kamak reminded the Planning Commission that 

they held their public hearing and made a recommendation on land use changes for three 

properties on SW 3rd Street at the July 28th meeting. Tonight the Planning Commission will hold 

their public meeting on the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  Mr. Kamak explained that only the 

tables for the various project funds over the next six years have changed and no policy changes 

have been made. Mr. Kamak concluded by asking the Commission to forward a 

recommendation to the City Council on the adoption of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendments that include updates to the Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) and amends the 

Future Land Use Map to designate three properties on SW 3rd Avenue from Low Density 

Residential to Medium Density Residential.   

Planning Commission Discussion  
Planning Commissioners had questions about how projects are added to the CIP and how the 
Planning Commission can get more information about the projects.  There were also questions 

293



 

Planning Commission 
October 27, 2015 

Page 2 of 2 

about the CIP and the relationship between the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and 
the CIP.  Mr. Powers responded to the questions.  
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:52 p.m. 
 
Hal Hovey commented on Table 2.3 Streets and the cost of the Bayshore Drive extension.  He 
also commented that NE 7th Avenue is not on the list well as other street projects that he felt 
were needed rather putting our transportation budget into a single road that nobody has asked 
for (Bayshore Drive extension).  Mr. Hovey also noted that the link for viewing the entire CIP 
was missing from the staff report. 
 
Mr. Wasinger asked Mr. Powers to address the public comment. 
 
Planning Commission also asked if the Transportation Plan update would address some of the 
street improvements that Mr. Hovey mentioned. Mr. Powers indicated the firm of Fehr and 
Peers are analyzing our transportation infrastructure and would be providing an update to the 
Planning Commission in November. 
 
The public hearing concluded. 
 
ACTION: MRS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN AS PRESENTED. 

 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MR PIERCE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE ADOPTION OF 

THE 2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS THAT INCLUDE 

UPDATES TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (CIP) AND AMENDS 

THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP TO DESIGNATE THREE PROPERTIES ON 

SW 3RD AVENUE FROM LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO MEDIUM 

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL.   

 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 2) which gave the Planning 
Commission a brief history of how comprehensive planning has evolved, how Oak Harbor’s 
Comprehensive Plan has developed and been implemented. Mr. Kamak explained that the 
2016 Update will attempt to provide structure and will continue to be revised and evolve over 
time 
 
ADJOURN: 8:28 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

294



ATTACHMENT 1

2015 COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENTS

LAND USE CHANGE ON SW 3RD STREET – THREE 

PROPERTIES - LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO 

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

AND

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 2016-2021

7/28/2015

Planning Commission

Public Hearing

LOCATION MAP

N
o

rt
h

295



ATTACHMENT 1

LOCATION MAP

N
o

rt
h

Church

Church

School

Multi-

Family

Planning Commission held 

a public hearing and 

considered the land use 

change request on July 27, 

2015

Recommended to the City 

Council for approval

Planning 

Commission

CO MPRE H ENS I V E  

PLA N 

A MENDME NT S

296



ATTACHMENT 1

 Growth Management Act requires:

 Comprehensive Plan

 Capital Facilities Element

 Specific requirements found in RCW 36.70A.070(3):

 Identify projects needed

 When they are required

 How they will be funded

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

 This draft:

 Updates projects

 Updates revenues and expenditures

 Schedules based on available resources

 Balancing ending balances

 Part of annual amendment process even though tracking budget

 Projects include those for:

 Streets

 Parks

 Wastewater

 Water

 Stormwater

 General government

 Marina

 Full document can be found at
http://www.oakharbor.org/get_document.cfm?document=4627

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

297

http://www.oakharbor.org/get_document.cfm?document=4627


ATTACHMENT 1

Suggested action

Hold public hearing

Recommend that the City

Council approve the CIP

Forward a recommendation on

the 2015 Comprehensive Plan

Amendments, which includes

the land use changes and the

CIP, to the City Council Planning 

Commission

CO MPRE H ENS I V E  

PLA N 

A MENDME NT S

298



Attachment 2

Ordinance 1753

299



Ordinance to amend Comp Plan 2015 
Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 1753 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 18.10.010, 
COMPREHENSIVE PLANS, SECTION 18.10.011 ADOPTING A REVISED FUTURE LAND 
USE MAP AND AMENDING SECTION 18.10.015 ADOPTING AN UPDATED CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor first adopted a Comprehensive Plan consistent with the 
requirements of the Washington State Growth Management Act (Chapter 36.70A RCW) in 1995 
by Ordinance 1027, and adopted amendments to the plan in 1997 by Ordinance 1100, in 1998 by 
Ordinance 1161, in 2000 by Ordinance 1215, in 2001 by Ordinance 1287, in 2003 by Ordinance 
1340, in 2004 by Ordinance 1396, in 2005 by Ordinance 1439 and in 2007 by Ordinance 1488 
and in 2008 by Ordinance 1542; and in 2009 by Ordinance 1564; and 2010 by Ordinance 1594; 
and 2012 by Ordinance 1647; and in 2014 by Ordinance 1703;  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor, in the public interest, may adopt amendments as revisions 
to the Comprehensive Plan no more frequently than once per year in accordance with the State of 
Washington Growth Management Act RCW 36.70A.130(2); and  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor initiated the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments in 
October 2014 with a call for applications to the public; and 

WHEREAS, the preliminary docket for the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments was 
compiled and noticed to the public, and the review of which included public hearings held by the 
Planning Commission and City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after holding a public hearing, approved a final docket for the 
2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 3, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor initiated the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments in 
March 2015 that included consideration of a new land use designation and an update to the 
Capital Improvements Plan; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held several public meetings in June, August and 
September reviewing the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendment docket items; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the land use changes on July 28, 
2015 and a public hearing for the Capital Improvements Plan on October 27, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, a SEPA Determination of Nonsignificance was issued for the 2015 Comprehensive 
Plan amendments on November 9, 2015 with an appeal period ending on November 30, 2015, 
which received no substantive comment; and  

WHEREAS, the 2015 Comprehensive Plan amendment review process beginning in March 2015 
and continuing through the adoption of this Ordinance involved early and continuous public 

300



Ordinance to amend Comp Plan 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

involvement through public meetings and hearings, as required by the Growth Management Act 
and the City’s public participation plan; and 

WHEREAS, as required by RCW 36.70A.106, the City provided 60-days’ notice to the 
Department of Commerce on September 21, 2015 and received no substantive comments from 
the Department; and 

WHEREAS, changes in conditions have occurred in the community since adoption of the 
previous Comprehensive Plan making it desirable to amend the Plan; and 

WHEREAS, after due and proper notice, public hearings were conducted by the Planning 
Commission on July 28, 2015, October 27, 2015 and City Council on December 1, 2015 
covering all proposed changes in the update of the Comprehensive Plan;  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One. Section 18.10.010 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code last amended by Section 1 of 
Ordinance 1703 in 2014 is amended to read as follows: 

The comprehensive plan, a copy of which is on file with the city clerk, and is available 
for inspection, is hereby adopted on December 1, 2015 as Oak Harbor's Comprehensive 
Plan, amending and revising the comprehensive plan as adopted under Ordinance No. 
1753. 

Section Two.  Section 18.10.011 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code last amended by Section 2 
of Ordinance 1703 in 2014 is hereby amended to read as follows:  

The Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Designation Map, a copy of 
which is on file with the city clerk, and is available for inspection, is hereby adopted on 
December 1, 2015 as Oak Harbor's Future Land Use Designation Map, amending and 
revising the Future Land Use Designation Map adopted under Ordinance No. 1703. 

Section Three.  Section 18.10.015 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code last amended by Section 1 
of Ordinance 1708 is hereby amended to read as follows:  

The Capital Improvements Plan 2016-2021, a copy of which is on file with the city clerk, 
and is available for inspection, is hereby adopted on December 1, 2015 as Oak Harbor's 
Capital Improvements Plan, amending and revising the Capital Improvements Plan 
adopted under Ordinance No. 1708. 

Section Four.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the 
provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

Section Five.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force (5) five days following 
publication. 

301



 
Ordinance to amend Comp Plan 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

 
PASSED by the City Council this 1st day of December, 2015. 
 
APPROVED by its Mayor this _____ day of _______________, 2015. 
        

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
              
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
       
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
       
City Attorney 
 
Published:       
 

302



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-39: Surplus of 
Property Acquired by Utility 
Funds

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to set a Public Hearing date of December 1, 2015 to adopt Resolution
15-39 Declaring property acquired by the utility funds to be surplus property.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Per RCW 35.94.040, a public hearing is required to adopt Resolution 15-39 in order to surplus city 
property acquired by the utility funds.  

The Finance and Public Works Departments have worked together conducting a physical inventory to 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6.c
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-39: Surplus of 
Property Acquired by Utility 
Funds

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to set a Public Hearing date of December 1, 2015 to adopt Resolution 
15-39 Declaring property acquired by the utility funds to be surplus property.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Per RCW 35.94.040, a public hearing is required to adopt Resolution 15-39 in order to surplus city 
property acquired by the utility funds.  

The Finance and Public Works Departments have worked together conducting a physical inventory to The Finance and Public Works Departments have worked together conducting a physical inventory to 
ensure that these assets no longer exist and/or can be removed from our fixed asset inventory and 
disposed of properly. 

A list of the surplus items has been attached for your review.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Exhibit "A"-Surplus List 2015-Utility Funds Only
2. Resolution 15-39

The Finance and Public Works Departments have worked together conducting a physical inventory to 
ensure that these assets no longer exist and/or can be removed from our fixed asset inventory and 
disposed of properly. 

A list of the surplus items has been attached for your review.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Exhibit "A"-Surplus List 2015-Utility Funds Only
2. Resolution 15-39

303

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1446839591_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1446849339_at.pdf


EXHIBIT “A” 

 

1. Chlorine generation system 

304



Resolution 15-39 
Surplus of Utilities Property 
Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-39 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 

DECLARING CERTAIN CITY PROPERTY OF THE WATER, SOLID WASTE, STORM DRAIN AND/OR 

SEWER UTILITY TO BE SURPLUS PROPERTY  

 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the City has no further use of certain items of personal property; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that these items are surplus property is no longer needed for 

public use; and  

 

WHEREAS, the fair market value, if any, is determined for the surplus property and its disposal will be for the 

common benefit; and  

 

WHEREAS, at time of sale of surplus items, moneys, if any, will be allocated back to the appropriate utility 

fund; and  

 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.94.040 requires that action taken to surplus utility property may only occur by resolution 

and after a public hearing, which was held December 1, 2015; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor that: 

1) Based upon the findings and the recommendations of the City, the items of property belonging to said 

City, as shown in Exhibit A attached hereto, are declared to be surplus to the foreseeable needs of the 

City. 

2) That it is deemed to be for the common benefit of the residents of said City to dispose of said property. 

3) That the Mayor or his designee is authorized to dispose of items listed in Exhibit A, attached hereto, in a 

manner that will be to the best advantage and in a manner which will net the greatest amount to the City 

of Oak Harbor. 

PASSED and approved by the City Council this 1st day of December, 2015.  

       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

        

       Mayor 

Attest: 

 

City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

305



Resolution 15-39 
Surplus of Utilities Property 
Page 2 of 2 

City Attorney 

306



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-43: LEOFF 1 
Disability Board - Medicare Part 
B Premiums

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution 15-43 as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
At the LEOFF 1 meeting held November 6, 2015, the Board made the following motion:

It was moved and seconded that LEOFF 1 Board will agree to change medical insurance carrier to 
MedAdvantage Regence through AWC if the City agrees to the following:

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 7.a
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-43: LEOFF 1 
Disability Board - Medicare Part 
B Premiums

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution 15-43 as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
At the LEOFF 1 meeting held November 6, 2015, the Board made the following motion:

It was moved and seconded that LEOFF 1 Board will agree to change medical insurance carrier to 
MedAdvantage Regence through AWC if the City agrees to the following:MedAdvantage Regence through AWC if the City agrees to the following:

1) Pay Medicare Part B Premiums;

2) Continue Long-term health care coverage; and

3) Reimburse members if required to pay “high income” premiums.

The motion was unanimously approved. 

Currently, we provide insurance coverage with Regence Blueshield for all LEOFF 1 Members through 
AWC. Premiums per person will cost $1,085.00 beginning in January 2016. 

AWC offers a better insurance plan for Medicare eligibles: Medicare Advantage (MedAdvantage) 
through Regence.  This plan specifically applies to all members who are medicare eligible. The premium
costs per person is $570 per person - which would save the City $515 per month per member 
($2,575.00 total/month). We currently have six LEOFF 1 members, and five are enrolled in Medicare. In
order to realize this conversion, all Medicare eligible members must agree to sign up with MedAdvantage. 
This agreement will bind the member who is not yet age 65.  There is no deadline as to when LEOFF 1 
members can sign up; as long as the required forms are executed and filed with AWC, the coverage will
be implemented within 30 days. 

MedAdvantage Regence through AWC if the City agrees to the following:

1) Pay Medicare Part B Premiums;

2) Continue Long-term health care coverage; and

3) Reimburse members if required to pay “high income” premiums.

The motion was unanimously approved. 

Currently, we provide insurance coverage with Regence Blueshield for all LEOFF 1 Members through 
AWC. Premiums per person will cost $1,085.00 beginning in January 2016. 

AWC offers a better insurance plan for Medicare eligibles: Medicare Advantage (MedAdvantage) 
through Regence.  This plan specifically applies to all members who are medicare eligible. The premium 
costs per person is $570 per person - which would save the City $515 per month per member 
($2,575.00 total/month). We currently have six LEOFF 1 members, and five are enrolled in Medicare. In 
order to realize this conversion, all Medicare eligible members must agree to sign up with MedAdvantage. 
This agreement will bind the member who is not yet age 65.  There is no deadline as to when LEOFF 1 
members can sign up; as long as the required forms are executed and filed with AWC, the coverage will 
be implemented within 30 days. 

307



MedAdvantage is a PPO plan that has a Medicare contract with the Federal Government, and members 
remain on Medicare if they join. This plan is superior to Medicare and the current insurance plan. Not 
only does it provide better coverage, but offers far less hassle than the typical Medicare plan. The plan 
provides for Plans A, B and D, plus additional benefits not provided by Medicare.  There are no longer 
any co-pays for prescription drugs, Vision insurance is provided through VSP, and Regence will 
administer claim submissions and operations costs in relation to providing coverage.  

Any medical issue not covered by MedAdvantage can be submitted to the City's LEOFF 1 Disability 
Board for approval to pay the claim, which comes from the City's general fund.  The Disability Board will 
soon have guidelines for paying claims once we adopt LEOFF 1 Policies and Procedures.  At this time 
we are in the process of implementing such regulations.

Over 45 cities and towns in Washington State have transitioned 603 LEOFF 1 members to the 
MedAdvantage plan to date. The consensus is that this plan is preferred among those agencies and their 
members over Medicare and other plans. Another great benefit is that the transition to MedAdvantage is 
simple and seamless. See the comprehensive list of all AWC Trust employers that have transitioned 
attached.

Medicare Part B

Under RCW 41.26.150(5), Cities are not obligated to pay for Medicare Part B premiums, but the City 
may elect to do so - such as in this case. Standard Medicare Part B Premiums will cost approximately 
$104.90 per person/month. MedAdvantage will provide the Premium B coverage, and the member will 
pay for the premium.  If the City elects to ratify the LEOFF 1 motion agreeing to pay for Part B, the City 
would simply reimburse members for the premiums on a quarterly basis. (There is no possible way the 
City can directly pay for Part B on behalf of an individual)

If an individual is subject to penalties for Part B, such a if the member signed up late, the City can elect to 

MedAdvantage is a PPO plan that has a Medicare contract with the Federal Government, and members 
remain on Medicare if they join. This plan is superior to Medicare and the current insurance plan. Not 
only does it provide better coverage, but offers far less hassle than the typical Medicare plan. The plan 
provides for Plans A, B and D, plus additional benefits not provided by Medicare.  There are no longer 
any co-pays for prescription drugs, Vision insurance is provided through VSP, and Regence will 
administer claim submissions and operations costs in relation to providing coverage.  

Any medical issue not covered by MedAdvantage can be submitted to the City's LEOFF 1 Disability 
Board for approval to pay the claim, which comes from the City's general fund.  The Disability Board will 
soon have guidelines for paying claims once we adopt LEOFF 1 Policies and Procedures.  At this time 
we are in the process of implementing such regulations.

Over 45 cities and towns in Washington State have transitioned 603 LEOFF 1 members to the 
MedAdvantage plan to date. The consensus is that this plan is preferred among those agencies and their 
members over Medicare and other plans. Another great benefit is that the transition to MedAdvantage is 
simple and seamless. See the comprehensive list of all AWC Trust employers that have transitioned 
attached.

Medicare Part B

Under RCW 41.26.150(5), Cities are not obligated to pay for Medicare Part B premiums, but the City 
may elect to do so - such as in this case. Standard Medicare Part B Premiums will cost approximately 
$104.90 per person/month. MedAdvantage will provide the Premium B coverage, and the member will 
pay for the premium.  If the City elects to ratify the LEOFF 1 motion agreeing to pay for Part B, the City 
would simply reimburse members for the premiums on a quarterly basis. (There is no possible way the 
City can directly pay for Part B on behalf of an individual)

If an individual is subject to penalties for Part B, such a if the member signed up late, the City can elect to If an individual is subject to penalties for Part B, such a if the member signed up late, the City can elect to 
not pay for those fees.  Another scenario where premiums may be higher than average is if an individual 
has high income earnings, subjecting that person to a higher Part B premium. The income threshold 
amounts for Part B premiums is attached.  The City can establish parameters on this subject and agree to 
not pay for Part B above the average premium cost. 

Medicare Part D

If an individual pays for higher Part B premiums due to high income, that person will be subject to pay the 
Part D premium, which is an additional $12.00/ month.  The City has the discretion on whether it will 
reimburse this amount to the member as well.

Long-term Health Care

This portion of the motion is not in jeopardy. Per LEOFF 1 Disability benefits as dictated by the State 
(RCW 41.26.030(19)), the City must provide a certain level of health coverage to the LEOFF 1 
members and long term health care is one of them. We have a great insurance plan for long term care for 
all of our LEOFF 1 members and this is not going to change. We purchase the long-term health care 
insurance coverage through AWC, who contracts with Unum, to provide these services. The plan 
provides separate monthly maximums for Facilities, Assisted Living Facilities, Professional Home Care, 

If an individual is subject to penalties for Part B, such a if the member signed up late, the City can elect to 
not pay for those fees.  Another scenario where premiums may be higher than average is if an individual 
has high income earnings, subjecting that person to a higher Part B premium. The income threshold 
amounts for Part B premiums is attached.  The City can establish parameters on this subject and agree to 
not pay for Part B above the average premium cost. 

Medicare Part D

If an individual pays for higher Part B premiums due to high income, that person will be subject to pay the 
Part D premium, which is an additional $12.00/ month.  The City has the discretion on whether it will 
reimburse this amount to the member as well.

Long-term Health Care

This portion of the motion is not in jeopardy. Per LEOFF 1 Disability benefits as dictated by the State 
(RCW 41.26.030(19)), the City must provide a certain level of health coverage to the LEOFF 1 
members and long term health care is one of them. We have a great insurance plan for long term care for 
all of our LEOFF 1 members and this is not going to change. We purchase the long-term health care 
insurance coverage through AWC, who contracts with Unum, to provide these services. The plan 
provides separate monthly maximums for Facilities, Assisted Living Facilities, Professional Home Care, 

308



as well as a Lifetime Maximum. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.33.010 - 020

RCW 41.26.150 

RCW 41.26.030 (19)

FISCAL IMPACT
If the City elects to reimburse Members for Standard Medicare Part B Premiums ($104.90 per person) 
and LEOFF 1 Medicare Eligible Members enroll in MedAdvantage through AWC ($570/per member 
vs. $1085 per member under the current health insurance plan), the City will save $410.10/ per month for 
each Medicare Eligible Member, for total savings of $2,050.50 a month. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-43
2. Draft LEOFF 1 Meeting Minutes - November 6, 2015
3. AWC's Power Point Presentation on MedAdvantage
4. List of Citys with AWC Trust on MedAdvantage
5. 2016 Medicare Part B Premiums 
6. 2016 Comparison Chart - Medicare and MedAdvantage

as well as a Lifetime Maximum. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.33.010 - 020

RCW 41.26.150 

RCW 41.26.030 (19)

FISCAL IMPACT
If the City elects to reimburse Members for Standard Medicare Part B Premiums ($104.90 per person) 
and LEOFF 1 Medicare Eligible Members enroll in MedAdvantage through AWC ($570/per member 
vs. $1085 per member under the current health insurance plan), the City will save $410.10/ per month for 
each Medicare Eligible Member, for total savings of $2,050.50 a month. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-43
2. Draft LEOFF 1 Meeting Minutes - November 6, 2015
3. AWC's Power Point Presentation on MedAdvantage
4. List of Citys with AWC Trust on MedAdvantage
5. 2016 Medicare Part B Premiums 
6. 2016 Comparison Chart - Medicare and MedAdvantage6. 2016 Comparison Chart - Medicare and MedAdvantage6. 2016 Comparison Chart - Medicare and MedAdvantage

309

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1448472089_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447093634_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447355823_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447355867_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447356909_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1447370889_at.pdf


Resolution 15-43:  LEOFF 1 Disability Board –Medicare Part B Premiums 
Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-43 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, ACCEPTING 
THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS’ AND FIRE 

FIGHTERS’ (LEOFF) 1 DISABLITY BOARD TO FUND MEDICARE PART B 
PREMIUMS FOR MEDICARE-ELIGIBLE MEMBERS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor Law Enforcement Officers’ and Fire Fighters’ (LEOFF) 1 
Disability Board is established per Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 41.26, and Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code 2.33; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor reimburses LEOFF 1 Members’ necessary medical claims 
not covered by insurance or other sources, as set forth in RCW 41.26.150; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor does not currently reimburse Medicare Part B Premiums for 
Medicare-Eligible Members; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor, at its discretion, may elect to reimburse a LEOFF 1 Board 
Member for Medicare Part B Premiums, RCW 41.26.150(5); and 

WHEREAS, it was moved and seconded at the November 6, 2015 LEOFF 1 Board that: “The 
LEOFF 1 Board will agree to change medical insurance carrier to MedAdvantage Regence 
through  AWC if the City agrees to Pay Medicare Part B Premiums; Continue Long-term health 
care coverage; and Reimburse members if required to pay “high income” premiums”; and 

WHEREAS, insurance coverage with the MedAdvantage Plan will cost $570.00 per Medicare-
age Member as of January 1, 2016, saving the City approximately $515.00 a month for every 
Medicare-eligible Member; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor LEOFF 1 referred the proposed motion to the City Council 
for approval at the December 1, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the LEOFF 1 Board’s motion and Staff’s 
recommendation; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED  
 

1)  The City of Oak Harbor shall reimburse Medicare Standard Part B Premiums for 
LEOFF 1 Members that are Medicare-eligible if the Board agrees to change 
medical insurance plans to the MedAdvantage plan provided through AWC for all 
Medicare Eligible Members and all future Medicare Eligible Members; and 

 
2)  The City of Oak Harbor shall not reimburse Medicare Part B Premiums that are 

higher than the Standard Premium amount due to high-income threshold earnings 
or due to late penalties – see Exhibit A, incorporation herein; and 

 

310



Resolution 15-43:  LEOFF 1 Disability Board –Medicare Part B Premiums 
Page 2 of 2 
 

3)  The City of Oak Harbor shall not reimburse Medicare Part D Premiums due to 
high-income threshold earnings that cause the Medicare Part B Premium to be 
greater than the Standard Premium, or due to late penalties; and  

 
4)  Medicare Standard Part B Premium Reimbursement Claims shall be processed by 

the LEOFF 1 Board Secretary (Secretary) on a quarterly basis; and  
 
5)  The Member seeking reimbursement shall submit a Claim and all supporting 

documents as requested by the Secretary, or required by LEOFF 1 Disability 
Board Policies and Procedures,  to the Secretary within two (2) weeks after the 
end of relevant quarter; and  

 
6)  The City of Oak Harbor will continue to provide Long-Term Benefits as directed 

by RCW 42.26.030(19). 
 
PASSED by the City Council this 1st day of December, 2015. 
 
 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
________________________________ 
SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

311



2016 

In 2016, the standard Part B premium amount will be $121.80 (or higher depending on your income). 
Most people who get Social Security benefits will continue to pay a Part B premium of $104.90 each 
month. You'll pay a different premium amount in 2016 if:  

• You enroll in Part B for the first time in 2016.

• You don't get Social Security benefits.

• You have Medicare and Medicaid, and Medicaid pays your premiums.

• Your modified adjusted gross income as reported on your IRS tax return from 2 years ago is above a certain

amount.

If you're in 1 of these 4 groups, here's what you'll pay: 

If your yearly income in 2014 (for what you pay in 2016) was 
You 
pay (in 
2016) 

File individual tax 
return File joint tax return File married & separate tax return 

$85,000 or less $170,000 or less $85,000 or less $121.80 

above $85,000 up to 
$107,000 

above $170,000 up to 
$214,000 Not applicable $170.50 

above $107,000 up to 
$160,000 

above $214,000 up to 
$320,000 Not applicable $243.60 

above $160,000 up to 
$214,000 

above $320,000 up to 
$428,000 above $85,000 and up to $129,000 $316.70 

above $214,000 above $428,000 above $129,000 $389.80 

Get more information about your Part B premium from Social Security. 

Part B deductible & coinsurance 

You pay $147 per year for your Part B deductible ($166 in 2016). After your deductible is met, you 
typically pay 20% of the Medicare-approved amount for most doctor services (including most doctor 
services while you're a hospital inpatient), outpatient therapy, and durable medical equipment. 

 EXHIBIT A

312

http://socialsecurity.gov/pubs/EN-05-10536.pdf
https://www.medicare.gov/your-medicare-costs/part-b-costs/part-b-costs.html#1306
https://www.medicare.gov/your-medicare-costs/part-b-costs/part-b-costs.html#1378
https://www.medicare.gov/your-medicare-costs/part-b-costs/part-b-costs.html#1314


LEOFF 1 Board Special Meeting – November 6, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

LEOFF 1 DISABILITY BOARD 
SPECIAL MEETING 

Friday, November 6, 2015 – 1:00 p.m. 
 

City Hall – Council Chambers 
865 SE Barrington Drive – Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 

ROLL CALL 

Board Staff 
Rick Wallace, Chair 
Danny Paggao 
Robert Severns 
Gary Wallin 
Ray Heltsly 

Dr. Merriman, City Administrator  
Anna Thompson, City Clerk/LEOFF 1 Board 
Secretary 
 

 

Members in attendance: Gary West and Tony Barge 

 

1. Call to Order 

Chairman Rick Wallace called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m. 

2. New Business 
a. Approve Minutes from 3/26/2015  

Motion:   Councilmember Severns moved to approve LEOFF 1 Board Minutes from March 26,  
     2015, seconded by Councilmember Paggao, unanimously approved.  

b. Review medical reimbursement claims 

Motion:   Councilmember Severns moved to approve the medical claim as presented, seconded  
     by Ray Heltsley, majority approved. 
 
     Rick Wallace abstained from voting.  

c. Discussion of insurance benefits including med advantage with AWC 

Mr. Wallace reintroduced the motion from the March 26, 2015 LEOFF 1 Board meeting:  

 

 

313



LEOFF 1 Board Special Meeting – November 6, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

Motion:    Ray Heltsley moved, and Councilmember Severns seconded, that LEOFF 1 Board will  
agree to change medical insurance carrier to MedAdvantage Regence through AWC 
if the City agrees  to the following:  

1) Pay Medicare Part B Premiums; 
2) Continue Long-term health care coverage; and 
3) Reimburse members if required to pay “high income” premiums. 

     The motion was unanimously approved.  

d. Review and discuss proposed policies and procedures for LEOFF 1 Board 

Reviewed policies and procedures. 

Board members discussed appointing a Board Physician in the near future.  

Chairman Wallace suggested reviewing rules in detail outside of the meeting and then talking 
about the rules the members have questions on at a future meeting.   

3. Other Business 

None. 

4. Adjournment 

Motion:  Gary Wallin moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Paggao, unanimously  
    approved. 

 

The Meeting adjourned at 2:03 p.m. 

 

       Anna M. Thompson, 
City Clerk/LEOFF 1 Board Secretary 

 

 

314



Association of Washington Cities 1 

Medicare Advantage 

LEOFF I Retiree Plan 

for City of Oak Harbor  

LEOFF 1 Retirees/Disability Board 

 

Presented by:  

Beverly Lakey 

AWC Trust Program Manager 

 
315



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

2 

What is Regence MedAdvantage? 

• Medicare Advantage plans vs. Medigap plans 

• Regence MedAdvantage is a PPO plan that has a Medicare 

contract with the Federal government. 
 

• Members are still in the Medicare program when they join.   

• Regence receives funding from Medicare and the group 

• Providers submit any claims to Regence, not to Medicare 

• Regence is responsible for all administrative and operational costs 

associated with providing coverage 

 

 

 
316



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

3 

What does Regence MedAdvantage cover? 

• Part A and B benefits (Part B premiums 

still required to be paid) 

 

• Typical Medigap plan benefits 

 

• Part D Prescription coverage (Classic and Enhanced) 

 

• Additional benefits not usually covered by Original Medicare 

All wrapped into one easy to use package 

317



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

4 

MA BCBSA Network Sharing 

State – paid as in-network 

Paid as in-network 

Regence MedAdvantage network 

Plan A vs. MedAdvantage – no changes in claim payments as long as provider 

accepts Medicare assignment 

Does your doctor accept Medicare assignment? 

http://www.medicare.gov/find-a-doctor/provider-

search.aspx 

318

http://www.medicare.gov/find-a-doctor/provider-search.aspx
http://www.medicare.gov/find-a-doctor/provider-search.aspx
http://www.medicare.gov/find-a-doctor/provider-search.aspx
http://www.medicare.gov/find-a-doctor/provider-search.aspx
http://www.medicare.gov/find-a-doctor/provider-search.aspx
http://www.medicare.gov/find-a-doctor/provider-search.aspx
http://www.medicare.gov/find-a-doctor/provider-search.aspx
http://www.medicare.gov/find-a-doctor/provider-search.aspx
http://www.medicare.gov/find-a-doctor/provider-search.aspx


© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

5 

Regence MedAdvantage PPO plan 

• Freedom to use your own doctor and hospital 

 

• No referrals to see specialists 

 

• Large provider and pharmacy network  
• Medically necessary covered services have $0 cost share for 

the LEOFF 1, in-network or out-of-network – as long as 

provider accepts Medicare assignment 

• Prior authorization may apply; meaning LEOFF 1 must meet 

medical necessity/criteria.  In-network providers are aware of 

what needs to take place in order to obtain coverage for 

medically necessary benefits. 

 

• Worldwide Coverage including Worldwide Emergency 

Coverage 

 
319



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

6 

2015 LEOFF1 Medicare Group Retiree Plan 

$0 Deductible In Network/ Out of Network  

Out of Pocket Max: Does not apply – member has no cost sharing 

Covered Benefits* 

Primary Care or Specialist Office Visits: $0 copay In Network / Out of network 

Inpatient Hospital, No limit to the number of days: $0 copay In Network / Out of network 

Inpatient Mental Health Care, (limited to 190 days/lifetime): $0 copay In Network / Out of network 

Skilled Nursing Facility (no 3-day hospital stay requirement): $0 copay In Network / Out of network  

After 100 days, must have a 60 day break       

Authorization may apply 

Home Health Care: $0 copay In Network / Out of network 

Authorization may apply 

Outpatient Mental Health Care: $0 copay In Network/ Out of Network  

Authorization may apply 

Ambulance Services Worldwide: $0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Podiatry Services (medically necessary foot care) : $0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Emergency  and Urgent Care Worldwide: $0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Outpatient Rehab (Physical, Occupational and Speech Therapy): $0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Authorization may apply 

320



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

7 

2015 LEOFF1 Medicare Group Retiree Plan 

Covered Benefits* 

Diagnostic Tests, X-Rays, Lab Services and Radiology Services 

$0 copay In Network/Out of Network 

Authorization may apply for Complex Imaging tests- e.g. MRI, CAT, PET, Nuclear Medicine 

Annual Physical Exam & Preventive services: $0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Diabetes Self-Monitoring Training and Supplies, including Medicare-covered therapeutic shoes/inserts 

Lancets, test strips & glucometers 

$0 copay In Network / Out of network 

(Part D – insulin and syringes covered in Rx Tier 2 $0 copay) 

Medicare-covered Part B drugs (e.g. chemotherapy and dialysis drugs):  

$0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Outpatient Surgery: $0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Authorization may apply 

Smoking Cessation (counseling): $0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Durable Medical Equipment and Prosthetic Devices: $0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Authorization may apply 

321



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

8 

2015 LEOFF1 Medicare Group Retiree Plan 

Covered Benefits* 
Routine Vision Exam 

 $0 In Network* 

Benefit available on a calendar year basis 

Out of Network may require out of pocket expense 

 

 

In Network use VSP provider 

To find a provider: 

https://www.vsp.com/eye-doctor.html 

Select “Search as Guest” 

Network: Select “VSP Signature” 

Vision Hardware 

$200 calendar year allowance 

See any provider 

*Up to $45 reimbursement for routine vision exam out-of-network 

322

https://www.vsp.com/eye-doctor.html
https://www.vsp.com/eye-doctor.html
https://www.vsp.com/eye-doctor.html


© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

9 

2015 LEOFF1 Medicare Group Retiree Plan 

Limited Benefits* 

Orthotics, only covered for orthopedic or therapeutic shoes for people with diabetic foot disease:  

$0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Massage Therapy must be received by a Physical Therapist as part of a treatment plan.  

$0 copay In Network/ Out of Network 

Licensed Massage Therapist Not Covered 

Chiropractic Services limited to manual manipulation to correct subluxation:  

$0 copay In Network / Out of network 

Benefits Not Covered* 

Routine and Preventive Dental 

Acupuncture and Alternative Care Providers (e.g. Naturopath) 

*For a complete list of covered benefits see Summary of Benefits 
323



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

10 

Call a nurse when you have a question – 24 hours a day 

Get round-the-clock answers from 

a registered nurse. If you have a 

question, don’t know how to treat a 

health condition or are unsure 

about what kind of care you need, 

a free call to a registered nurse can 

get you on the right track. 

Nurse Advice Line:  800-267-6729 

324



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

11 

More benefits! 

The Healthways SilverSneakers Fitness Program is a fun, energizing program that can help 

you take greater control of your health by encouraging physical activity and offering social 

events. SilverSneakers membership comes with your Regence MedAdvantage PPO plan. 

Benefits include: 

 
•     Fitness center membership to 11,000+ participating locations across the U.S. 
 
•     Access to conditioning classes, exercise equipment, pool and other amenities 
 
•     Customized SilverSneakers classes designed exclusively for older adults 
 
•     Health education seminars 
 
• Kits available for home use including general fitness, yoga, walking and strength home 

kits.  
 

• Member materials sent upon enrollment, including Silver Sneakers card (or show 
Regence ID card) 

 
325



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

12 

Employee Assistance Program - ComPsych 

 Mental Health, Legal, Financial &

Work-Life Assistance

 Free

 Individual, couples and families

 Confidential

 Professional

 Employees, dependents,

household

 1-800-570-9315

www.guidanceresources.com

  (Web ID:  trusteap71) 326

http://www.guidanceresources.com/


© 2011 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

13 

Part D Prescription Drug Coverage 

327



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

14 

2015 LEOFF1 Medicare Group Retiree Plan Part D Rx 

* Tiers 5 products are limited to a 30-day supply and may include “generics” vs. “brand name” products 

Regence MedAdvantage 
LEOFF1 

Deductible $0 

Tier 1: 
Copay for preferred generics 

$0 

Tier 2: 
Copay for non-preferred generics 

$0 

Tier 3: 
Copay for preferred brand drugs 

$0 

Tier 4: 
Copay for non-preferred brand drugs 

$0 

Tier 5*: 
Coinsurance for specialty drugs 

0% 

328



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

15 

Part D Formulary and Pharmacies 

• Plan A formulary vs. MedAdvantage Part D formulary

• MedAdvantage must use Medicare’s formulary

• No changes on the Pharmacy Network:
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-

+MedAdvantage+%28PPO%29%20%2B%20Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-

e46c1c3be0bb

• Over 63,000 network pharmacies nationwide

• Nearly all chain pharmacies allow for a 90-day supply, noted

with an “*” in directory

• Convenient mail-order options (90-day supply) available with

Walgreens,  Postal Prescription Services, and Catamaran RX

Home Delivery

329

https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb
https://www.regence.com/documents/10192/1964881/Pharmacy+directory+-+MedAdvantage+(PPO) + Rx/a3d0a15c-9be8-4049-bbdc-e46c1c3be0bb


© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

16 

How to find which drugs are covered on our formulary 

• Search MedAdvantage formulary 

online at: 

https://ctr.benefits.catamaranrx.com/rxpublic/portal/mem

berMain?customer=REGNOGPFB 

• Look up prescription information in a 

paper copy of the formulary 

• Call dedicated Customer Service line 

at 1-888-319 8904 for help with 

determining whether a particular 

prescription is covered 

330

https://ctr.benefits.catamaranrx.com/rxpublic/portal/memberMain?customer=REGNOGPFB
https://ctr.benefits.catamaranrx.com/rxpublic/portal/memberMain?customer=REGNOGPFB


© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

17 

Part D – Prior authorization  

• Some drugs will be listed in the formulary with a “PA” – 

indicates Prior authorization required 

• Doctor must contact the plan for prior authorization 

• Before a prescription will be covered 

• Must show medical necessity for that particular drug 

• If a doctor thinks a member needs a drug that isn’t on the list, 

the member or his or her doctor may apply for an exception 

 

331



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

18 

Medications not covered by Medicare formulary 

Medication Retail price 30 – day supply 

Alprazolam $4 (Tablets) 

$56 (Tab Rapids) 

Lorazepam $4.50 

Lipitor $150 

Diovan $117 

Plavix $194 

Vytorin $144 

Folic Acid $4 

Crestor $150 

332



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

19 

Part D – Transition policy 

• CMS requires that plan sponsors have a policy to provide 

temporary drug coverage to beneficiaries during transition 

periods for drugs that are not in the beneficiary’s new/updated 

Part D plan formulary 

• Part D plan sponsors must also provide an emergency supply 

of drugs not on the plan formulary to members who experience 

negative formulary changes between plan years 

 

How do members obtain a transition supply when they join? 

• Simply show their ID card to the pharmacist and they will 

receive a 30 day supply of the drug – one time fill. 

333



Association of Washington Cities 20 

Eligibility 

LEOFF I Retiree Members 

1. Must be entitled to Medicare benefits under Part A and enrolled in 
Part B.  Simply stated, the retiree must have Part A and Part B in 
order to enroll in Medicare Advantage 

 

2. Must be retired, not active  

 

3. Can live anywhere in U.S., not in territories 

 

4. Cannot live outside of the U.S. for more than 12 months at a time 

  

AWC Plan A is still available for those not meeting the 
requirements above. 

 

334



Association of Washington Cities 21 

Enrollment Process 

 

 Medicare Advantage Enrollment Forms  

 Ignore page 3 of Form 

 Enrollment forms requested to be turned in by January 
15, in order to facilitate a smooth and timely transition of 
benefits effective March 1, 2015.   

 

 

 

335

http://www.awcnet.org/Insurance/EmployeeBenefitTrust/EmployeeBenefitTrustNewsUpdates/tabid/363/articleType/ArticleView/articleId/1152/New-medical-plans-available-January-1.aspx


Association of Washington Cities 22 

Enrollment Process 

Once enrolled ~ 

1. Proposed Effective Date letter arrives from Regence in 7 
days to the member, after enrollment form received 

• This can be used 

      as their ID card  

      until it arrives 

2. ID Card arrives from  

      Regence in 10- 14 

      days after enrollment 

      form received 

 
336



Association of Washington Cities 23 

Enrollment Materials 

After ID Cards, the member will receive a new enrollment kit from 

Regence containing: 

• Evidence of Coverage (EOC) – Customized for AWC

• Abridged formulary

• Comprehensive formulary can be sent upon request

• Pharmacy directory

• Provider directory

337



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

24 

 Annual mailing  

On an annual basis, members will receive from Regence: 

 

• Annual Notice of Change letter (ANOC) 

• Evidence of Coverage for the upcoming new plan year (EOC) 

• Abridged formulary 

• Pharmacy directory 

• Provider directory 

338



© 2012 Regence.  Private and Confidential. 

25 

Questions? 

For follow up questions, please contact 

The AWC Employee Benefit Trust at 

800-562-8981 or 360-753-4137 

339



CITY/TOWN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

TERM DATE # OF L1'S MOVED ON 
EFF DATE 

1.   Aberdeen 4/1/2013  48 
2. Algona 7/1/2014  1 
3.  Anacortes 1/1/2013  14 
4.  Auburn 1/1/2014  31 
5.  Bainbridge Island 2/1/2013  1 
6.  Battle Ground 5/1/2013  1 
7.  Bellingham 3/1/2015  93 
8.  Bothell 1/1/2015  4 
9.  Burlington 4/1/2013  3 
10. Camas 1/1/2013 10/1/2014  
11. Centralia 1/1/2013  12 
12. Chehalis 7/1/2013  14 
13. Colville 1/1/2014  1 
14. East Wenatchee 7/1/2014  2 
15. Ferndale 1/1/2013  1 
16. Forks 3/1/2013  2 
17. Hoquiam 10/1/2013  18 
18. Kelso 8/1/2013  13 
19. Kennewick 4/1/2013  29 
20. Lacey 7/1/2013  8 
21. Longview 9/1/2013  49 
22. Marysville 9/1/2013  6 
23. McCleary 3/1/2013  2 
24. Mercer Island 3/1/2013  19 
25. Montesano 8/1/2013  2 
26. Moses Lake 1/1/2013  12 
27. Mount Vernon 1/1/2013  16 
28. Mountlake Terrace 8/1/2013  16 
29. Napavine 1/1/2014  1 
30. Newport 8/1/2013  1 
31. Normandy Park 1/1/2013  1 
32. Olympia 10/1/2014  50 
33. Pomeroy 4/1/2015  1 
34. Pullman 4/1/2013  13 
35. Raymond 3/1/2014  1 
36. Riverside Fire Authority 2/1/2014  2 

340



 

 

37. Roy 8/1/2014  1 
38. Sedro-Woolley 1/1/2013  6 
39. Shelton 1/1/2014  11 
40. Sultan 2/1/2014  1 
41. Sumner 9/1/2014  7 
42. Tenino 3/1/2014  1 
43. Tonasket 3/1/2013  1 
44. Toppenish 10/1/2013  6 
45. Walla Walla 3/1/2013  51 
46. Wapato 1/1/2013  3 
47. Warden 2/1/2015  1 
49. Wenatchee 1/1/2013  25 
50. West Richland 1/1/2013  1 
Totals   603 

341



2016 

In 2016, the standard Part B premium amount will be $121.80 (or higher depending on your income). 
Most people who get Social Security benefits will continue to pay a Part B premium of $104.90 each 
month. You'll pay a different premium amount in 2016 if:  

• You enroll in Part B for the first time in 2016. 

• You don't get Social Security benefits. 

• You have Medicare and Medicaid, and Medicaid pays your premiums. 

• Your modified adjusted gross income as reported on your IRS tax return from 2 years ago is above a certain 

amount. 

If you're in 1 of these 4 groups, here's what you'll pay: 

If your yearly income in 2014 (for what you pay in 2016) was 
You 
pay (in 
2016) 

File individual tax 
return File joint tax return File married & separate tax return 

$85,000 or less $170,000 or less $85,000 or less $121.80 

above $85,000 up to 
$107,000 

above $170,000 up to 
$214,000 Not applicable $170.50 

above $107,000 up to 
$160,000 

above $214,000 up to 
$320,000 Not applicable $243.60 

above $160,000 up to 
$214,000 

above $320,000 up to 
$428,000 above $85,000 and up to $129,000 $316.70 

above $214,000 above $428,000 above $129,000 $389.80 

Get more information about your Part B premium from Social Security. 

Part B deductible & coinsurance 

You pay $147 per year for your Part B deductible ($166 in 2016). After your deductible is met, you 
typically pay 20% of the Medicare-approved amount for most doctor services (including most doctor 
services while you're a hospital inpatient), outpatient therapy, and durable medical equipment. 
 

342

http://socialsecurity.gov/pubs/EN-05-10536.pdf
https://www.medicare.gov/your-medicare-costs/part-b-costs/part-b-costs.html#1306
https://www.medicare.gov/your-medicare-costs/part-b-costs/part-b-costs.html#1378
https://www.medicare.gov/your-medicare-costs/part-b-costs/part-b-costs.html#1314


Page 1

LEOFF 1 retiree benefits Plan A MedAdvantage

If seeing a non-participating provider, 
provider may bill over Regence allowed 

amount, which can result in patient 
responsibiltiy

Must see a provider that accepts Medicare 
assignment in order for services to be 

covered

Rates LEOFF 1 Retiree on Medicare Parts A & 
B - $1,085.17

LEOFF 1 Retiree on Medicare Parts A & B 
- $570.23

Basic benefits No deductible, Paid at 100% No deductible, Paid at 100%

Annual per person deductible None None
Maximum deductible per year   None None

$375 None

Office visit
Lab, x-ray & diagnostic
Allergy shots

Well adult care per federal preventive 
care requirements, including: exams, 
health screenings, immunizations, 
certain prescriptions

100% 100%

Semi-private room
Diagnostic services
Prescription medications - inpatient
Intensive & coronary care units
Use of operating & recovery room
Inpatient radiotherapy services
Emergency room facility charges

Physicians, surgeons & 
anesthesiologists 100% 100%

Physician service
Hospital service

Worldwide care

Inpatient
Outpatient

Ambulance 80% 100%

Inpatient 100% to a maximum
of 30 days per calendar year

Outpatient 100%

Chemical dependency treatment
100% - Prior-authorization required for 

outpatient treatment

100% - Massage therapy must be received 
by a physical therapist as part of a treatment 

plan. (Licensed massage therapists not 
covered) Prior-authorization required for 

outpatient rehab

100%

Rehabilitative therapy

Note:  Must have prescription for massage and physical therapy

Association of Washington Cities 2016 medical plan comparison
(Plans underwritten by Regence BlueShield)

Please see NOTE at end of spreadsheet

Providers

Preferred, Participating and Non-Participating Providers

Deductible and out-of-pocket

Out-of-pocket maximum
(per calendar year)  

In your physician’s office

Preventive care services

100%

Yes - Find a provider near you at www.bcbs.com or call 1 (800) 810-2583.

100% 100%

Note:  Routine newborn care covered for 72 hours  If employee is enrolled, newborn covered for 21 days

100%

100%

Maternity care

100%

In the hospital - facility

In the hospital - professional services

343



Page 2

LEOFF 1 retiree benefits Plan A MedAdvantage
    Prosthetics/Home medical 

equipment
80%

100% - Orthotics: only covered for 
orthopedic or therapeutic shoes for people 

with diabetic foot disease

Inpatient 100% to190 day lifetime maximum
Outpatient 100%

Pharmacy
(34-day supply)

Regence formulary: $4 generic, $15 
preferred brand, $15 non-preferred brand

Medicare formulary
no co-pay, paid at 100%

Mail order
(90-day supply)

Regence formulary: $8 generic, $30 
preferred brand, $30 non-preferred brand

Medicare formulary
no co-pay, paid at 100%

Routine vision exam 100% 100% (VSP providers will bill for you)

Hardware Not covered $200 annual allowance (VSP providers will 
bill for you)

Naturopathic doctor Paid the same as physician's office visit 
(MD) Not covered

Massage therapist Prescription required - then pays under the 
rehab outpatient benefit Not covered

Acupuncture 100% limited to 12 visits per year Not covered

Spinal manipulations 100% limited to 25 manipulations per year
100%, limited to manual manipulation to 
correct subluxation, prior authorization 

required

Skilled nursing facility 100% to 365 days lifetime maximum 100% to 100 days/benefit period
Hospice care 100% 100%
Home health care 100% to 130 visits per calendar year 100%

Health Central

Health Questionnaire (HQ)

Health coaching

Weight management coaching

Employee Assistance Program

Nurse advice line

Tobacco cessation

Wellness newsletter

CAUTION: Do not use this "Medical Plan Comparison" as a complete description of benefit plans. 
The information is presented in summary form and should be used for general 

comparison purposes only. Consult the Employee Benefit Handbook for complete and 
accurate information on the conditions, exclusion, limitations and coverage of benefits.

Specialty care

Vision care

100%

Prescription drugs

Alternative care

Your personal, secure health and benefits website.  Benefits information, health record, 
behavior change tools, articles and video on health topics A - Z. Administered by WebMD.  

Go to awctrust.org.
Confidential assessment of health status and health risks. Financial reward for 

participating each fall. Administered by WebMD.

Wellness articles, stories, tips, quotes, recipes, and entertaining cartoons delivered 
monthly to your home.

Counseling, nicotine replacement therapy, and other resources for those ready to quit 
tobacco. Quit For Life® Program is administered by Alere (formerly Free & Clear).

Nurses are available 24 - 7 to discuss health issues and treatment options.

Enhanced coaching option for those with significant weight management goals.  
Administered by WebMD Health Services.

Confidential counseling on issues including stress, grief, parenting, relationships, 
finances, substance abuse, and more. Administered by ComPsych. Included in all 

Regence/Asuris medical plans at no charge. Available for purchase by employer for 
Group Health participants and uninsured employees.

WebMD health professionals offer guidance and encouragement to help you reach 
personal health goals. Administered by WebMD Health Services.

Mental health/Psychiatric

Health & well-being

344



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1711: Horse 
Drawn Carriage, Carts or 
Conveyances 

FROM: Ed Green, Chief of Police

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Ordinance 1711 creating a new code section entitled "Horse Drawn Carriage, Carts or 
Conveyance".  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In mid-2014 a citizen approached the City and asked if it was legal to have a Horse Drawn Carriage 
operation in the downtown area of Oak Harbor.  At that time, the City did not have provisions in place 
that would allow for that type of business.  

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 7.b
Date: December 1, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1711: Horse 
Drawn Carriage, Carts or 
Conveyances 

FROM: Ed Green, Chief of Police

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Ordinance 1711 creating a new code section entitled "Horse Drawn Carriage, Carts or 
Conveyance".  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In mid-2014 a citizen approached the City and asked if it was legal to have a Horse Drawn Carriage 
operation in the downtown area of Oak Harbor.  At that time, the City did not have provisions in place 
that would allow for that type of business.  that would allow for that type of business.  

Horse Drawn Carriage operations can act as a tourist attraction and if utilized correctly can help to 
promote those areas of a City in which they operate. Currently Horse Drawn Carriages and 
Conveyances are permitted to operate in several Cities in Washington State such as Leavenworth and 
Port Townsend and are usually a large draw for visiting tourists, especially during the holiday months. 

The City of Oak Harbor does not have any ordinance that would regulate or allow for such an operation. 
Staff decided, based on the public's request, that the idea needed to be researched and 
an ordinance written if feasible. 

After researching ordinances from several Cities staff determined that a Horse Drawn Carriage operation
could operate successfully and could be a tourist attraction if marketed correctly. 

Staff drafted this ordinance with the idea of offering this opportunity, but also regulating it to ensure safe 
operation.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

that would allow for that type of business.  

Horse Drawn Carriage operations can act as a tourist attraction and if utilized correctly can help to 
promote those areas of a City in which they operate. Currently Horse Drawn Carriages and 
Conveyances are permitted to operate in several Cities in Washington State such as Leavenworth and 
Port Townsend and are usually a large draw for visiting tourists, especially during the holiday months. 

The City of Oak Harbor does not have any ordinance that would regulate or allow for such an operation. 
Staff decided, based on the public's request, that the idea needed to be researched and 
an ordinance written if feasible. 

After researching ordinances from several Cities staff determined that a Horse Drawn Carriage operation 
could operate successfully and could be a tourist attraction if marketed correctly. 

Staff drafted this ordinance with the idea of offering this opportunity, but also regulating it to ensure safe 
operation.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

345



N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
November 18, 2015 - City Council Workshop Pending Agenda Item (discussion)

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1711: Horse Drawn Carriage, Carts or Conveyances

N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
November 18, 2015 - City Council Workshop Pending Agenda Item (discussion)

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1711: Horse Drawn Carriage, Carts or Conveyances

346

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=418c8b17c94970940b071af158ce9c8a&aName=1446506581_at.pdf


347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355


	Regular Meeting Agenda for December 1, 2015 Council Meeting
	3.  Proclamation in Recognition of National Impaired Driving Prevention Month - December 2015, presented by JoAnn Hellmann, Director of the Impaired Driving Impact Panel of Island County
	 Proclamation IDIPIC 12.2015

	C/A 4.a Minutes of the Regular and Special Meetings on November 17, 2015, and Workshop Meeting held November 18, 2015
	 Special Meeting Minutes 11/17/15
	 Regular Meeting Minutes 11/17/15
	 Workshop Meeting Minutes 11/18/15

	C/A 4.b Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
	 Voucher Listing (1)
	 Voucher Listing (2)

	C/A 4.c Resolution 15-38: Labor Agreement between The City of Oak Harbor and the Oak Harbor Police Association - Commissioned Unit
	 Council Bill
	 Resolution 15-38
	 Labor Agreement between the City of Oak Harbor and the Oak Harbor Police Association - Commissioned Unit

	C/A 4.d Resolution 15-40: 2016 Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for 2% Grant Applications
	 Resolution 15-40
	 2016 LTAC Applicant Ranking Worksheets
	 LTAC Minutes - 11/23/2015 (Draft)
	 LTAC Minutes - 11/20/2015
	 LTAC Minutes - 11/19/2015
	 LTAC Minutes - 11/13/2015
	 LTAC Minutes - 10/30/2015

	C/A 4.e Professional Services Agreement with Jack Kerr for Indigent Defense Screening Srvices 
	 Agreement with Jack Kerr

	C/A 4.f Senior Services of Island County Professional Services Contract
	 Professional Services Agreement

	C/A 4.g 10-Inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement - Professional Service Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for Engineering Services
	 Professional Services Agreement - Exhibit A: Consultant Scope of Services

	C/A 4.h Agreement with Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers
	 Agreement with Ft. Nugent Electric Flyers
	 Exhibit A
	 Rules for Model Aircraft Field Operation
	 Email from NAS Whidbey re Flying Model Aircraft

	5.a.i  Council Vacancy Procedure
	 Proposed Application for Council Position No. 4
	 Score Sheets for Interview Questions
	 Council Vacancy Notice - Whidbey News Times, Legal section
	 Schedule for Filling Council Vacancy

	5.a.ii  Clean Water Facility Project Update 
	 Report on Clean Water Facility

	5.a.iii  2016 Whidbey Island Marathon Update by the Race Director - Elks Lodge
	5.a.iv  NLC Conference - Select Councilmembers 
	6.a Ordinance No. 1751: Vacating Beach Avenue
	 Ordinance 1751

	6.b Ordinance No. 1753: 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments
	 Planning Commission report and minutes of October 27, 2015 recommending approval of the 2016-2021 Capital Improvements Plan and the Land Use changes on SW 3rd Avenue
	 Ordinance No. 1753

	6.c Resolution 15-39: Surplus of Property Acquired by Utility Funds
	 Exhibit "A"-Surplus List 2015-Utility Funds Only
	 Resolution 15-39

	7.a Resolution 15-43: LEOFF 1 Disability Board - Medicare Part B Premiums
	 Resolution 15-43
	 Draft LEOFF 1 Meeting Minutes - November 6, 2015
	 AWC's Power Point Presentation on MedAdvantage
	 List of Citys with AWC Trust on MedAdvantage
	 2016 Medicare Part B Premiums 
	 2016 Comparison Chart - Medicare and MedAdvantage

	7.b Ordinance No. 1711: Horse Drawn Carriage, Carts or Conveyances 
	 Ordinance No. 1711: Horse Drawn Carriage, Carts or Conveyances 




